# Phoenix Journal #195



# By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

# **Table Of Contents**

CHAPTER 1	1
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 1/14/97	1
LAND-GRABBING SECRETS OF THE NATURE CONSERVANCY	1
BUSH WAS IN CHARGE, SAYS LT. COL. JAMES 'BO' GRITZ	
Lt. James "Bo" Gritz	3
"ISA WORKED FOR THE NSC"	4
'CIA' WAS THE COVER	5
ABSTINENCE KEEPS STAFF SHIPSHAPE	5
MAN THROWN 5 STORIES ONTO CONCRETE SURVIVES	7
NO GOOD DEED	8
EX-GOVERNOR OF ARKANSAS HAS A LIVER TRANSPLANT	8
CONVICTED FELON ex-Gov. Jim Guy Tucker	9
STICKS AND STONES	
CHAPTER 2	12
THE UNTOLD HISTORY OF AMERICA PART XV OF A SERIES	
by Ray Bilger 1/8/97	12
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION SOURCES	18
CHAPTER 3	19
HITLER'S EUROPE: WELCOME TO THE SHOW by David Icke 1/9/97	
New World Order World Division Chart	20
CHAPTER 4	
A TIP OF THE ICEBERG by V.K. Durham 12/21/96	24
ANOTHER SUBJECT (but not really)	25
CHAPTER 5	27
OBITUARY	27
JOHN FREDERICK SCHROEPFER	27
CHAPTER 6	29
THE NEWS DESK Dr. Al Overholt 1/14/97	29
THE HIGHWAY ROBBERY ACT	29
SWISS: NO APOLOGY FOR 'BLACKMAIL' COMMENT	30
JAPAN STOCKS	
CHINA AIMS TO CLEAN UP BLOOD SUPPLY WITH NEW LAW	31
BILLY GRAHAM PROMOTES FALSE BIBLE VERSION	31
THE REAL TERRORISTS	
YELTSIN OKs RETURN OF LAST CZAR'S HEIR	32
EDISON EXPLAINS MONEY	
TRUTH ABOUT DENTAL FLUORIDATION	34
UNSAFE WATER	
NON-FILER'S VICTORY MEANS TERROR FOR TAX TYRANTS	34
JOE IZEN	
RULE WITH FEAR	35

SILENCE IS GOLDEN	36
CRACKDOWN STARTS ON REFRIGERANT SMUGGLING	36
IN THE FOOTSTEPS OF MAD GENIUS	
by William F. Buckley Jr.	37
WILLIAM F. BUCKLEY Jr.	
AN INTERESTING HEADLINE AND DATE	38
THE INFAMOUS DAVID HORTON, Esq	38
T. DAVID HORTON	
MAYNARD CAMPBELL MURDERED IN PRISON	39
MAYNARD C. CAMPBELL Jr.	
CHAPTER 7	40
SOUTH POLE INFORMATION	40
COL. FLETCHER PROUTY	
SHARES PERSONAL EXPERIENCE by Col. Fletcher Prouty 1/5/97	40
CHAPTER 8	
LATEST FILINGS IN THE BERKSHIRES MASS. LAWSUIT	
by Eustace Mullins 1/10/97	44
"Socialist Legal State"	
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE	
CHAPTER 9	
PREPARING FOR CALAMITIES AHEAD by Grandma 1/11/97	49
THINK ABOUT IT!	
NOW LET'S PICK ON ANOTHER BONE OF CONTENTION!	
A NOTE FROM MRS. RUSSELL E. HERRMANN-HERRMAN-HERMAN	53
by Grandma 1/12/97	53
USING HUMANS FOR BIOLOGICAL TESTING by Grandma 12/14/96	
UNITED STATES CODE TITLE 50—WAR AND NATIONAL DEFENSE	
CHAPTER 32. CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL WARFARE PROGRAM	54
EXECUTIVE ORDER #12975 (Oct. 3, 1995)	54
EXECUTIVE ORDER #13010, SEC. 5 (c) (July 15, 1996)	
CHAPTER 10	
A TIP OF THE ICEBERG	57
MINERALS AND THE HUMAN BODY by V.K. DURHAM 12/28/96	57
CHAPTER 11	61
UPDATE ON JANET by Dr. Al Overholt	61
CHAPTER 12	
SANAT KUMARA: MAY YOUR LIFE NEVER	
BE WITHOUT A GOOD CHALLENGE!	62
1/18/96 SANAT KUMARA	63
CHAPTER 13	68
COLD, DIABOLICAL TRUTH BEHIND	68
EMERGING VIRUSES	
POTENT INTERVIEW WITH DR. HOROWITZ by Rick Martin 1/28/97	68
CHAPTER 14	78
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 1/28/97	78

AMENDMENT FEVER HITS CONGRESS	78
DOCTOR: ASSISTED DEATH A 'MORTAL DANGER'	79
NICOTINE, COCAINE: SWISS SCIENTISTS NOTE SIMILARITY	80
ENERGY PRICES LOW, O'LEARY SAYS	80
TSAR NICHOLAS II OF RUSSIA	81
TRAFFICKING IN HUMAN ORGANS	81
CLINTON ELECTED BY ONLY 24 PERCENT	81
THE VERY LARGE TELESCOPE	82
COMPUTER ATTACKS SHOW NEW PATTERNS	82
A CIA FUNDING OPERATION by Gene "Chip" Tatum	82
CIA TALLY	
SUMMARY OF THE EXAMPLE	84
WANTED ONLY FOR OUR BODY PARTS	85
YOUR TASK	86
CHAPTER 15	88
STOPPING THE ANTI-CONSTITUTIONALISTS by Grandma 12/17/96	88
FOLKS, YOU HAD BEST READ THIS AND THINK ABOUT IT!	
THINK ABOUT IT!	
THINK ABOUT IT!	89
THINK ABOUT IT!	89
THINK ABOUT IT!	90
THINK ABOUT IT?	90
ARE YOU THINKIN'?	90
THINK ABOUT IT!	91
ARE YOU THINKING ABOUT THIS?!	91
CHAPTER 16	92
HILARION: FOCUSING YOUR EMOTIONAL (HEART) DESIRES	92
1/25/97 HILARION	92
EMOTION IS ENERGY!	95
CHAPTER 17	98
THE STORY BEHIND THE EKKER HOUSE CASE	
by Rick Martin 5/10/95	98
CHAPTER 18	
THE TREASON OF "OUR" REPRESENTATIVES by V.K. Durham 1/6/97	
CHAPTER 19	
CONSTITUTIONAL LAW CENTER UPDATE by CLC Staff 1/27/97	109
JUDGE CLOBBERED FOR ORDERING MOTHER	
TO SPANK SON IN COURT	
STATE ADMONISHES KERN JUDGE	
CHAPTER 20	113
MORE SCARY TRUTH BEHIND MAN-CREATED BUGS	
by Rick Martin 2/4/97	
CHAPTER 21	
THE STORY OF OUR MONEY	
THE STORY OF OUR MONEY	124

CHAPTER 22		127
BLM REGULATIONS	GIVE MORE POWER 1	127

# CHAPTER 1

# THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 1/14/97

#### LAND-GRABBING SECRETS OF THE NATURE CONSERVANCY

From the *Insider's Report*, December 1996 issue, by Tom DeWeese, (quoting:)

Never heard of The Nature Conservancy? Well, that's probably no accident. It keeps a low profile by design. When you run scams like it does, you don't want to be notorious.

So let's lift the rock off these slugs and shine a very bright spotlight on a few of their most outrageous games.

The Nature Conservancy is the richest, most powerful environmental colossus in the world. It claims 680,000 individual members and 405 corporate members operating out of eight regional offices and fifty chapter offices across the nation. The nature conservancy has assets of almost \$1 Billion and has an annual operating budget of over \$300 million and a staff of 1150 people.

THE SCAM—real estate. THE HOOK—"conservation through private action." According to the party line, The Nature Conservancy simply buys land with private money and sets up nature reserves, thereby helping the environment without infringing on anybody. What a wonderful, charitable idea. Ah, if only it were true.

THE VICTIMS—unsuspecting property owners (many times elderly). THE METHODS—hide behind phony corporations; serve as a shill for government agencies; work behind the scenes with more visible environmental groups to intimidate property owners into selling. THE GOAL—money and power.

The Nature Conservancy frequently uses phony front companies to get land from owners who wouldn't knowingly sell to an environmentalist group.

It used this tactic to purchase most of the islands off the coast of Virginia, containing 40,000 acres and sixty miles of coastline. In doing so The Nature Conservancy was able to stop all private development and control the use of the land, damaging the tax base, killing thousands of jobs, and severely curbing the locals from hunting, fishing, camping and joy riding on the islands.

But don't think the purpose was to preserve these beautiful, pristine islands for nature. The Nature Conservancy did bar others from developing the land—but not itself. Far from it. At a huge profit, the Conservancy developed up-scale homes for the rich.

But how is that bad? If they do it with private money what's wrong with it? Isn't that just free

#### enterprise?

The problem is the Nature Conservancy is a non-profit organization with tax exempt status and they maintain that status because of their tightly protected image as benevolent conservationists. Moreover, property owners on the islands wanted to invest in development and thought they were selling their land to developers. They were aware of and frightened by The Nature Conservancy and would never have sold to the group. That's why the Conservancy hid behind a phony land company, grabbed power, foiled the development and made a huge profit on tax-exempt money. Today much of the coast of Virginia is off-limits to tourists and other development.

Other times, The Nature Conservancy acts as a shill to a government agency to acquire land cheaply and sell it to the government at a huge profit. Again, conservation is not the goal.

One of its favorite scams goes something like this. Your grandmother owns land close to a historic site or a wilderness area. The government wants the land to expand a park but grandmother won't sell.

One day a representative of The Nature Conservancy shows up, well dressed, smiling, but concerned. He tells your grandmother that he's just learned that the government intends to take her land after she passes away. She won't be able to sell it or give it to her children. However, he can offer a solution. If Grandmother will sell her land to The Nature Conservancy he can assure her that the land will stay in private hands and not be taken by the government.

Well, a relieved grandmother is much happier and she agrees to sell. However, says the nice man from The Nature Conservancy, because the government has threatened to take the land, its value is now only about half its reported market value. That's all he'll be able to pay her. Well, thinks grandmother, half is better than nothing, so she sells.

The next day our friend from The Nature Conservancy makes a call to the Department of the Interior informing them that their plan has worked. The whole thing had been prearranged between them before anyone ever knocked on Grandmother's door. As arranged, The Nature Conservancy then sells the land to the Interior Department FOR FULL MARKET VALUE PLUS OVERHEAD, FINANCING AND HANDLING CHARGES.

Hundreds of complaints have been recorded concerning the practices of the Conservancy's landgrabbing operation. One family in Indiana had to sue to get back their father's land that was signed over to The Nature Conservancy when he was very old and mentally incompetent to handle his affairs. Agents of the Conservancy had helped him in changing documents that left his entire estate to The Nature Conservancy. The family won back their property but only after being forced to spend a fortune in legal fees.

Unfortunately space allows only a minor look at the mammoth operation of The Nature Conservancy. Its power, wealth and control is almost beyond comprehension. Yet it is able to maintain an image of idealism and concern for the environment. The truth is The Nature Conservancy is really little more than a massive, ruthless real estate machine using its tax exempt status and ties to the government to create wealth for itself.

Draft? Draft? So, if ever you receive a knock on the door from a smiling representative of The Nature Conservancy, slam it in his face and rush to your neighbors to sound the alarm—or, the saying "there goes the neighborhood" could take on a completely different meaning. (End quoting)

Insider's Report American Policy Center 13873 Park Center Rd., #316 Herndon, VA 22071 (703)925-0881 email:apc@nicom.com

# BUSH WAS IN CHARGE, SAYS LT. COL. JAMES 'BO' GRITZ

Excerpted from THE NEW FEDERALIST, 12/16/96, [quoting:]

# Lt. James "Bo" Gritz

In the December issue of his *Center for Action Monthly Newsletter*, Lt. Col. James 'Bo' Gritz (ret.) wrote a public response confirming the accuracy of the Nov. 18 *New Federalist* article entitled "Uncovered Link of Bush-Run White House to L.A. Crack Cocaine Ring".

*The New Federalist* article reported on evidence linking a "privatized" National Security Council operation into the Blandon-Meneses drug ring in Los Angeles, which was the subject of the widely circulated *San Jose Mercury News* series on the crack-cocaine epidemic.

During a 1986 raid by the Los Angeles Sheriff's Department on properties used by the Blandon drug ring, one of the targets, Ronald J. Lister, told detectives that "his friends in Washington weren't going to like what was going on," and that he was going to call "Mr. Weekly of the CIA" and report the situation.

The Nov. 18 *New Federalist* wrote that Scott Weekly is a weapons expert and a close associate of Gritz, and that Gritz is a highly decorated former Green Beret who is well-known for his opposition to drug-trafficking. Gritz was prosecuted by the U.S. Government in the late 1980s after exposing U.S. Government ties into drug-smuggling in southeast Asia.

Weekly was part of Gritz's team, which made a number of U.S. Government-backed missions into Thailand, Laos, and Burma between 1982 and 1986 to determine if American POWs were still alive in Southeast Asia. Gritz has reported that he had formed a "private" team with the assistance of the DIA, CIA, and the Intelligence Support Activity (ISA). *The New Federalist* reported that the ISA was a secret Army special operations unit, involved in counter-terrorist activity and support for the Nicaraguan Contras, among other things.

In late October 1986, just before the Los Angeles Sheriff's Department raid on the Blandon drug ring, Gritz had been contacted by an NSC staff officer, Col. Thomas Harvey, and asked to go into the "Golden Triangle" area of Burma, to determine if there were American POWs there. Gritz told Harvey that he would need special documents to undertake such a mission. Harvey provided Gritz and Weekly with letters, one for Gritz on White House letterhead, and one for Weekly on National Security Council letterhead, stating that Gritz and Weekly were cooperating with the U.S. Government.

# "ISA WORKED FOR THE NSC"

In his newsletter column, Gritz acknowledges that Lister claimed to be working for the CIA for Scott Weekly, and he adds that the FBI had then said that Lister was in touch with "Scott Weekly of the DIA".

Gritz then writes: "The FBI never knew exactly who I was working for." Gritz indicates that he was working for ISA, and explains: The truth is that the initials "ISA" were above Top Secret to the point where CIA was our cover. ISA worked directly for the National Security Council.

Gritz then says that he initially worked for DIA, and was then transferred to J-5 (Strategic Plans and Policy) of the Joint Chiefs of Staff when his POW operations went into the field. "Toward the end it was ISA that picked up the effort." He describes how he was called into the White House by Admiral Bobby Inman, then Deputy Director of the CIA, just before the POW mission was taken away from ISA and given back to DIA.

Gritz continues: "It is no wonder the FBI had no idea who was actually carrying the ball! Scott Weekly never worked for DIA—he worked for me. *The New Federalist* goes on to describe my activities accurately with respect to the POW effort and the White House-Burma mission."

"Too bad *The New Federalist* reporters didn't bother to call me." Gritz then writes, "I could have straightened them out on the Weekly CIA/DIA point and given them a much stronger rope with which to hang George Bush."

"During the Contra War in Nicaragua, Vice President George Bush ran the illegal drugs-for-guns network out of this office."

Gritz says that Bush lied on national television when he denied ever having met Manuel Noriega. "That is a lie!" Gritz says, adding that Bush had Noriega on the CIA payroll, and that Noriega went twice to Washington to meet with Bush personally and even stayed at the Bush residence in D.C. Gritz says he was ordered to keep his hands off Noriega.

Gritz also says he was asked by a State Department official to evaluate and recommend "forcemultiplier' weapons that would strengthen the Contras in their guerrilla war against the Communist Sandanistas", and this is what he and Scott Weekly were doing. He adds that, while training the Afghan rebels, he and Weekly were paid by Stanford Technology, which he calls "Albert Hakhiem's CIA drug laundry", and he also says that Erich von Marbod and Richard Secord were selling weapons to Iran, Iraq, Libya and Saudi Arabia using Hakhiem as an agent. "Yes, *The New Federalist* is right," Gritz concludes, "but they have only discovered the tiniest tip of the iceberg."

# 'CIA' WAS THE COVER

When Gritz was finally reached by this news service, he confirmed and elaborated what he had written in his newsletter. Gritz disavowed any knowledge of a link between Weekly and Ron Lister, and said that Weekly only had a few contracts with the CIA, and that those were through Gritz. Gritz confirmed that he himself was actually working for the ISA. "It was identified, incorrectly, as a low-level Army intelligence effort," Gritz explained, but it really worked directly for the National Security Council. Otherwise, how in the hell could we have been doing all the weird things we were doing? And we used the CIA as a cover, when you had to get messages, and this kind of stuff."

"When I came on board," Gritz continued, "I was carefully briefed—'we are not under the CIA, we are not under Defense Intelligence; we work for the National Security Council."" He also said that ISA coordinated with the Joint Chiefs of Staff, which provided the "muscle" for ISA, using Delta Force Special Operations Forces.

*The New Federalist* article noted that Tom Harvey of the NSC had also been instrumental in setting up in Loudoun County, Virginia a "private" paramilitary unit called "ARGUS" (Armored Response Group U.S.). ARGUS equipment, including an armored personnel carrier, was on standby during the Oct. 6-7 1986 raid by federal, state, and local agents, on the offices of organizations associated with Lyndon LaRouche in Leesburg, Va.

Gritz told this news service that Harvey was actually working out of George Bush's office. "Harvey was the military adviser to Senator John Warner, and he was also of course in the NSC, working in the Vice President's Office—George Bush at the time," Gritz said. "Harvey was the Ollie North look-alike for George Bush." [End quoting]

I hope Maxine Waters, Congresswoman from L.A., can use this information to help her nail the cocaine criminals who helped to destroy her district—if she doesn't already have it. That's probably hoping for too much, knowing who controls the mechanics of how most politicians get into and stay in office. <u>However, maybe she will think about her people FIRST and really try to</u> make some changes for them.

# ABSTINENCE KEEPS STAFF SHIPSHAPE

Excerpted from THE WASHINGTON TIMES WEEKLY, 12/29/96, [quoting:]

After serving on all-male submarines and at confining desk jobs in Washington, Master Chief Petty Officer Gary Becker was stunned when he arrived for duty at the Navy hospital in Charleston, S.C.

Of 110 young enlisted women, 26 were pregnant.

"I never thought I would be dealing with this type of problem," said Chief Becker, who is married

with two daughters and became the hospital's top enlisted man in July 1995.

Today, Chief Becker cites different statistics: Two of his 77 young hospital corpswomen are pregnant.

What changed the behavior of men and women was an old-fashioned message that might not appear hip enough for today's twenty-something sailors, even in the conservative South.

"We talked about developing a lifelong, committed relationship, as we know it, marriage, and abstinence in the meantime," Chief Becker said. "It's certainly not the liberal philosophy today."

Aided by an outside counseling group, the hospital set up mandatory seminars on the benefits of celibacy before marriage.

Called the "Life Management Series," the Charleston project may be the only abstinence-based education program in the military.

With women serving in nearly all support and combat billets, pregnancies in the field and on ships form a statistic the Pentagon monitors as closely as re-enlistment rates.

Chief Becker began his program a year ago. The lesson plan included guest speakers: virgins; "secondary virgins," those who went from sexually active to celibate; and a couple married 50 years.

There was also a lecture on the financial burdens carried by single moms and dads.

"Guys aren't touchy-feely kind of folks," Chief Becker said. "They have to be spoken to by their wallets. The reality of life is young people don't often talk about the consequence and responsibility of parenting a child."

Anne Badgley is executive director of Heritage Community Services, the private counseling center that set up Chief Becker's program. She said in an interview that some sailors complained about the emphasis on abstaining from sex, but most offered praise. One woman, she said, left her live-in boyfriend after he refused to commit to marriage.

"Teaching abstinence to sailors is a challenge," Mrs. Badgley said, "We do know this is a bit of a strange message in this culture."

"But we believe we're on sort of a cutting-edge thing here, where society looks back at the last 30 years and examines the social experiment in sexual freedom and sees a lot of carnage, a lot of hurt people, a lot of hurt children."

Mrs. Badgley said she is hoping for a cultural change among the hospital staff. "Now people, instead of putting negative peer pressure on each other to become sexually active outside of marriage, the standard will be that you wait for marriage."

Chief Becker said the classes also talk about how to prepare for child care, in a segment called "Baby Boot Camp: A Pregnancy Support Group."

He said one woman lived in the women's enlisted quarters right up to her delivery date. She had given little thought to housing, day care or money.

"A lot of them got married because of the pregnancy," he said. "We want them to front-load the relationsip—marriage."

In what could be a trend for the whole Navy, more than 150 sailors have gone through pregnancy training at Charleston. Navy hospitals in Beauford, S.C., and Jacksonville, Fla., plan to start their own abstinence-centered programs.

Chief Becker said he has talked to Navy policy-makers in Washington, and none has criticized or attempted to change his approach.

"They thought it was kind of preachy," he said. "But I had a problem here that needed to get arrested. I think we have." [End quoting]

It sounds like a story of a man who saw a problem and wasn't going to turn his head and say I can't change these young people's way of thinking. **ARE YOU STILL SAYING, "I'M ONLY ONE AND CAN'T MAKE ANY CHANGES IN THIS WORLD?**" Why not take responsibility **by asking God** what **you** can do to change this world for the better?

# MAN THROWN 5 STORIES ONTO CONCRETE SURVIVES

Excerpted from THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 1/7/97, [quoting:]

A man survived a fall out of a fifth-story window in the Westlake area of Los Angeles after he was thrown out Monday by three reputed 18th Street Gang members, authorities said.

Police said the suspects had burst into the victim's apartment and were roughing up the man's wife when he tried to rescue her.

The 24-year-old man was hospitalized in stable condition after the 12:50 p.m. confrontation, said city Fire Department spokesman Brian Humphrey.

Humphrey said the man landed flat on the concrete below. He was being treated at Los Angeles County/USC Medical Center for abdominal injuries but had no broken bones, Humphrey said.

"This is an extremely fortunate individual," Humphrey said. "It is rare that a person would fall from such a height and survive." [End quoting]

Does anyone think this man would be alive without an **Angel's (God's) help**?

# NO GOOD DEED ....

#### From THE MODESTO BEE, 12/23/96, [quoting:]

Richard Nuccio has been repaid for his sense of duty by losing his security clearance and thus, for all practical purposes, his government career.

You may remember him as the State Department official who told a member of Congress that the Central Intelligence Agency had lied to a congressional intelligence oversight committee about covert operations in Guatemala.

The action by CIA chief John Deutch is indefensible.

Nuccio discovered the deception in the course of trying to help negotiate an end to Guatemala's civil war. He gave the information to a member of the House Intelligence Committee, Robert Torricelli (now elected senator), who was certainly entitled to the knowledge.

The evidence of CIA duplicity was damning: The agency knew, but denied, that one of its "assets", a Guatemalan colonel, had supervised the interrogation of a guerrilla leader who died in custody. Finally, it was Torricelli, not Nuccio, who publicly blew the whistle on the CIA and named the Guatemalan officer.

In an unprecedented action, Deutch overrode the State Department's one-year ban on Nuccio's access to classified material and revoked his security clearance entirely. Why? Because of the need to protect the identities of informants. Nothing, however, about the CIA's legal obligation to tell the truth to its own government.

Last month, before Deutch's action, 16 members of Congress wrote to President Clinton asking him to overrule the suspension of Nuccio's security clearance. The White House's bland response was that the case was being dealt with in accordance with the National Security Act. Then Deutch took his action.

When it's an agency of government that's guilty, such punitive action is excessive. It undermines the principle of accountability.

The president has the power to do the right thing and could save the career of a man who, by its own account, served his country well. Where is the president on this issue? [End quoting]

I think *CONTACT* readers know where the president is on this issue. <u>They hate, persecute and</u> <u>make examples of anyone who tells the truth.</u> <u>When are we going to stop these crooks and</u> <u>thieves?</u>

# EX-GOVERNOR OF ARKANSAS HAS A LIVER TRANSPLANT

# Excerpted from THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 12/26/96, [quoting:]

# CONVICTED FELON ex-Gov. Jim Guy Tucker

Former Arkansas Gov. Jim Guy Tucker, who was convicted of fraud and conspiracy in a Whitewaterrelated trial, received a new liver Wednesday, the Mayo Clinic said.

"Everything apparently has gone off as expected and he is in stable condition," hospital spokeswoman Priscilla Russell said after the four-hour operation.

Tucker, 53, had chronic liver disease and had been on a transplant waiting list for four months, Russell said.

She said the former governor is expected to be in the hospital for 6 to 10 days, followed by up to 8 weeks of recuperation in Rochester, where doctors would monitor his progress and watch for any signs of rejection.

The hospital didn't release information about the liver donor, but said the organ became available Wednesday, prompting the Christmas Day surgery.

"I am deeply grateful for the prayers and good wishes from home and for the willingness of the donor family to share this precious gift of life with me during a time of great tragedy for them," Tucker said in a statement.

Tucker was spared a prison term because of his health but sentenced to four years probation, and resigned from office on July 15.

A judge released him from home detention so he could move to Rochester to await the transplant.

Tucker was convicted May 28 along with James McDougal and his ex-wife Susan McDougal, the former partners of President Clinton and Hillary Rodham Clinton in the Whitewater land deal in Arkansas. The three were accused of fraudulently obtaining and using federally backed loans.

His attorneys filed an appeal last month seeking to overturn his conviction. The appeal claims that there wasn't enough evidence to support the convictions, that prosecutors defamed Tucker unfairly, and that a juror shouldn't have been allowed to serve on the panel.

He also faces trial on a separate indictment accusing him and two other men of plotting to hide profits from a multimillion-dollar cable television deal.

Tucker's attorney failed to persuade the courts that Whitewater independent counsel Kenneth Starr exceeded his authority in bringing the charges, which resulted from the special prosecutor's probes of the financial dealings of Clinton, Tucker's predecessor as governor.

Tucker, a Democrat, is a lawyer who became state attorney general at 29, and at 33 was elected to Congress. He lost races for governor and the Senate before becoming Clinton's lieutenant governor, serving out his term and being elected on his own. [End quoting]

### I wonder if he ever gives a thought about ordering Richard Snell's murder??

# STICKS AND STONES

From GUIDEPOSTS, P.O. Box 1479, Carmel, NY 10512, [quoting:]

"Chris, you are so stupid." The words tumbled out of 15-year-old Jeff's mouth just as carelessly as the slurp he made while leaning over his cereal bowl. Chris, 12, rattled the sports page. "Mom, tell him I'm right. He's such a loser," Jeff said.

*Loser, dummy, stupid...* I had quoted *Proverbs 12:18* to my sons so many times: "Thoughtless words can wound as deeply as any sword..."(*Good News Bible*). How often did I have to lecture on their name-calling?

An answer came that night at Chris' Little League game. From the first pitch the game was going our way. The score was 15-1 when something changed. A ball soared high into center field. Chris, number 11, squinted into the lights. Jeff and I held our breath, watching from the stands. The ball dropped—four inches short of Chris' outstretched glove. He scooped the ball off the grass and fired it to second base. "Safe!" the umpire bellowed. Then from somewhere in the gallery I heard a voice yell, "Way to show 'em how to catch, Number Eleven!"

Chris' head dropped as the next batter came up. A piddling grounder grazed off his bat. The first baseman missed it. The voice bellowed, "Come on! Get in the game!" Our defense split wide open. The other team scored a run. With each play, the same voice chided our players. In one inning, the other team managed to put 12 runs across the plate.

On the way home Chris slumped in the backseat. "All those mess-ups started when I missed that pop fly. I felt like an idiot."

Suddenly it dawned on me. "No, Chris. Something else happened. Remember that guy yelling after you missed it?

"Yeah", Jeff added, "He started in on every kid on the field."

"And he was supposedly on our side," Chris said.

"Mom's right", Jeff said. "That guy's put-downs almost lost us the game."

I had to bite my tongue to keep a sermon from rolling off it. It was good to hear the boys talking like brothers.

The next day at lunch, Chris stuck his hand into the oven to take out a pizza. "Ow!" he shouted, drawing back.

Jeff said, "Pull out the oven rack, stupid."

As I opened my mouth to deliver the same old tired speech, I noticed Chris' head cocked, eyebrows raised.

"I mean," Jeff said, "I'm sorry you burned your hand."

Then I shared a pizza with a couple of winners who are trying to live on the positive side of *Proverbs 12:18:* "...but wisely spoken words can heal." —Karen Barber, Augusta, Georgia [End quoting]

If we all paid <u>very close attention</u> to these words this world would change <u>drastically—OVER-</u><u>NIGHT.</u>

### CHAPTER 2

# THE UNTOLD HISTORY OF AMERICA <u>PART XV OF A SERIES</u> by Ray Bilger 1/8/97

Editor's note: Part I of this bold series was presented in the 8/13/96 issue of CONTACT; Part II was presented in the 8/20/96 issue; Part III was presented in the 8/27/96 issue; Part IV was presented in the 9/10/96 issue; Part VI was presented in the 9/10/96 issue; Part VI was presented in the 9/17/96 issue; Part VIII was presented in the 9/24/96 issue; Part VIII was presented in the 10/1/96 issue; Part IX was presented in the10/8/96 issue; Part X was presented in the10/15/96 issue; Part XI was presented in the 10/22/96 issue; Part XII was presented in the 11/5/96 issue; Part XIII was presented in the 11/26/96 issue; Part XIII was presented in the 11/26/96 issue; Part XIV was presented in the 11/26/96 issue; Part XIV was presented in the 11/26/96 issue.

Chief Seattle of the Dwamish tribe of the Pacific Northwest surrendered his land to the White Man in 1855 in the Port Elliott Treaty, thereby dooming his people to the confinement of reservation life. At the signing of the treaty, he made the following speech, (quoting:)

My people are few. They resemble the scattering trees of a storm-swept plain... There was a time when our people covered the land as the waves of a wind-ruffled sea cover its shell-paved floor, but that time long since passed away with the greatness of tribes that are now but a mournful memory...

To us the ashes of our ancestors are sacred and their resting place is hallowed ground. You wander far from the graves of your ancestors and seemingly without regret. Your religion was written on tablets of stone by the iron finger of your God so that you could not forget. The Red Man could never comprehend nor remember it. Our religion is the traditions of our ancestors—the dreams of our old men, given them in the solemn hours of night by the Great Spirit, and the visions of our Chiefs, and is written in the hearts of our people.

Your dead cease to love you and the land of their nativity as soon as they pass the portals of the tomb and wander away beyond the stars. They are soon forgotten and never return. Our dead never forget the beautiful world that gave them being...

When the last Red Man shall have perished, and the memory of my tribe shall have become a myth among the White Man, these shores will swarm with the invisible dead of my tribe, and when your children's children think themselves alone in the field, the store, the shop, or in the silence of the pathless woods, they will not be alone... At night when the streets of your cities and villages are silent and you think them deserted, they will throng with the returning hosts that once filled them and still love this beautiful land. The White Man will never be alone.

Let him be just and deal kindly with my people, for the dead are not powerless. Dead, I say? There is no death. Only a change of worlds. (End quoting)

Chief Seattle is correct about the returning hosts. And he is correct in stating that there is no death. Those who know and understand this realize that there is only transition, and not termination. Yet wars have brought much "death", and as the decades since World War II have unfolded, the Elite Controllers have exercised less and less respect for individual lives. Consequently, more and more individuals were eliminated (deaded) as they were perceived to be threats against the Elite's corrupt world system. In the 1960s alone, John F. Kennedy, "patsy" Lee Harvey Oswald, "expendable" Jack Ruby, Robert F. Kennedy and Martin Luther King come to mind as obvious examples of this. However, for each of these, there are many others who go unrecognized, who died of everything from knowing too much, to overdosing on heroin, to tripping on L.S.D. and jumping out of windows, thinking they could fly (like Art Linkletter's daughter), to being the victims of the Elite's Vietnam War.

The killing also included underworld figures of Mafia families, as they battled for power and control over the business in America's cities and the drug and prostitution industries that flourished there.

Some have contended that the heroin epidemic that plagued America's city streets in the decades following World War II was due in part to our Cold War crusade. This is, in some measure, no doubt true, but it might be more accurate to say that the proliferation of heroin, and all drugs for that matter, into America's streets was and is part of a much larger overall plan to destroy America's youth and, as a consequence, America's future!

Just after the conclusion of World War II, from 1946 to 1954, the French maintained control over Vietnam, shipping morphine (a derivative of opium) from Saigon directly to Marseille, France. It was there that the morphine was processed into heroin, with significant quantities destined for America's cities. The Central Intelligence Agency (C.I.A.) was instrumental in wresting control of Vietnam from the French in 1954. The C.I.A.'s Colonel Edward Lansdale (later to become General Lansdale, implicated by Col. Fletcher Prouty as having been instrumental in the assassination of J.F.K.) played a primary role in the operation.

Interestingly, on July 21, 1954, the "Final Settlement" conference on Indochina held in Geneva, Switzerland, prohibited the introduction of foreign troops, arms and munitions into Vietnam. With Vietnam under United States control, the C.I.A. was well on its way to becoming the largest drug dealer in the world!

As the demand for heroin increased, Southeast Asia met the demand. What has become known as the Golden Triangle (eastern Burma, northern Thailand, and northern Laos) became by 1967 the world's largest source of heroin, which was then being manufactured from morphine in the same area. Although Americans would be told that the Vietnam War was fought to halt the spread of Communism, the real reason was for heroin, for the irresistible profits to be reaped by a handful of powerful defense contractors and oil companies and ultimately to control the people through fear of a perceived enemy.

John Stockwell, who was the C.I.A. Officer-in-Charge of Tay Ninh Province of Vietnam from 1973 to 1975, stated unequivocally that the way it worked was that military pilots flew many American generals with suitcases full of heroin from northern Thailand down to Bangkok or to Saigon, and there they helped to escort the generals through customs and onto flights to the United States. The

heroin would bring enormous profits to a few, while destroying America's youth.

The Italian Mafia had gotten its start in America in the late 1800s as Italians immigrated to this country. America offered endless opportunities for the Mob to prosper, whether the nation was at peace or at war. By the 1950s, the government was beginning to show some real interest in correcting this problem. No doubt this was due to public opposition to Mob activities (even though there has always been some mystique that surrounds stories about the Mafia).

In February of 1950, President Truman's Attorney General, J. Howard McGrath, heard the cry and responded by calling a Conference on Organized Crime. The result of the conference was a general agreement that the government should not encroach on the responsibility and authority of local officials. Other committees followed shortly thereafter, which had a profound impact on the public because nationwide television, then in its infancy, had seized the opportunity to fill many hours of airtime with the hearings.

By 1955, a Senate Subcommittee on Improvements in the Federal Criminal Code held hearings around the country, looking into Federal laws on narcotics trafficking. The outcome was mandatory minimum sentences of 5 years for the first offense and 10 years for the second. Suddenly, the previous practice of fixing the judge would no longer work—he was now bound by law to hand out no less than the minimum sentence.

It immediately became obvious to organized crime that the risk now involved with narcotics was no longer worth the reward. Thus, the Mafia began its slow withdrawal from the narcotics business. Some of the younger men still found the enormous profits appealing enough to take the chance of arrest.

Knowing that dealing in drugs is one of the top five money-making transactions in the world, the question arises—was all of this a concerted effort from the very highest levels of the World Controllers to take the drugs out of the hands of the Mafia (who were, in essence, small-time compared to those who run the world) and make an agency of the U.S. Government, the C.I.A., the number one drug dealer in the world? After all, by 1954 the C.I.A. was controlling Southeast Asia, the new source of heroin!!

Early in 1957, yet another congressional committee began a probe into Mob activities. The Senate Select Committee on Improper Activities in the Labor or Management Field was composed of such notables as John F. Kennedy of Massachusetts (his brother, Robert F. Kennedy, was Chief Counsel of the Committee), Barry Goldwater of Arizona, and Joseph R. McCarthy of Wisconsin. But the committee found that, even though they could get big headlines, labor racketeering was even harder to do something about!

The decade of the 1950s saw the real development of what would become known as the militaryindustrial complex. This complex included (and was actually dependent upon), of course, the U.S. Congress. The Congress, the U.S. Military, and the defense contractors were in a cozy relationship to keep America well armed against a perceived (fabricated?) Communist threat. These elements became more and more intertwined as military officers, upon retiring, moved directly into major positions within the defense manufacturing corporations they had had relations with while they were still in the military. In fact, a Senate report showed that the one hundred largest defense contractors, who held 67% of all military contracts, employed more than two thousand former high-ranking officers of the military. Doesn't that sound like a conflict of interest? Sadly, this situation only became worse as time went on.

Meanwhile, in the area of economic aid to foreign countries, the major expenditures by the U.S. were designed to build up military power in so-called "non-Communist" countries. Between 1952 and 1962, of the \$50 billion in aid granted by the United States to ninety countries, only \$5 billion, or 10%, was for nonmilitary economic development. In essence, during the decade of the 1950s, 90% of our economic aid to foreign countries was for military purposes. Things haven't really changed in this area either. This brilliantly designed policy armed the ninety countries who were the recipients of our foreign aid so that they could fight against each other, thereby providing some justification for the existence of the United Nations. This gave the U.N. something to do as it worked out its agenda of implementing a One World Government.

In 1954, the Census Act was passed by Congress, creating the Census Bureau. From that year forward each and every Citizen of the United States of America would be counted and known. Is it a coincidence that the "Internal Revenue Code of 1954" was enacted the same year?

In October of 1956, President Dwight D. Eisenhower stated that, "The continuance of the present rate of H-bomb (Hydrogen Bomb) testing... does not imperil the health of humanity." The fact of the matter, however, seems to indicate that it was becoming well known that the damage to humans from atomic radiation and radioactive fallout was quite substantial. The announcement by the president appears to have been pure doublespeak designed to make the public believe what he said. And the public must have liked what Ike said because he was re-elected one month later, in November of 1956, by a landslide. Then, in August of 1957, the Atomic Energy Commission (A.E.C.) was created. One month later, in September, the A.E.C. oversaw the first underground detonation of an atomic device near Las Vegas, Nevada. If the explosions were so safe, as Ike had said, why were they now being conducted underground???

In 1958, the Eisenhower Government sent thousands of Marines to Lebanon to insure that the pro-American government there was not toppled by a revolution. (The international oil companies also appreciated the visible armed presence in the area.) Things would be a bit different in Cuba.

Of course, the hunt for Communists under every woodpile continued unabated. After all, we were in the midst of a Cold War. On June 30, 1958, the Supreme Court upheld the constitutionality of firing a subway conductor for refusing to reveal if he was a member of the Communist Party. On June 8, 1959, the Supreme Court upheld the right of Congress and the individual states to investigate Communism. And three months later, on September 14, 1959, the Landrum-Griffin Act was passed, which prohibited Communists from holding union office. America's Cold War policy was designed to permit us to exercise more aggressive actions abroad, while allowing more repressive actions at home.

A short ninety miles south of Miami, Florida lies the beautiful island nation of Cuba. For years the

Cuban economy had been dominated by United States corporate interests. American companies controlled 80-100% of Cuba's utilities, mines, cattle ranches and oil refineries. They controlled 40% of the sugar industry and 50% of the public railways. Havana, with its exciting night life, prostitution and gambling (and the obvious Mafia connections), was a very popular party destination for the Elite. Cuba's American-backed dictator was Fulgencio Batista.

The overwhelming control of their country by foreigners didn't make the Cuban people very happy. Imagine if that kind of control existed in America—would you like it? (It's actually worse in America, but most don't realize it.) In 1953 (one year before the C.I.A. coup that overthrew the government of Guatemala), a young Cuban attorney organized a bold assault against Fort Moncada, the island's second largest military base. The young attorney and his 150 followers were unsuccessful, but they gained vast public recognition and sympathy from Cubans for their bravery and patriotism. That brave attorney was imprisoned and released two years later. His name was Fidel Castro.

The United States Government created Fidel Castro through our very support of the American and multinational corporations which raped the island nation for their own benefit. In other words, those who make living conditions intolerable make revolutionary change inevitable! At a certain point the Cuban people said enough is enough, and they only needed a leader who represented and focused the popular discontent into a full-fledged revolutionary movement. And that leader was Fidel Castro.

In America today we can see there has been the same sort of development of an intolerable situation for the American people. But here the situation has been made increasingly more intolerable for quite some time through systems and means for mind controlling the masses which, until now, have contained the situation without allowing it to explode. One cannot, however, expect the intolerable situation in America to remain contained forever, and the time for change appears to have arrived. Let us hope we have a revolution in understanding, an Awakening, if you will, for anything less will probably result in even more brutal repression of Americans.

Fidel Castro went to Mexico and met with the famous Argentine revolutionary leader Che Guevara, and then returned to Cuba in 1956. Castro fought guerrilla warfare from the jungles and mountains against Batista's army. The revolutionary movement drew more and more popular support. Castro's forces finally marched across Cuba in late 1958, gaining support all the way, and marched right into Havana on January 2, 1959. The Batista Government collapsed.

Cuba is no paradise on Earth, but it now stands in marked contrast to the rest of Latin America, where U.S.-installed military dictatorships are the common form of government. Cuban life expectancy in 1959 was 55 years of age. By 1984 it was 73 years. Infant mortality is now the lowest in Latin America, and is on a par with developed countries. Cuba's per capita food consumption is the second highest in Latin America. Cuba has a free public health system (something we still don't have in America). The literacy rate is over 95%, the highest in Latin America and higher than in the United States of America. The government confiscated over a million acres of land from three American companies, including United Fruit, and gave the peasants their own farms. There are no hungry children begging in the streets, as there are in so many other Latin American countries.

Didn't your history books tell you this? The Cubans who do not like Castro are the extremely wealthy who can no longer steal from the people.

No wonder Fidel Castro is so highly respected by the peoples of Latin America. And no wonder the U.S. Government must condemn him so viciously. How dare he take control of his own country and give it back to the people! Doesn't Castro understand that the Elite One World Controllers are supposed to be running the world?

Since U.S. Government policy is to control countries it deems should be subservient to us, our response was predictable. The Good Neighbor Policy would not apply to Cuba. When Cuba nationalized the holdings of U.S. companies, the U.S. retaliated with an economic boycott, cutting off trade, and commercial and military relations. The U.S. was acting like a spoiled child; if Cuba wasn't going to play our game our way, then we would take our toys and go home.

Castro clearly stated, "Cubans shall own Cuba, and Cubans shall dictate what becomes of the resources and wealth on the island." He also quickly armed the populace, formed civilian militias, and carried out the basic reforms in education and housing that would give Cubans a material and moral stake in their own revolution. When it came to taking over the King Ranch, whose thousands of acres were located in eastern Cuba, the ranch manager stated, "You can't do this, you know. You are taking away property of U.S. citizens, and every time that has happened, the U.S. Marines come in and get it back. And that's the way it's going to be again." Well, that is the way Marine Corps Major General Smedley Butler did it many times in the earlier part of this century, on behalf of the big banks, but it would not happen that way again in Cuba.

Prior to the revolution, the U.S. had absorbed more than half of Cuba's exports. After the revolution there were no markets in the U.S. and the Soviet Union immediately moved in to buy up Cuban exports. Cuba asked the International Monetary Fund for money to finance its programs. The I.M.F. demanded strict "stabilization" conditions which would have undermined the very revolutionary program that had brought the changes in the first place. Cuba could see the writing on the wall and declined the I.M.F. conditions. When Cuba signed a trade agreement with the Soviet Union, this only further infuriated the U.S. Government. In the spring of 1960, President Eisenhower secretly authorized the C.I.A. to arm and train anti-Castro Cuban exiles in Guatemala for a future invasion of Cuba!

Meanwhile, in 1960, America was in the midst of a presidential election campaign between the Republican Richard Nixon, who was Eisenhower's Vice President, and the young and progressive Senator from Massachusetts, John F. Kennedy. The 1960 presidential elections could well be called the first of the modern elections in America because of the use of television (that up-and-coming great tool for mind controlling the masses) to nationally broadcast Presidential Debates for the first time, and because of things like jet airliners which allowed a candidate to be able to make appearances on both coasts in the same day. The people thought they were getting more information, but they were really getting more controlled. All of this, of course, is given secondary consideration to the fact that the Elite One World Controllers fund both candidates, so that no matter who "wins", it's their man!!!

A series of four televised debates were scheduled. "By mutual agreement of the two candidates, rules were established governing the debates." In all four confrontations, news reporters would ask questions. (Remember, John Swinton of the *New York Times* had already said in 1953 that [main-stream] journalists were intellectual prostitutes, distorting the truth.) Critics argued that the discussions "failed to get below the surface of the issues" and "tended to leap from one question to another." But the televised debates were unprecedented in the history of American politics and proved so effective in capturing the public's interest with distracting, mindless non-issues that they have been continued ever since.

United States policy with respect to Cuba was one of the sharpest issues in the campaign. Kennedy said in response to a question that the U.S. should assist and encourage the anti-Castro elements in Cuba. Nixon declared that this was irresponsible policy and represented a unilateral action which would soon lose us the friendship of all Latin American countries. Could Vice President Nixon really have been unaware that his president (Eisenhower) had secretly authorized the training of anti-Castro elements? Or was he merely misleading the public, intentionally?

In February of 1960, Kennedy contended that there was a "missile gap" with the Russians, wherein we were allegedly behind in numbers of missiles. He used this as a major campaign issue, claiming that we needed to build up our missile stockpiles. One year later, in February of 1961, President Kennedy's Secretary of Defense, Robert McNamara, would admit that there was no "missile gap" after all. The American public was becoming accustomed to being lied to!!

Nixon's campaign was, to a great extent, defensive in that he spent considerable time replying to Kennedy's attacks. In the end, Kennedy defeated Nixon in one of the closest popular votes in American history, by a margin of only 113,057 votes, or less than one-sixth of 1 per cent.

At age 43, Senator Kennedy (who had been a millionaire before he was 20) became the youngest man ever elected President of the United States of America. The situation with Cuba was building to a climax, as the U.S. considered Cuban conduct unacceptable. What we were about to do would aptly be considered a fiasco in the eyes of the rest of the world!

# ....To be continued

# ADDITIONAL INFORMATION SOURCES

1- *The Politics of Heroin in Southeast Asia, 1972*, by Alfred W. McCoy (Harper & Row Publishers, New York). This out-of-print book may be difficult to obtain. It tells the story of the fabled Golden Triangle, the major source of heroin, tracing its history since the end of World War II, and includes the activities of governments and intelligence agencies.

2- *Mafia*, *U.S.A.*, *1972*, by Nicholas Gage (Playboy Press, Chicago). This book tells the whole story of the Mafia (up until 1972), describing in detail the history of the Society and how it functions with respect to business and government. The Mafia's ultimate bargaining point is murder!

#### CHAPTER 3

#### HITLER'S EUROPE: WELCOME TO THE SHOW by David Icke 1/9/97

A prison is being built in Europe, day after day. A vast human prison which encompasses every man, woman, and child on the continent.

Prisons are usually constructed by architects, bricklayers, and carpenters, but this one is being built by actors. They play out their roles in a grotesque movie under the direction of the global business and financial Elite, and in the final scene the prison door will slam shut on what is left of freedom in the landmass of Europe.

This prison has a name. It is called the European Union.

The actors have names, too. They are the famous politicians, government officials, and financiers who read their scripts on the television news as they "debate" the rights and wrongs of a European superstate, controlled by a single currency and a European Central Bank. It is a game, played out to manipulate the public mind and to install Hitler's Europe 50 years later.

Adolf Hitler had a design for Europe had he won the Second World War. He called his "vision" the Europaische Wirtschaftsgemeinschaft and it translates as the European Economic Community— the very name for stage one of the European fascist/communist dictatorship, now known as the European Union.

It has been created by the two most effective of the mass mind-controlling techniques. I call them problem-reaction-solution and the stepping stones approach. The Elite-engineered Second World War (problem) led to an understandable public reaction (something must be done to stop another war in Europe), and this led to the Elite "solution" to an Elite-inspired "problem"—the creation of the European Economic Community (EEC or Common Market) and the United Nations.

The EEC was sold to the people as a means of stopping war. You bring the countries of Europe together economically and make them interdependent, and they will stop fighting each other. But all along, the Elite knew what they really had in mind—the centralized European dictatorship called the European Union.

This is where the stepping stones approach came in. Over the decades since the formation of the original EEC, the agenda has moved on year after year as more powers have been taken piece by piece from nation states and handed to the unelected European dictators in Brussels. We have now reached the point where national law is subordinate to European law.

For example, the United Kingdom Government no longer has the power to remove taxation on heating fuels for the poor and aged because European law has decided that it must be at least 5% in all member states of the Union. And the British still think they are free!!

The transformation of Europe into a massive, centralized dictatorship is a key part of the New

World Order agenda for centralized control of the planet. The Elite who dominate the global financial and political system are seeking to impose a world government, central bank and currency, which would oversee and dictate the policies of the three groupings of superstates.

These are planned to be the European Union, the American Union (to be evolved out of the North American Free Trade Agreement to include the whole of the Americas), and the Pacific Union (to be evolved out the Asia-Australia "free trade area" known as APEC). Nation states would be little more than local councils to this vast structure of global control. Indeed most nation states would be broken up into regions to further diminish the chances of effective resistance.

# New World Order World Division Chart

Behind the creation of the European Union is the Bilderberg Group, the deeply secretive cartel of leading bankers, transnational corporations, politicians, academics and "opinion formers", media bosses, and military chiefs. The Bilderberg Group is part of a network including the Royal Institute of International Affairs (UK), the Council on Foreign Relations (USA) and the Trilateral Commission (USA, Europe, Japan). All work to the same agenda.

One of the main goals of the Bilderberg Group from its official formation at the Hotel Bilderberg in Oosterbeek, Holland, in May 1954, was to install a European superstate with a central bank and currency, exactly along the lines now quite obviously unfolding.

The first chairman of the Bilderberg Group (Bil) was Prince Bernhard of the Dutch royal family and a close friend and associate of Britain's Prince Philip, a Bilderberg attendee. The current chairman is the former Secretary-General of NATO and British Foreign Secretary, Lord Carrington, an Elite gofer and bosom-buddy of the Rothschilds and Henry Kissinger.

As I explained in detail in *And the Truth Shall Set You Free*, Prince Bernhard was a major influence behind the creation of the Bilderberg Group and the European Community, now the European Union. So was the Pole, Joseph Retinger who, in turn, was a leading force in the formation of the Bilderberg Group. Also involved were infamous American Elite frontmen like the Rockefellers, Averill Harriman and the Dulles brothers. The European Union we see today has been designed from the very beginning by those who control the Bilderberg Group—the House of Rothschild, the Rockefellers, and the "blue blood" families (tribes) of Europe.

Look at the major voices calling for the European superstate and invariably you will be looking at a Bilderberger. The classic example is Mr. Federal Europe, Chancellor Kohl of Germany, who issues daily calls for a single bank and currency as he seeks to complete the vision of centralized European control which one of his predecessors, Adolf Hitler, once sought to impose.

Another major influence in the imposition of the European dictatorship is the President of the European Commission, Jacques Santer, the Bilderberger who sits atop the enormous European Union bureaucracy which tells "elected" governments what they can and cannot do.

If we take the example of the UK, you can see the constant hidden hand of the Bilderbergers and the

Elite in the manipulation of the European "debate". The man behind the UK's entry into the European spider's web (sorry, the EEC) was Bilderberger Ted Heath, the Conservative Prime Minister from 1970-74. He is still today a constant promoter of a federal Europe. One of his fellow signatories when the UK joined the EEC in 1972 was Lord Hume (Sir Alec Douglas Hume), another former British Prime Minister and, for a time, chairman of the Bilderberg Group.

The head of Ted Heath's policy unit was Lord Victor Rothschild, one of the great manipulators of the 20th century, a super spy, a major force in the creation and development of Israel, and a man I name in *And the Truth Shall Set You Free* [*see box on previous page*] as a key player in the assassination of John F. Kennedy. One of Ted Heath's close associates, Douglas Hurd, would later become the British Foreign Secretary who signed the Maastricht Treaty which turned the EEC into the European Union and massively advanced the Elite agenda.

The "opposition" Labour Party is just another aspect of the UK's One Party State. While Ted Heath (Bil) was taking the UK into the EEC, he was supported by another Victor Rothschild associate, the Labour leader and three-times Prime Minister, Harold Wilson, a fellow Bilderberger. Further Labour Party support came from leading figures like the Bilderbergers, James Callaghan, who would later be Prime Minister, Denis Healey, who attended the first Bilderberg meeting in 1954 and a stream of those that followed, and Roy Jenkins, who would later be head of the European Commission. The leaders of Britain's third party, the Liberals, at the time of Heath and Wilson were Jo Grimond...yes, a Bilderberger...and Jeremy Thorpe, author of a book, *Europe: The Case For Going In*.

Appropriately, all of those people, except for Callaghan, were the products of the Elite's UK production line, better known as Oxford University. This is a massive recruiting and conditioning centre, not just for British youngsters, but also for the overseas students like Bill Clinton, who attend Oxford under the Rhodes Scholarship scheme set up by that arch manipulator of the Elite agenda Cecil Rhodes.

Today, the situation is just the same. Bilderbergers everywhere.

The Chancellor of the Exchequer, Kenneth Clarke, who is pressing for the UK to join a single European currency, is a Bilderberger. When the lame duck Prime Minister, John Major, attended a European Union Summit in Dublin at the end of 1996 to discuss moves to a federal Europe, he was flanked by two Bilderbergers: Kenneth Clarke, and the Foreign Secretary, Malcom Riftkind. Clarke's number two man at the helm of UK economic policy is another Bilderberger, William Waldegrave, the Chief Secretary to the Treasury, who served under Lord Victor Rothschild in Ted Heath's policy unit. He is very close to the Rothschild family.

The Labour Party leader and likely next Prime Minister of the UK is Tony Blair, a Bilderberger and Elite "chosen one". Blair attended the 1993 Bilderberg meeting in Greece with his "opponent", the Conservative Chancellor Kenneth Clarke. During his 1996 visit to the United States, Blair met a series of Elite frontmen, including Bill Clinton, Hillary Clinton, Henry Kissinger, Alan Greenspan, head of the Federal Reserve, and George Suros, the global financial manipulator who operates under orders from the House of Rothschild. All of them are Bilderbergers.

Blair's number two in the UK Labour Party is the shadow chancellor Gordon Brown, yet another

Bilderberger. The Liberal Democrats are led by Bilderberger Paddy Ashdown, who replaced Bilderberger David Steel. Both support a federal Europe.

Within a year of Blair attending the Bilderberg bash in Greece, he was leading the Labour Party, following the sudden death of Bilderberger John Smith. I still do not believe that Smith's death by a "heart attack" was from natural causes. Blair was elected to replace Smith, with massive support from the media, including the newspapers of the Elite yes-man, Rupert Murdoch. From the moment Blair took over, all hell broke loose in John Major's Conservative Government. Leaks, rows, and scandals were unleashed to create chaos and disarray, and to send the government's opinion poll ratings plummeting. Blair is now well ahead in the polls, with the next General Election very close.

Interestingly, exactly the same happened when Margaret Thatcher, another Bilderberger and Elite chosen one, became Conservative opposition leader in 1975. From then on the Labour Government was thrown into turmoil by strikes and internal upheavals. Thatcher won the election in 1979 and, with Ronald Reagan, carried out the Elite agenda through the 1980s. She was kept in power by the continued self destruction within the Labour Party, not least when four leading Labour names broke away to form their own party, the SDP. Three of these four, Lord (Roy) Jenkins, Lord (David) Owen, and Bill Rogers, either were, or would later become, Bilderbergers.

The next election in the UK is vital to the Elite because they want to ensure that the winner will take the country into the single European currency and the European Central Bank. They know that Bilderberger Blair and his Bilderberger financial sidekick Gordon Brown will do that. Hence the events to promote their victory. Stories in UK newspapers suggest that Blair will be advised on his election strategy by George Stephanopoulos, the Bilderberger who has helped his fellow Rhodes scholar Bill Clinton win two U.S. elections.

Which of the Bilderberg frontmen know what is going on and which are being used and manipulated without their full knowledge is difficult to say and this will vary from person to person. But some of them know exactly what they are doing and why.

Even the "opposition" to the European Superstate in the UK leads us to the same names, organizations, and agenda. The financier and born-again environmentalist, Sir James Goldsmith, has launched a Referendum Party to press for a referendum to stop the further centralization of Europe. Sounds good, but hold on a minute. Goldsmith is a cousin of the Rothschild dynasty, which has been seeking the centralization of power in Europe for a long, long time. He is also a close friend of the global manipulator, drug runner, mass murderer, and pedophile, called George Bush, a leading advocate of the New World Order. Goldsmith has been involved in a stream of deals and Elite operations to advance the New World Order design for the planet.

And he wants to stop a Federal Europe? Pardon? You must be joking! What he wants to do, of course, is highjack the anti-federal Europe opposition and ensure it is led to glorious failure while, at the same time helping to split the Conservative vote at the election and make a Blair win even more likely. This is precisely what the Elite frontman Ross Perot has done for Bill Clinton in the last two U.S. presidential elections.

Two other leading "opponents" of a federal Europe, John Redwood and Norman Lamont, also have interesting backgrounds. Redwood, who challenged John Major for the Conservative Party leader-ship in 1995, left Oxford University to join the N.M. Rothschild banking operation in London and, while still employed by the Rothschilds, he became policy advisor to Margaret Thatcher (Bil).

Lamont, a former Conservative Chancellor, is a director of N.M. Rothschild. Norman "Save our Sovereignty" Lamont attended the Bilderberg meeting at Brugenstock in Switzerland in June 1995 with Emma Rothschild, the daughter of the infamous Lord Victor Rothschild. Days after attending a meeting of the organization that has been imposing a European superstate for more than 50 years, Lamont was sitting by the side of John Redwood opposing just such a superstate. Something not quite right here.

So Jimmy, John, and Norm oppose the Superstate, eh? Sure you do, lads. Sure you do.

Like I said at the start, the European prison is being built by actors, playing their parts, reading their scripts, and saying anything necessary to dupe the people.

When the European Central Bank opens in Frankfurt (Hitler's choice, no doubt!), the economies of Europe and the new Euro Currency will be officially controlled by bankers. The Maastricht Treaty, which has already been signed, says that the currency and central bank will be controlled by six unelected bankers with an eight-year guaranteed period of office. And, as the Treaty says, no one will be allowed to influence or overrule the decisions of those bankers.

Also, all gold and currency reserves currently owned by the nation states of Europe will come under the control of these bankers in Frankfurt, and there is no provision in the Treaty for them to be returned should a country wish to pull out.

Yes, welcome to Hitler's Europe. Created in the minds of deeply disturbed, often mind-controlled people, and made physical by the purveyors of bullshit that we allow to grasp the reigns of power.

In truth, my friends, what I have just described, is OUR creation. A few can only control the world because the human race has allowed it to happen. The collective mind has been conditioned to see the world as the Elite wish us to see it. It is a mind full of naiveté and nonsense, with buckets of sand always at the ready.

If we bury our heads and stick our "bums" in the air, maybe it will all just go away, eh! Er, no. You don't want a European fascist dictatorship? You don't want a world fascist state? Good. But it won't just go away if you sit there. It will only be stopped if you open your mind, open your mouth, and get off your arse.

Come on, human race—for your children's sake if not our own. This is wakey, wakey time.

—DAVID ICKE, AUTHOR OF TEN BOOKS, INCLUDING THE LATEST, *AND THE TRUTH SHALL SET YOU FREE*, AND *I AM ME*.

# CHAPTER 4

#### A TIP OF THE ICEBERG by V.K. Durham 12/21/96

I know, I know, you are all as busy as bees trying to get that last minute stuff down for Christmas (so am I), but you know, things have been bothering me. Things like interrelation of occurrences, history repeating itself, DNA inherent genetic memories, 3-2-1 ratio, etc. Then, I go back and remember a passage I read somewhere in the *Bible* many years ago: "There is nothing new on Earth, it has all been here before." Now don't ask me for the exact passage, but I did read it. (Fern Martin would probably know, she knows that *Bible* inside and out.)

Back in the late '50s (when I was young, skinny and trying to figure out which way I wanted to go in education—I studied law, medicine, AG, animal husbandry, etc.) I did a medical thesis on transference of diseases through blood transfusions.

This theory included the changing of the genetic structure when foreign, life giving blood was introduced into the recipient. Back then, this theory was laughed out of seminar. Well, it's not so laughable in today's world.

We came to know that AIDS was transferable by blood transfusions. Then we came to know this and that about the interchanges of blood. Today, it's "old hat". But back then even to think about it was a discrediting thing for the individual.

Well, here it is the '90s and I'm still thinking! Only this time, it is about the inherent memories of the DNA genetic mind or the soul being, which continues to live on, long after we are gone. It lives on in the DNA genetics. Yes, I'm going somewhere with this, and it's going to get pretty interest-ing—if not baffling.

One of the signatories of the *Magna Carta* was one of my DNA relatives (oh, you would be astounded as to who is running around in my DNA). Seemingly, every dadgone time big changes come about in the lawful rights of the people, I'll be dadburned if the progenitors (grandfathers) don't show up somewhere in those changes. For this reason I think that the familiarity with the histories of lawful rights are always at my fingertips. It seems as though (as the kids say) I have been there and done that.

Let's use gardening as an example. So much genetic tampering goes on with tomatoes that they don't even taste like tomatoes any longer. Each year I take the best tomatoes (which were buried the year before, and came back up as volunteers) and replant them for my summer table and canning. My tomatoes are absolutely delicious. They taste like tomatoes! The same goes for my squash, pumpkin and just about everything I plant. They may not be picture perfect but the genetics have been restored, and I feel as though my vegetables have more nutrients, taste better, can better, and are better all the way around. I'm in my 6th generation on tomatoes and each year the taste is more palatable. They are meatier. Not so pretty, but great taste.

It is contended by me, that the same principle applies in Human DNA. IT just keeps on, generation after generation, taking all those living memories along with it as it passes from one generation to the next. What one generation has learned, is passed on to the next in DNA living memories, or the soul (mind) being. Did you notice there is a separation between spirit and soul when you read your *Bible*? Well, I think the genetics of DNA are the <u>SOUL</u>ution, and re<u>SOUL</u>ution.

There are those who have a propensity for conquering, and destroying nation after nation since time began. They always evidenced themselves as being the oppressed. Once these people (historically) gain what they call freedom or equality (their words, not mine) they at once set about destroying everything they sought. To top it all off, in the hatred passed on from generation to generation, by word of mouth, and by family teachings, they want all later generation to pay for what happened 200, 300, and even 1000 and 2000 years ago. They then (once again) cause old DNA survival genes to rise up in those whom they consider must pay, and wars occur eluding <u>SOUL</u>ution and re<u>SOUL</u>ution of these matters.

The <u>SOUL</u>ution and re<u>SOUL</u>ution lies in knowledge; the inherent DNA soul knowledge of knowing the difference between right and wrong (it's in the DNA).

There are those with those inherents which I call the guardians, or more frequently called the Keepers of the Keys.

What are these "Keys", you may ask. Well, they are the keys to knowledge. Some call them thinkers. In the ages gone by, these were called sages, poets, scribes, oracles, or historians. Whatever their names be, they carried the inherents, with the abilities to pass on to those who did not know but were willing and eager to learn. This builds the DNA structure of the living soul of inherent knowledge.

Let's look at it this way—How many times have you seen something (knowing you have never seen it before or knew of it before in your lifetime) and said: "I have seen that before", or "I somehow knew that!" Well, it's the inherent DNA mind soul. And that, dear friends, is life after death. The inherent mind/soul lives on.

### ANOTHER SUBJECT (but not really)

You remember me telling you the Federal Government has a treaty with the civil governments of each state? Well, it's more formally called the Civil Government of Federal and State Governments. To form this civil government between the feds and the states, an agreement called a treaty was entered into. This is the reason for the Sixth Article of the *Constitution*.

In the cleaning of shelves in the library, an old book was discovered. *Federal and State Government: A Treatise/Treaty on the Civil Government of the United States and the State of Illinois.* The treaty was initiated as Enabling Act, April 18, 1818. You will find, somewhere, each of your states have the same treaty as does Illinois. When was the book written, you ask? Well, it was written in 1901 by Donald L. Morrill of the Chicago Bar, published by Scott, Foresman and Company of Chicago (back when the Bar was honest).

Have a great new year,

V.K. Durham

### CHAPTER 5

#### **OBITUARY**

#### JOHN FREDERICK SCHROEPFER

pict.

John Frederick Schroepfer

Word was received in Tehachapi on Monday, December 23, of the passing of John Frederick Schroepfer, in Porterville. He was born in Visalia, California on January 18, 1920, where his father owned and operated a dairy farm John worked on the farm as he was growing up and designed and built a home for the family while he was still in high school. In 1941 he graduated from the University of California at Berkeley, where he was on the rowing team. He was in the Army during WWII and was in General MacArthur's occupation forces in Japan.

He was a member of the American Society of Mechanical Engineers and the Society of Automotive Engineers. He had a distinguished career in the aerospace field filling lead positions with Rohr Industries, Ryan Aviation, Fairchild Camera and Instrument, and the Lockheed Companies. He last served as Chief, Reliability Section, at Lockheed's Space and Missile Division in Sunnyvale, California. He enjoyed telling stories of his experiences as the director of a large Navy Lab at San Diego, and he designed the engine mounts for the C-130, the fuel bellows for the F-14, and was consulted in the early design stages of the Stealth planes.

After his retirement he moved to Tehachapi to be near friends, and pursued his concern for community by actively engaging in disaster preparedness. He was often heard saying, "We have to make sure everybody has enough to eat!"

As his health declined in recent years, he made his home with friends. On Monday just after he was bathed and dressed and seated in a comfortable chair, "Big John" slipped gently away to go on to a larger life.

He is survived by many loving friends. Wood Family Funeral Service handled the cremation arrangements.

\* \* \*

Would you believe that this ad by Jason Brent (one of the adersary's lawyers (in a conspiracy) against the Ekkers and John was printed in the local newspaper <u>directly below</u> the above obituary of John whom he has <u>tortured legally</u> for many years—trying to get John's money?

# NOTICE THE WORDS SHARKS? YOU BET!

paste jason brent shark ad

#### CHAPTER 6

### THE NEWS DESK Dr. Al Overholt 1/14/97

#### THE HIGHWAY ROBBERY ACT

(Assets Forfeiture Act of Louisiana)

From the INTERNET, 1/9/97, via Peter Kawaja Fax, [quoting:] Louisiania Travel Warning Update Thu, 9 Jan. 97, 21:21:06 PST UPDATE—OPERATION—TRAVEL WARNING POLICE STATE [BANANA REPUBLIC], OF LA,

Thanks to all individuals and groups who picked up the travel warning I issued on 1/4/97 urging patriots from around the nation to phone Governor Mike Foster (Ph. 800-522-2737, Fax 504-342-7099, E-mail Lagov@Link.net) and tell him they will boycott the state of Louisiana until the Assets Forfeiture Act (The Highway Robbery Act) is repealed.

Due to the tremendous response from around the country, the Governor's office has received thousands, if not tens-of-thousands of E-mail letters, phone calls and faxes.

Tonight, 1/9/97, Lt. Gov. Kathleen Blanco (Ph. 504-342-8115/Fax 504-342-1949), whose son was killed last week, came out of mourning to express her alarm at the situation in Louisiana. She displayed over a thousand letters she has received as a result of the *Dateline* show. Blanco and state legislators held an emergency meeting and viewed the *Dateline* report. They lamented that the state has a public relations disaster on its hands and millions of tourist dollars, in fact the entire tourist industry is at stake. (Ain't that a shame?)

Representative Marionneaux said he would introduce legislation to prohibit law officers from making money on seized assets. Rep. Donald Kennard said the *Dateline* show is alarming. We say no compromise! We will not cancel the travel warning until the Highway Robbery Act is repealed. WBRZ also reported that officials from Triple-A were in La. investigating the allegations in the *Dateline* report and, if they found them true, Triple-A could issue a travel warning for the state.

(Better late than never, Triple-A)

Reportedly, the La. Legislative Auditor is going to check into finances of the governmental entities benefiting from the Highway Robbery Act. We have the NWO crowd in La. on the defensive. It is time to redouble our effort and if we can break the back of rampant tyranny in Louisiana, we can then start a campaign in other states to do likewise. Call the Governor's office several times daily to inquire about the repeal of the Highway Robbery Act. Demand the Governor call a Special Session of the legislature to address the terrorism on La. highways.

God bless the Republic! Death to the New World Order! WE SHALL PREVAIL! Babs Wilson, Sovereign Louisianians Good job, NBC—sure beats blowing up GM trucks! J.J. & Helen Johnson [End quoting]

It's good to see that **<u>if enough of "we-the-people" band together</u>** to apply pressure, we can have a big effect on the **<u>rotten, thieving politicians, judges and sometimes police</u>**.

### SWISS: NO APOLOGY FOR 'BLACKMAIL' COMMENT

From INMARK INC., Fax, 12/96, [quoting:]

Despite pressure from Jewish groups, Switzerland refused Wednesday to officially apologize for its former president's criticism of attempts to seek compensation for Holocaust victims.

Outgoing President Jean-Pascal Delamuraz used the term "blackmail" last month to dismiss Jewish requests that Switzerland donate \$150 million to old and destitute Jews who lost family and wealth in the Holocaust. [End quoting]

Who are the biggest thieves and liars—the banksters or the fake "Jewish" fake "Holocaust" promotors?

# JAPAN STOCKS

Excerpted from *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 1/11/97, [quoting:]

Tokyo's stock market plunged 700 points Friday at the end of a week-long, 11 percent dive, jarring investors and inspiring dark predictions of further losses. In a string of comments and announcements, top Japanese Government officials made it plain what they plan to do to stop the stock plummet—not much. One official urged investors to "remain calm". Another insisted there was no government "quick fix" to the nose-dive. A third top bureaucrat said the government would "lose trust" if it intervened. [End quoting]

If I was an investor in the U.S. stock markets I'd be mighty worried!

Do you realize how much money Japan has invested in the U.S.—and if their economy goes, whose do you think will be next?

It's bound to happen sometime in the near future, the way the NWO is progressing. They need to pull down the economies all over the world. Slaves aren't allowed to own anything, remember? They need you to beg for what you get.

It's an awfully tough and scary job to try to out fox the foxes of all foxes—SATAN AND HIS

#### MINIONS!

# CHINA AIMS TO CLEAN UP BLOOD SUPPLY WITH NEW LAW

#### From THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 12/29/96, [quoting:]

Beijing—China hopes to ban blood sales next year under a proposed law aimed at cleaning up the nation's suspect blood supplies, an official newspaper reported Saturday. Half of China's clinical blood supplies and all of its plasma come from paid donors who are considered at high risk of disease, the *Worker's Daily* reported. The proposed law would ban paid donations, punish blood dealers and make all healthy Chinese citizens ages 18 to 55 duty-bound to give blood. [End quoting]

Forecast of what's to come in this country??

We give contaminated vaccines purposefully so why would we worry about contaminated blood?? The better to kill you "accidentally".

### BILLY GRAHAM PROMOTES FALSE BIBLE VERSION

Excerpted from FLASHPOINT newsletter, Jan./97, [quoting:]

*"The Living Bible* has been used by God around the world for many years to introduce people to the Scriptures. Now I am pleased to recommend the *New Living Translation* for even greater readibility and **accuracy** [*emphasis mine*]." —Billy Graham

This endorsement is found on the back cover of Tyndale House Publisher's *New Living Translation*. [End quoting]

Many denominations of religions argue that the *Bible* is the inerrant word of God. If that be so, how can this *Bible* be more accurate? Am I wrong to consider this a contradiction?

# THE REAL TERRORISTS

From THE JUBILEE, Nov./Dec./96, [quoting:]

Representative Schumer (D-NY) wants to investigate the militias. I say, more power to him! Here are the questions that need to be asked.

**One:** How many doors have been kicked in by members?

**Two:** How many unarmed women have been shot and killed by members of the militia? **Three:** How many children have been gassed and burned to death by militias?

Four: How many homes and businesses have been confiscated or destroyed by militias?

Then, in the interest of fairness, I expect Rep. Schumer to ask these questions of the Bureau of

Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms, and the FBI.

These simple questions, if answered truthfully, would go a long way toward helping people decide just exactly who are the real terrorists in this country. [End quoting]

They should be questioned under oath so they can be jailed for any perjury.

# YELTSIN OKs RETURN OF LAST CZAR'S HEIR

Excerpted from THE CHICAGO SUN TIMES, 12/31/96, [quoting:]

An heir of Russia's last czar is to be reinstated as the head of Russia's imperial family by President Boris Yeltsin early next year, a Kremlin source said Monday.

Grand Duke Georgy Mikhailovich Romanov, 15, is to return to Russia with his mother, Grand Duchess Maria Vladimirovna, and grandmother, Grand Duchess Leonida Georgvevna. The family lives in Madrid, Spain.

Although the Kremlin has kept the move secret, the Kremlin source said Yeltsin had signed a decree that would officially reinstate the family, which has been living in exile since 1918 when the Bolsheviks massacred the last czar, Nicholas II, and his family. [*Readers, we published, in the 7/30/ 96 issue of* CONTACT, *the true story that the czar and his family were not massacred, but did leave Russia.*]

Grand Duchess Leonida is the widow of the Grand Duke Vladimir, who died in 1992. Vladimir was a cousin of Nicholas II and his closest known relative.

The Kremlin source said that the family would live in the village of Maloye Kalchugino, a former dacha complex for politburo members near Moscow.

He said that a former senior bodyguard to Yeltsin would be a tutor to Grand Duke Georgy, who is to enter the Suvorqvsky Military Academy in Moscow.

The Kremlin has made clear that the Romanovs' role will be ceremonial.

Grand Duchess Maria said it was her dream to return to Russia, but refused to elaborate on the family's role. It depended on the "wishes of the Russian people".

Russian monarchists hope that the family's return will coincide with Grand Duke Georgy's 16th birthday March 13.

According to the rules of the Russian nobility, he will have reached the age of majority and can be crowned czar.

Yeltsin's plan to reinstate the Romanovs is part of a Kremlin program called the Russian National Idea. Run by Anatoly Chubais, the president's chief of staff, the program is to carry out numerous projects to restore lost Russian pride and culture.

"The Kremlin needs stability," Duke Andrei Golitsyn, head of the Russian Nobility League, said Monday. "At present, the nation's identity is completely concentrated in the hands of Boris Yeltsin. This is unnatural.

"If [a political party loses] the presidency in America, the USA and its values continue to exist. If Yeltsin died tomorrow, everything in Russia would be at stake.

"Grand Duchess Maria, 43, an Oxford graduate, has visited Russia extensively every year and has met numerous Moscow officials, including Patriarch Alexei II, the head of the Russian Orthodox Church.

"During a highly symbolic visit in 1993, she diplomatically avoided questions about her political ambitions, saying only that she was "always ready to help Russia and would do whatever the people wanted."

But at the same time she mentioned the modern Spanish royal family as a possible model for a new Russian monarchy.

Yeltsin's secret decree recognizing the three Romanovs as the official imperial family is likely to renew bitter controversy with other members of the Romanov family who regard Prince Nicholas, a wealthy Swiss landowner as the most senior in line. [End quoting]

Russia will be a place to keep an eye on for several reasons. The true Russians will be our help in the future.

# EDISON EXPLAINS MONEY

Excerpted from *THE SPOTLIGHT* (by Thomas A. Edison), 12/30/96, [quoting:]

People who will not turn a shovel full of dirt on the project [*the Mussel Shoals Dam*], nor contribute a pound of material, will collect more money from the United States than will the people who supply all the material and do all the work. This is the terrible thing about interest...But here is the point: If the nation can issue a dollar bond it can issue a dollar bill. The element that makes the bond good makes the bill good also. The difference between the bond and the bill is that the bond lets the money broker collect twice the amount of the bond and an additional 20 percent. Whereas the currency—the honest sort provided by the *Constitution*—pays nobody but those who contribute in some useful way. It is absurd to say our country can issue bonds and cannot issue currency. Both are promises to pay, but one fattens the usurer and the other helps the people. If the currency issued by the government, to insure the national wealth, must go in debt and submit to ruinous interest charges at the hands of men who control the fictitious value of gold. Interest is the invention of Satan. [End

quoting]

At least Edison had a little sense about how the Federal Reserve steals ignorant people blind.

Too bad he had to steal from the people also by "selling out" to the likes of J.P. Morgan and gang and also in other ways such as taking credit for inventions belonging to Tesla.

## TRUTH ABOUT DENTAL FLUORIDATION

# Excerpted from *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 1/6/97, [quoting:]

British supermarkets have prepared fluoride-free toothpastes and are adding warning labels to those brands with fluoride—a poison added to almost all water systems in the United States. Those promoting the change note 50-year-old American research showing fluoride can damage the nervous system and teeth—including making teeth turn black. Some 200 English families are now filing suit against toothpaste giant Colgate-Palmolive for damages after a 10-year-old English boy received a "goodwill" payment of \$1,600 from the company after his teeth turned black due to excessive fluoride consumption (*THE SPOTLIGHT*, Dec. 30, 1996).

# UNSAFE WATER

We were shocked to learn that AB733 had been quietly signed into law by [Calif.] Gov. Pete Wilson. This legislation forces all communities in California to fluoridate their water starting January 1, 1997. We in Novato and the North Marin Water District have been one of the few communities in the Bay Area that do not have formatted water. The California Safe Drinking Water Act (Sect. 4010) says, "Every citizen of California has the right to pure and safe drinking water." [End quoting]

A very little fluoride will help to bind up heavy metals such as mercury from silver fillings in the teeth which leaches out slowly over time. But it **shouldn't be added to your water supply**. Brushing with a moderate amount of fluoride toothpaste (if you aren't getting enough from other sources such as **<u>naturally</u>** in water supplies in some areas where they don't add it) will be of benefit.

Always remember that some things can be beneficial in small amounts even though they can kill you in larger amounts. Moderation is the key to life along with **knowledge and wisdom**.

## NON-FILER'S VICTORY MEANS TERROR FOR TAX TYRANTS

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 1/6/97, [quoting:]

# COMMENTARY

"We need not consider how or in what manner the *Fifth Amendment* may be invoked as a defense to a prosecution for failure to file tax returns"—Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals, U.S. v. Troescher,

November 7, 1996.

Forty million federal tax non-filers will now be giving the sound of silence to federal inquisitors. Many incarcerated tax resisters may soon be set free to challenge the hated federal tax collectors and officers of the court for violating their rights. (See *THE SPOTLIGHT*, Nov. 25.)

Ignoring Constitutional restraints and violating their right to remain silent, renegade courts have been unlawfully ordering courageous non-filers to provide information to the IRS in order to convict them of "tax crimes."

## JOE IZEN

Torture has always been a tool for tyrants. Their inquisitors use thumbscrews, the rack, beatings and fire to obtain the false evidence they need. Confessions are used to justify the abuses necessary to gain the fearful compliance of a fearful people.

At Nuremberg, in 1945, government inquisitors applied pliers to the testicles of German soldiers to gain confessions they needed to justify their Holocaust mythology. In November 1996, the Israeli Supreme Court in occupied Palestine declared that the Israeli secret police may use torture to obtain information.

The IRS gains compliance by threatening ruinous seizure. Fear of such outrageous government conduct compels Americans to voluntarily confess on their 1040 tax returns, pay their tribute and go back to work.

# RULE WITH FEAR

Unable to kill all resisters, the tyrant rules the minds of men with fear. While he secures the wealth of others for himself, the docile masses groan and submit. The American principle of "government by the consent of the governed" has not quite disappeared.

Attorney Joe Izen of Bellaire, Texas represented silent non-filer Loren C. Troescher for the Ninth Circuit victory. In 20 years of practice, Izen has represented more than 140 IRS summons cases. Of these, only 35 cases went to court, all of which were dismissed—the result of proper application of *Fifth Amendment* doctrine.

In U.S. vs. Blue, the IRS argued that the non-filer was using the *Fifth Amendment* as a sword rather than shield. The Ninth Circuit published a subsequent decision wherein it stated that there was a "tax-crime exception" to the *Fifth Amendment*.

Until now, the courts have continued to abuse "tax-crime" defendants. In the recent Izen victory, U.S. v. Troescher, the Ninth Circuit denied that it made the exception and declared the awful truth, "There is no tax-crime exception to the *Fifth Amendment*."

An exuberant Izen proclaimed, "This is a prime example of the sheer folly of relying on the last

judge's word as to what the Constitution means."

Izen went on to state that "criminal procedures in most IRS districts require agents to identify themselves and inform individuals of their rights. As a consequence of this Ninth Circuit error, federal agents have failed to do this for several years."

## SILENCE IS GOLDEN

Non-filers can now inform the court that they hold and control the records. Non-filers can inform the court why they believe the IRS is acting in bad faith, i.e., that the IRS is not in compliance with statutes, and whether the information they request is already in their possession.

The court will decide whether to enforce IRS summonses and if you may invoke your right to remain silent. In any proceeding (criminal, civil or administrative), an individual cannot be compelled to be a witness against himself.

The judge may require you to answer *in camera* (i.e. alone with the judge). Evidence such as "I didn't file" could result in your prosecution for a crime, but the judge cannot give the record to the prosecution if your answers are incriminating.

Izen says, "Use this 'Get Out of Jail Free Card'." Immunity can be obtained by silent patience. In Kastigar v. U.S. it was determined that "If a judge erroneously compels you to testify and you talk, the evidence must be excluded from any future prosecution." The Ninth Circuit ruling to eliminate the "tax-crime exception" is retroactive. An individual already convicted by such excludable evidence must be set free.

The voice of dissent is resistance. This force has now removed a major abuse from the courts. Tax inquisitors and prosecutors will have to find their own evidence with which to persecute courageous patriotic non-volunteers. Hapless volunteers will, however, continue to suffer the same consequences they have faced since 1914: file and pay. [End quoting]

It seems like a great victory, but the courts nowadays do what they want. You can fight and win sometimes if you have enough money to pay your lawyers. However, they usually milk you dry without you getting a fair hearing in court.

If you represent yourself how can you work and support yourself and possibly a family while they keep making you appear in court hearings over and over again where you never make any real progress.

Certainly you should keep trying to peacefully buck the system, however. If enough of the people will do this there will be drastic changes for the better.

## CRACKDOWN STARTS ON REFRIGERANT SMUGGLING

Excerpted from THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 1/10/97, [quoting:]

Federal authorities charged more than a dozen people and businesses with smuggling a refrigerant into the United States that is banned because it damages the Earth's protective layer of atmospheric ozone.

Attorney General Janet Reno also vowed that the Clinton Administration will expand a crackdown on illegal imports of the chlorofluorocarbons, or CFCs including the type commonly known by the brand name Freon.

Such smuggling has been increasing since the United States, in keeping with an environmental treaty, banned imports and the production of CFCs a year ago.

A lively and lucrative black market has sprung up, with canisters of gaseous CFCs sold to dealers and service stations that use the chemical mostly to refill air conditioners in automobiles made before 1994. There is a two-year supply of legal CFCs in the United States, but after that runs out, older cars will need to be modified to use an environmentally benign alternative.

"To people who service cars or distribute refrigerants, we say: If you're offered something at a price that seems too good to be true, it probably is." Reno said at a news conference Thursday. "Please alert the EPA or your local FBI office if you see such situations. And to CFC smugglers, we say: We're going to find you. We will shut you down. We're going to shut down this black market." [End quoting]

Oh, if they were only so gung-ho about stopping drug smuggling wouldn't it be great. Don't think for one minute they don't mean what they say about <u>this</u> crackdown. Why wouldn't they just be spouting some more propaganda? Use the old rule of thumb—if you want to know more of the truth of what the Elite are up to, <u>"FOLLOW THE MONEY TRAIL"</u>.

In this case—one of the big, Elite conglomerates has a monopoly on the new refrigerant you are **REQUIRED** to use as the replacement. It is utterly mind-blowing to think of the cost to us as taxpayers and consumers for this total conversion from Freon for air-conditioning alone (\$100s of billions), let alone the replacement of CFCs for **many** other uses.

The profit for drugs is such that they don't want the smuggling <u>STOPPED</u>, <u>OR LEGALIZED</u>.

# FURTHERMORE, FREON <u>DOES NOT</u> DAMAGE THE OZONE LAYER AS THEY PROPA-GANDIZE YOU!

# IN THE FOOTSTEPS OF MAD GENIUS by William F. Buckley Jr.

Excerpted from *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, 12/24/96, [quoting:] It was some years ago and <u>the club I go to for a few days every summer</u> imposed on me, as is its habit in its dealings with amateurs, a challenge.

## WILLIAM F. BUCKLEY Jr.

Would I perform on the harpsichord a stretch of music by Mozart?

The Stage wheeled around, and suddenly I was front and center, and the temperature dropped from 80 degrees backstage to 50 degrees <u>in the California redwood country.</u> My limpid warmed fingers turned to ice. [End quoting]

Comment inspired by a loyal *CONTACT* reader:

I venture to say that many *CONTACT* readers will know the **specific location** where Buckley gave his recital.

For those who don't—how about **BOHEMIAN GROVE**, WHERE THE ELITE PLAY MANY OF THEIR **NASTY AND EVEN SOME CRIMINAL GAMES**?

And, by the way, anybody who attends <u>these</u> Bohemian Grove outings has to embrace practices that would be shocking to the rest of us.

#### AN INTERESTING HEADLINE AND DATE November 10, 1941

Excerpted from *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 1/6/97, [quoting:]

#### world war II headline

[End quoting]

I don't know if you have ever seen this before but I haven't. However, I knew that Pres. Roosevelt and his cronies knew they would strike—<u>THEY HAD PLANNED IT</u>.

This is an interesing piece of history.

#### THE INFAMOUS DAVID HORTON, Esq.

From *THE BULLETIN*, newsletter of the Committee To Restore The Constitution, <u>Sep. 1989</u>, see picture and biography insert.

## T. DAVID HORTON

"Be very careful of what you read or hear in ads"—This is an excellent example how the wolves shear the sheep of their lives, not just their fleece.

This man may once have had good intentions of fighting for Constitutional rights for We-The-People, but he has always been a wolf in sheep's clothing or he was bought off at least a few years back.

He is one of the infamous Nevada attorneys aiding and abetting the Green, Horton, Abbott, Jason Brent and Stephen Horn conspiracy scam gang in the looting of many people, the \$400,000 of gold coins belonging to the Phoenix Institute, and EJ and Doris' home.

\* \* \*

## MAYNARD CAMPBELL MURDERED IN PRISON

Fax received 1/17/97, by Duff Trimble, [quoting]

We regret to inform our Patriot/sovereign friends that on the evening of January 16th, 1997, we lost another of our defenders of liberty—

## MAYNARD C. CAMPBELL Jr.

As his voluminous piles of briefs and correspondence indicated, Maynard was on the very brink of his release. By doing his own work and with the help of Attorney John DeCamp, we might have seen one of the only occurrences of victory in recent times.

With sadness of heart at the loss of a very special friend to all of us—for all of us, Duff Trimble.

# CHAPTER 7

#### SOUTH POLE INFORMATION

## <u>COL. FLETCHER PROUTY</u> <u>SHARES PERSONAL EXPERIENCE</u> by Col. Fletcher Prouty 1/5/97

Editor's note: Col. Fletcher Prouty has been kind enough to share some remarks with us, which we are glad to pass on to our readers. Col. Prouty also has some corrections to quotes referenced in the interview of July 4, 1996, which appeared in our July 9, 1996, Vol. 13, #9 edition of the CON-TACT. We apologize to Col. Prouty for the misquote and remind our readers that our recording machinery does not always produce intelligible audio for transcription. But our goal is always accuracy, despite the pressures of deadlines.

The only comment that CONTACT would like to make here regarding NASA's outrageous "Mars rock" propaganda is that we are quite certain most CONTACT readers are long past the stage of falling for such blarney. However, that is not to say we won't report that official propaganda—if only for the sheer entertainment value it provides.

Letter to the Editor *CONTACT* P.O. Box 27800 Las Vegas, NV 89126

Dear Sir,

Ever since Rick Martin and I celebrated the Fourth of July at my home here and then the July 9, 1996 issue of CONTACT arrived with its headline: "Col. Fletcher Prouty Exposes The Clandestine Society's Agenda For World Control", I have been interested in your publication and especially its unusual style, ideas and subject presentation.

Then the Dec 10, 1996 *CONTACT* appeared with an interesting item:

"HALE-BOPP-A-BE-BOPP: While NASA scientists are pretending they are all excited about a rock that someone found near the South Pole a long time ago that just might possibly indicate that there is life on Mars..."

NOT SO! As a function of my military duties with the Office of the Joint Chiefs of Staff during 1963 I was assigned the task of "Military Escort Officer" to Antarctica, with a group of scientists, manufacturers for the Military Industrial Complex, nuclear technicians, and newsmen—among others.

We all left Andrews Air Force Base, on Nov 10, 1963, aboard an Air Force C-130 transport bound

for the U.S. Navy Base at McMurdo Sound, Antarctica via Honolulu, and Christchurch, N.Z.

The purpose of this very special group's trip to McMurdo was to set in operation a small nuclear power plant that would be used to produce all the energy required to provide the heat, light and pure desalinated sea water for this large Navy-scientific base. Its total demand for power—we were told—was the equal of a town of 25,000 inhabitants.

The reason for this special nuclear installation was to make it unnecessary for the Navy to transport an enormous quantity of petroleum-based fuel to meet that same demand. This required a considerable fleet for shipping, ice-breaking and ground-transport support that placed a huge demand upon the Navy.

From the Navy Base we could look up on the foothill of Mt. Erebus, an active volcano, to a whole "village" of storage tanks that required refueling constantly, and this required ice breaking constantly to keep the channel open. While we were at McMurdo, during November (Springtime) the ice in the Sound was said to be 11 to 13 feet thick and we saw ice-breakers and tankers operating steadily.

When we turned about 180 degrees from that view of Erebus and the petroleum tanks, we could see a small building on a hillside. There was almost no activity there at that time; but a few days later this team of nuclear specialists had seen that everything was in order and that they could "throw the switches" to cut off petroleum-generated power, and turn on its substitute that would run on nuclear power.

After brief speechs by a few of the Group's leaders, one cut off the "Oil" power lever and the other threw on the "Nuclear" power lever. That huge Navy-Scientific-Industrial base was then on Nuclear power, full time and remained on nuclear power until some time in late 1973.

That was the primary reason that we had all traveled to Antarctica; but no such trip would ever be complete without a flight to the South Pole. To accomplish this the C-130 was scheduled to make a flight up there and back every day, as it performed its official duties of providing essential base support. (As I recall, there were about 55 men at the South Pole Station year-round.)

As you may know, the land rises quite abruptly from sea-level up over 16,000-foot mountains during that trip. Notably, once the plane had cleared that last, highest range, the polar region spread out before us as flat as a massive "tennis court" for hundreds of miles in all directions. As we located the few "above ice" buildings, or tops of buildings, we prepared to land anywhere. That surface, in all directions, is packed snow and ice, and the C-130 landed on its own tires, with only small "skies" [sic] in retracted position only for emergency use. We landed on the tires and taxied easily to the base headquarters "entrance" which leads to a complete under-the-ice surface base.

It happened that the pilot of that Air Force C-130 was an old friend of mine and we had flown together in many parts of the world during the previous twenty years. He invited me to join him, and his co-pilot, in the cabin as we landed.

One thing I noted, being an old pilot, was that as we were landing on this snow-covered surface our aircraft altimeter was still indicating well over 10,000 feet above sea-level. This is an important fact about the South Pole as differentiated from the North Pole that is at sea level, with no land.

I then made it a note to record that as the pilot cut the engines the altimeter was still reading "10,600" feet above sea level. We had landed at that elevation. That was the natural surface. No wonder Polar Exploration parties in the South Polar regions have had such trouble working their way to that Pole. Anyone doing that much work, up to, and above 10,000 feet is going to be exhausted; but they did not have altimeters and may not have realized what they confronted in those days.

While we visited the Polar Station I made it a point to visit a small scientific activity that was drilling down through thousands of feet of ancient, packed ice in an attempt to determine precisely what the land elevation was there and how much of the remainder was ice. About every 18 inches they would cut a cylinder of "wine bottle" green ice for lab tests. Then they would send the blade down for another 18" cylinder. On that date they told me that they had drilled down more than 6,000 feet and that they expected to hit rock soon. In other words, actual land level at the South Pole may be somewhere near 4,000 feet, with some 6,000-7,000 feet above—eternally.

I trust this may not have bored you to this point; but having been there and having experienced that much personally, I have been wondering about these "NASA scientists pretending they are all excited about a rock someone found near the South Pole."

It certainly is beyond possibility that some casual strollers at the South Pole would have found a "rock" resting there through these past millennia at some 10,000 feet or more above Sea Level, and that this same rock had arrived there, much as we had, through the surrounding Polar atmosphere.

Think it over.

# /s/ L. Fletcher Prouty

NOTE: May I please correct an unfortunate typo that appeared on Page 18 of your July 9, 1996 issue wherein Rick Martin reported (about the early Vietnam warfare period) a "quote" from me. It happens to be an unfortunate, and important error in history that must not be permitted to mislead your readers and those whom they may discuss it with.

Martin's quote was, "Oh yes, I (Prouty) was in Vietnam during 1952, '53 and '54. And, I was on Okinawa in 1949 when we brought Ho Chi Minh down and put the government down there. General Galligher, an OSS man, brought him down there and, being on Okinawa, I saw them ship all the equipment that we didn't need for the invasion of Japan, down to Ho Chi Minh so he would be able to make an army, which he did. He then defeated the French with that army." Dien Bien Phu, 1954.

Historically that paragraph happens to be loaded with unfortunate misquotes. I regret not having had the opportunity to see that July 4th interview, before it hit your July 9th issue. Please let me make the corrections for the benefit of history and the principals involved.

(a) I was NOT on Okinawa during 1949. I was an ROTC Professor teaching at Yale University with the first Air Force ROTC unit there.

(b) It was August 1945 when Gen. Philip E. Gallagher, U.S. Army and Lou Conein of the OSS travelled from China with Ho Chi Minh to establish the government of Vietnam. Ho Chi Minh read the Declaration of Independence of the new country on Sept. 2, 1945, the same day as the Japanese surrender, with both Conein and Gallagher at his side.

(c) I did see the U.S. Navy transport vessels loaded with arms, which had been stockpiled on Okinawa during 1945 for that planned invasion of Japan, sail from Okinawa for Vietnam during August-September while I was there flying to and from Japan with the Air Transport Command. We flew many plane-loads of American POWs from Japan to Okinawa and then on to the USA. Meanwhile the Navy transported that unused mountain of materiel to Vietnam...not Japan.

I trust this inadvertent presentation in your July 9, 1996 issue can be corrected for the benefit of those of your readers who are ardent historians.

Thank you.

/s/ Fletch

## CHAPTER 8

## LATEST FILINGS IN THE BERKSHIRES MASS. LAWSUIT by Eustace Mullins 1/10/97

Dear Brent,

Enclosed is my latest filing in the Berkshires (Mass.) lawsuit. It is one of the most important legal documents I have ever filed, as I have never before formally charged the FBI in court with murdering my family as I had not brought this in as a legal issue in prior lawsuits. Also, I have never before complained about having each of my civil rights lawsuits over a period of fifty years dismissed without a hearing, a trial, or a jury decision. It is very important to do this now because not only is the FBI agent being charged with espionage, but also Congressman Henry Hyde is opening hearings on the FBI Filegate and other offenses. Hyde is actually Congressman Jekyl, a demon who intends to whitewash the FBI as Bill McCollum and Hyde did during the Ruby Ridge Massacre and the Waco Holocaust Congressional Hearings.

In order to deal summarily with me as in all previous lawsuits, they have assigned Judge Freedman, a kinsman of Judge Grunhaus, Silberman and all the other Zionist judges who have denied me justice. 1997 is the year of the final breakthrough on all fronts. There is no doubt that *CONTACT* will be the instrument of the final breaking of the dam and ushering in the real America for which we have strived so long. Congratulations!!! I get letters and calls every day from people who have seen my work in *CONTACT*. They are unanimous in agreeing in the important nature of this work. You will have a great 1997!

All the best from,

/s/ Eustace Mullins

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS, WESTERN SECTION CIVIL ACTION NO. 96CO30221-FHF

EUSTACE C. MULLINS, Plaintiff v.

> PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO REMAND TO STATE COURT

THE BERKSHIRE EAGLE Defendant

Now comes the Plaintiff, Eustace C. Mullins, appearing for himself as Pro Propria Personae, and respectfully moves that this action be removed to State Court where it originated, for the following reasons:

1. Plaintiff brought this action under Article XI, Constitution of Massachusetts and continuously cited other sections of the Constitution of Massachusetts in his Complaint.

2. Plaintiff determined that federal court would not be the proper vehicle for this action because, during the past fifty years, Plaintiff has brought many civil rights actions in federal court, documenting horrendous violations of his civil rights, and in every instance these civil rights actions were dismissed without a court hearing. When Plaintiff refiled these actions, they were dismissed with Prejudice, precluding further hearing.

3. In each action, Plaintiff has demanded jury trial, but has never received a jury trial.

4. Plaintiff found an explanation for these federal court refusals to hear his civil rights complaints in the famous Massachusetts case of Wayfield v. Tisbury, which has been in litigation for many years. The court ruled against Wayfield in this civil rights compliant with the opinion that: "Wayfield identifies himself merely as a Christian European-American, which is not a constitutionally protected class."

5. In Plaintiff's many preceding civil rights actions, the federal courts apparently dismissed these actions on the presumption that Plaintiff is not a member of a constitutionally protected class, consisting of women, Blacks, Jews, Hispanics and homosexuals, and therefore cannot bring a civil rights action in any federal court. However, in a careful reading of the *Constitution of the United States of America*, Plaintiff is unable to find any passage which reserves justice to women, Blacks, Jews, Hispanics and homosexuals, and therefore affirms that the federal courts have been in error in his preceding civil rights actions.

6. Further light is shed on this predilection of our federal courts in a confidential memo from the Office of Policy Development dated 10-5-89 (obtained by Citizens for God and Country), titled "Soviet Legal Reform To Date", as follows:

# "Socialist Legal State"

"Transformation of the USSR into a 'socialist legal state' was a prominent element of Gorbachev's reform program as it was formulated prior to the June 1988 party conference."

Plaintiff finds a remarkable correlation between Gorbachev's "socialist legal state" and the summary disposal of Plaintiff's civil rights actions in our federal courts, in which a quasi-theocratic commitment to "diversity" has replaced constitutional law.

7. A further explanation of the summary dismissal of Plaintiff's preceding civil rights actions in our federal courts may be seen in the attitude of the federal courts towards American citizens who exercise their constitutional right to represent themselves in federal court. Plaintiff, appearing for

himself, was never allowed to appear in federal court in these documented civil rights violations.

8. Plaintiff was a valued employee of the Library of Congress in 1952, when he was discharged at the request of Senator Herbert Lehman, D.N.Y., partner of the billionaire banking house of Lehman brothers. Lehman was also National Chairman of the Anti-Defamation League of B'Nai B'Rith, a censorship group which wished to halt Plaintiff's exposé of the Federal Reserve System which had been commissioned by the poet Ezra Pound, who was held as a political prisoner without trial in Washington, D.C. Plaintiff contacted two Congressmen and had a Librarian of Congress removed. The Librarian was then given a sinecure with UNICEF in Paris, where he enjoyed a sodden old age. Plaintiff sued his successor at the Library of Congress for reinstatement, but the civil rights suit was dismissed without a hearing. Plaintiff is still the only person ever discharged from the Library of Congress for political reasons.

9. Plaintiff's history of the Federal Reserve System was published in 1953. In 1955, a German edition was published in Oberammergau, Germany, site of the Passion Play. The edition of 10,000 copies was ordered burned by U.S. High Commissioner of Germany, James Conant, and his Assistant High Commissioner, Benjamin Buttenweiser, partner of the Rothschild representative in New York, Kuhn, Loeb Co. Another partner of Kuhn, Loeb Co., Paul Warburg, is generally credited as the secret author of the Federal Reserve Act. Kuhn, Loeb Co. partner Jacob Schiff, honored as a prince in Israel, financed the Bolshevik Revolution in Russia with his own funds. Buttenweiser's wife, Helen Lehmen, was Alger Hiss's lawyer during his perjury trials. Plaintiff sued in U.S. Court of Claims for damages for the burned book. The case was dismissed without a hearing. Plaintiff remains the only writer who has had a book burned in Europe since the Second World War.

10. In 1958, poet Ezra Pound had been held without trial by the federal government for thirteen and a half years, on an indictment initiated by Alger Hiss. Plaintiff contacted a congressman, who demanded an inquiry. The government dropped all charges and Pound was released. Federal agencies, infuriated by Plaintiff's role in freeing their victim, Ezra Pound, launched a serious vendetta against Plaintiff which has continued to the present day. "A Writ for Martyrs" by Eustace Mullins, published by the O.T.U. Christ Church, 1985, reproduces on page 63 (page G-37 from Plaintiff's official FBI file) an order from J. Edgar Hoover, Director of the FBI, ordering Plaintiff committed to a mental institution for life, as Top Priority. The command had been initiated by A. Rosen, Assistant Director of the FBI for Jewish Affairs. "A Writ for Martyrs" contains thirty pages of official FBI files relating to the commitment of Plaintiff to a mental institution. Most of Plaintiff's FBI file is still held by the FBI, which refuses to release it on grounds that it would "endanger national security". Plaintiff recently renewed demand for this file, but was informed the FBI would not be able to respond for four years. Hoover's order to commit Plaintiff to a mental institution has never been rescinded.

11. The FBI maintained daily surveillance of Plaintiff for forty-three years, at a cost of many millions of dollars. No charges have ever been brought. The FBI also conspired with the IRS to bring Plaintiff in on charges of tax delinquency. Each time, the IRS admitted there was no tax delinquency, because FBI agents forced employers to fire Plaintiff whenever he obtained a well-paying job, and there was no income to report. These difficulties have caused many observers to compare Plaintiff's writing career with that of Alexander Solzhenitsyn, who was exiled by the

Soviet Communists. Plaintiff is now negotiating for a major movie studio production of these events.

12. Federal agents now extended their attack to Plaintiff's relatives. Plaintiff's father was attacked by federal agents in 1961 and died of a heart attack. Plaintiff's mother, an invalid, was harassed daily by federal agents until she died of a heart attack in 1971. Plaintiff continued to take care of his handicapped sister, Dorothy, who was harassed daily by federal agents until she died suddenly in 1979. Since then, Plaintiff has been alone in the world. Plaintiff was unable to get any media coverage of these murders, with the result that federal jackbooted thugs continued to run amuck in the United States, with the massacre of the Weaver family at Ruby Ridge, Idaho, and the Waco Holocaust, in which an entire Christian congregation was burned alive in their church. The victims included many small babies. These horrors could have been averted if Plaintiff could have exposed the atrocities committed against his family by federal agents.

13. Explicacione: Any sentient person must suppose that the federal government had serious charges to bring against Plaintiff, to justify such furious persecution. In fact, Plaintiff has never had any problem with the federal government per se. A model citizen, Plaintiff served with distinction in the United States Army Air Force throughout World War II. Plaintiff's record is unblemished. Plaintiff's problem has never been with "the federal government" but with "the Nesher cell" (nesher is Hebrew for "eagle") which Phil Klutznick encysted in the Department of Justice in 1936. Since then, it has taken over the entire Department, as have nesher cells in other federal agencies, such as the Boorda-Pollard Israeli espionage cell at the Navy Department.

WHEREFORE, for these explicit reasons, Plaintiff filed this civil rights action for legal redress in State Court, and respectfully requests this Court to return this action to State Court for legal redress, because, in some fifty years, Plaintiff has never been able to obtain a civil rights hearing in a federal court.

Respectfully submitted,

EUSTACE C. MULLINS

BY\_\_\_\_\_

EUSTACE C. MULLINS Pro Propria Personae 126 Madison Place Staunton, Virginia 24401 540-886-5580

# CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Plaintiff, Eustace C. Mullins, hereby certifies that a true copy of the above document, Plaintiff's Motion to Remand to State Court, was served upon Joseph P. Pessalano, Esq., KELLY, PESSOLANO

& WITHERS P.C., 115 State St. Fifth floor, SPRINGFIELD, MA 01103 by first class mail this <u>31</u> day of December, 1996.

EUSTACE C. MULLINS

#### CHAPTER 9

logo

#### PREPARING FOR CALAMITIES AHEAD by Grandma 1/11/97

On these ever-so-cold winter days we stay indoors (if we can) and do some necessaries around the house. My car will not start this morning, so, as all grandmas, I just stood there for a minute, looking out that window covered with ice. I couldn't see a darned thing but the sky, the lower part of the window was all covered with ice. So I took a long, hard minute looking at the color of that sky. There she was, with the rosy-lavenderish look, off in the southeast, with the sun trying to raise itself up above the cloudiness. Well, I said to myself, I sure hope Duane has enough hay in to feed all his cows, 'cause more bad weather is coming our way, and it looks like there might be a small break—but not much up to middle or late March, if I am reading the signs right. Sure hope he told those other farmers and ranchers to get their hay in as close to the feed lots as they could.

Duane is up in the Dakota country, and it's colder than "Old Billy Blue Blazes" up there right now. Then I thought about Lana, and about my friends in Iowa, and friends in California suffering these floods, then, there are all you kids out in New Mexico and Arizona. Others in Nevada, and all over the nation. This weather problem is here to stay for a while. Come Spring, the 1937 floods will seem like little things compared to what will come down the Missouri River and its tributaries, which will cause massive flooding up and down the Mississippi River Valley.

Then, with all this weather coming down the Allegheny River, the Ohio Valley will also suffer tremendous flooding and frankly I am concerned about all of those very old dams on all our waterways. So, I'm going to tell all of you right now, check out those dams and levies which are protecting your villages and towns up and down the rivers. Frankly, the state and federal governmental agencies should be doing this, because they know the "fit" is going to hit the "shan" very shortly, and time is wasting! This is what we used to call in the old days a citizens' alert! You know, and I know, once those rivers are on the rise, nothing is going to stop them! It's too darned cold to be out their hip-deep in freezing water, sandbagging!

Also, for those of you who still have hay left in the fields in the lowlands, put on you longjohns, pull your overalls up over them, put on good warm socks and your boots and get everything you can out of the lowlands, 'cause she's a comin'!

Now, for all of you who live in the bottom-lands, or have homes in the bottom-lands, on stilts, or high foundations, get yourselves some 50-gallon (empty) oil drums, and secure them (where they will float) around the houses. Why?! Because there is going to be ice in these coming high waters. Ice cuts! It will cut the foundations right from under your houses or barns or whatever is in the flooded areas. How do I know? Well, I've been around a long time and "been there, done that".

There is not much this grandma has not been through, so if there is something which I have experienced which will help you young ones, and I know it to be useful, you know darned good and well I am going to tell you!

Many, many years ago, back during WWII, mother and I spent a whole long winter back up in the Wabash River bottoms, in a house on stilts, with the Ohio flooding the land. The bottom floor was flooded and we lived upstairs during that flood. Trees would come floating down and bump into the house. Up we would get, and raise the window, crawl out in the "John boat", and take the Pike and pull or push the floating trees and floating debris away from the house. We just knew any minute the house was going to be knocked off those stilts, and we would be washed away in the flood waters. The only other place we could go would have been to the barn which was on a high mound (where the livestock was hauled up to its second floor). There was no heat or anything except in the house, and that was a 50-gallon oil drum which was used for heating, cooking, etc. Sometimes I think this nation rose up around 50-gallon oil drums. There was even a shelf which had been welded inside so we could bake. Some of the best barbecued/baked carp I ever tasted came off that old oil-drum stove, all 50 gallons of her.

America and Americans were different back then. We were survivors! We knew, somehow, come Hell or high water, we were going to make it! Today I think, perhaps it's the apathy which permeates the nation that bothers me so very much. Or, perhaps it's the confusion between the knownothings in our civil governments of our states, and the do-nothings in our civil government of the United States who think they went to the District of Columbia to become gods and then became overwhelmed by Federalism, which has absolutely nothing to do with the civil governments of the states or the civil government of the United States. Yep, by gollies, there is a difference. Someone dumbed them down!

Back when we lived way back up there in those river bottoms, being warmed by that old 50-gallon oil drum's heat, I had a lot of time on my hands and I did an awful lot of reading. I read every book in sight—2, 3, 4 or more times and most of the books were about the history of these here United States, her *Constitution*, our [state] constitutions, what they were about and what they were intended to be for; proper representation of the civil governments of the territorial states, and the civil government of the United States. Come Spring, after the floods had gone down and the ground dried out, I would put a head-band with a feather in it around my little blond head, take a sharpened stick, break corncobs in two and put them on the sharpened stick and go rabbit hunting, never stopping a downbeat of shouting: "No taxation without representation!" This kept up, and kept up (sounded pretty good to me; it rhymed). Finally mother came along and asked if I had killed any rabbits. I said, "No." She very softly admonished me that I "should quit yelling the slogan, and think about it" in my head. Then she let me know I was not only frightening all the rabbits away, the squirrels were fleeing away also. Well, we did not have rabbit or squirrel for dinner that night, we had beans, good old navy beans (again!).

The people in almost every state have sent me letters from their Attorney General concerning the situation in Nevada with those two no-good attorneys, Abbott and Horton. Here is one from John Ray: (December 19, 1996 is the date of the letter.)

"Dear Mr. Ray,

In your most recent letter, you have asked several questions which I will attempt to answer. In Nevada, the Attorney General represents the state agencies and gives legal advice to those agencies as well as [to] district attorneys and city attorneys.

Nevada's long-standing policy is to keep government out of business; therefore, the legislature has not given either the Secretary or State of the Attorney General the authority to conduct the type of investigation you are calling for. Nevada's laws would need to be changed before either of these agencies could become involved.

The Nevada State Bar does indeed discipline attorneys. I am certain the State Bar office would be able to provide you with the number of complaints they have processed and the number of attorneys who have been disciplined. The Nevada Supreme Court, which consists of five elected members, oversees the State Bar.

I hope this information is helpful to you. If I can be of further assistance, please contact me.

/s/ Frankie Sue Del Papa, Attorney General (Nevada)

# THINK ABOUT IT!

These Attorneys General in our civil governments of our territorial states have forgotten about "no taxation without representation". Who do they think pays their wages? It's the good civil government (the people) of the territorial states (including others besides the original states). Yep, that's who!

Almost every State Attorney General across this nation has provisioned like or similar letters which deny the responsibility of Offices of Public Trust, paid for by the people. Even Illinois Attorney General has the same attitude of "we only represent the state agencies, and give legal advice to those agencies as well as state and city attorneys."

Somewhere, somehow, something very unwholesome occurred. In the state of Illinois, for example (1882), the civil government of the state of Illinois and the United States by treaty agreed:

"The Attorney General's functions for the civil government of the state of Illinois was: To act as attorney for the people or the state in suits before the Supreme Court. To act as attorney for the state officers in suits relating to their official duties. To advise the legislature concerning constitutional questions when requested. To see that sums of money intended for state institutions are used as intended." (Or as collected from taxpayers.)

# ARE YOU THINKIN' ABOUT IT?

## NOW LET'S PICK ON ANOTHER BONE OF CONTENTION!

#### WHO IS, OR WHAT IS THIS BAR ASSOCIATION CRAP!

Let's see. I've been reading state and United States constitutions since about the age of 5 or 6. Read them by candlelight, kerosene lamp, gas lights, electric lights (nope, I did not chop ties and timbers with Abe Lincoln—but, Great-Grandpa did), and nowhere in any constitution can I find the allowances for, or even the words mentioned or even hinted to, in print or otherwise, naming a Bar Association of any sort or kind or of any generalizing of any other name which might have been mentioned, hinted to, alluded to or directed by the constitutions or even the Judiciary Act of 1787 allowing such a covert-overt group to overthrow our laws.

In the civil government of the state of Illinois Constitution, Section 2, it clearly states:

"That all power is inherent in the people, and all free governments are founded on their authority and instituted for their peace, safety and happiness."

Section 7: "That the people shall be secure in their persons, houses, papers and possessions from unreasonable searches and seizures and that general warrants, whereby an officer may be commanded to search suspected places without evidence of the fact committed, or to seize any person or persons not named, whose offenses are not particularly described and supported by evidence, are dangerous to liberty and ought not to be granted."

Section 9: The word counsel is mentioned (no mention of Bar Association member). The word counsel at the time the constitutions were written meant: A person familiar with the law.

Our original *Constitution* for the United States, in the Thirteenth Amendment, prohibited attorneys from holding Offices of Public Trust. What went wrong?

The Illinois Bar Association has a stranglehold of misrepresentation of the Bar as intended as opposed to the current Bar Association. Page 13 (i) of their Rules of the Supreme Court of Illinois states: "An Act to revise the law in relation to attorneys and counselors," approved March 28, 1874 (adopted December 7, 1990, effective immediately), which alludes to the Act of March 28, 1874 stated: "You must have a license to practice law, or belong to the Bar Associations."

I have in my possession these Acts of March 1874 and no such Act was passed as relating to the illusionaries as stated by the Illinois Bar Association. The Act which did pass was related to misrepresentation by corporations, firms, groups or other persons by misleading statements, or intent to commit fraud, etc., to defraud and deceive persons from their properties, and it passed as a Criminal Statute Act, not a Bar Association Mandatory Licensing Act, and it passed on March 27th. There were no passages on March 28th as stated by the Bar Association. Even more strangely, why in the world would they wait 116 years to latch on to an act which was passed in 1874? Perhaps they thought no one would have the acts and that the old acts had been carefully secreted to a hidden place, and the book had been destroyed. No one would challenge them on their misrepresentation and outright fraud. Well, Grandma has the original books and I say the legislature is full of it!

#### THINK ABOUT IT!

Grandma Herrman-Herman

# <u>A NOTE FROM</u> <u>MRS. RUSSELL E. HERRMANN-HERRMAN-HERMAN</u> by Grandma 1/12/97

Dear Readers,

I now reference my January 10, 1997 letter addressed to Mr. Jack Perrine [*see p.32 of 1/14/97* CONTACT], which addressed the *Conspiracy Nation*, Vol. 9, No. 97. After faxing my letter to Mr. Perrine, Mr. Perrine faxed back to me the correct name and address of the author of *Conspiracy Nation*, which is as follows:

Mr. Brian Redman 310 S. Prairie St. (#202) Champagne, Illinois 61820 E-mail address is Bigred@shout.net

Later, on the 10th, I had a telephone conversation with Mr. Redman, and applauded the gentleman for his forthrightness, and willingness to bring forth these CIA-flu deaths of U.S. Military personnel who answered the call of their country, did their duties, per the request and demands of the President of the United States, Commander in Chief of our Armed Forces personnel.

As I apprised Mr. Redman, to date, we, as the victims' family members, have risen from 144 victims (our men/women) to 180+. We are certain that the number of victims of this CIA-flu is far exceeding the body count which we, as the family members who have finally connected, are accounting for to date.

Also, Mr. Redman was given Colonel Al Carone's daughter's phone number, in order that we, as the victims' families, may keep order in the telling of the truth about the CIA-flu deaths of our loved ones, the men and women of our families who were terminated by those who led them, and were trusted to lead them. All U.S. Military personnel, from the lowest dog-face to the highest ranking officer, from day one have that trust factor instilled in them. They know there will be times when that trust is needed for the guy guarding their backsides. This blind trust, this unquestioning trust, has caused the deaths of our men and women in the service of this nation. Adding insult to insurmountable injuries, with callous disregard for those men and women and their families, additional injuries are sustained in this CIA-flu epidemic. They go so far as to wipe out the Military records of these victims, leaving the helpless and hapless in a state of emotional, mental, and financial destitution. Some have fought for their loved ones so hard that it became necessary to take bankruptcy. As stated to Mr. Redman: "Perhaps, just perhaps, with the truths being told by the victims' family members, maybe, just maybe, the U.S. Congress will hear our stories, and grant a hearing and investigation into these acts."

Mrs. (Colonel) Russell E. Herrmann-Herrman (a victim)

## USING HUMANS FOR BIOLOGICAL TESTING

#### by Grandma 12/14/96

# FOLKS, YOU HAD BEST READ THIS AND THINK ABOUT IT! <u>UNITED STATES CODE</u> <u>TITLE 50—WAR AND NATIONAL DEFENSE</u> <u>CHAPTER 32. CHEMICAL AND</u> <u>BIOLOGICAL WARFARE PROGRAM</u>

Sec. 1520. Use of human subjects for testing of chemical or biological agents by Department of Defense; accounting to Congressional committees with respect to experiments and studies; notification of local civilian officials:

\* (a) Not later than thirty days after final approval within the Department of Defense of plans for any experiment or study to be conducted by the Department of Defense, whether directly or under contract, involving the use of human subjects for the testing of chemical or biological agents, the Secretary of Defense shall supply the Committees on Armed Services of the Senate and House of Representatives with a full accounting of such plans for such experiment or study, and such experiment or study may then be conducted only after the expiration of the thirty-day period beginning on the date such accounting is received by such committees.

\* (b)

(1) The Secretary of Defense may not conduct any test or experiment involving the use of any chemical or biological agent on civilian populations unless local civilian officials in the area in which the test or experiment is to be conducted are notified in advance of such test or experiment, and such test or experiment may then be conducted only after the expiration of the thirty-day period beginning on the date of such notification.

(2) Paragraph (1) shall apply to tests and experiments conducted by Department of Defense personnel and tests and experiments conducted on behalf of the Department of Defense by contractors.

# DID YOU READ THIS CAREFULLY? <u>THEN, GO PULL UP</u> EXECUTIVE ORDER #12975 (Oct. 3, 1995) <u>and then, PULL UP</u> <u>EXECUTIVE ORDER #13010, SEC. 5 (c)</u> <u>(July 15, 1996)</u>

Then read very carefully, *The Rise and Fall of the Third Reich*. It's happening again, with the same skillful precision of a master surgeon, skillfully maneuvering, step-by-step, giving time for 30-day

publication and possible opposition, then on to the next carefully planned operation. THINK ABOUT IT!

January 24, 1994, 50 U.S.C., Chemical and Biological Warfare Program, Sec. 1520. The President of the United States, in concert with the Department of Defense, clearly states (of course, they must give the local politicians enough warning so they can get the Hell out of Dodge)—well, read it for yourselves on the front page. Make your own determination.

October 3, 1995, Executive Order #12975, alleging protection of human research subjects and creation of national bioethics advisory commission; clearly states in its entirety "use of humans for research..."

July 15, 1996, Executive Order #13010, at Sec. 5 (c), ties directly in with Sec. 1520 of 50 U.S.C. The President's intent is clearly stated once again:

Executive Order #13010, Sec. 5 (c). "The Advisory Committee shall be established in compliance with the *Federal Advisory Committee Act*, as amended (5 U.S.C.C. App). The Department of Defense shall perform the functions of the President under the *Federal Advisory Committee Act* for the Advisory Committee, except that of reporting to the Congress, in accordance with the guidelines and procedures established by the Administrator of General Services."

#### THINK ABOUT IT!

Now, let's take a look at the *Federal Advisory Committee Act* (5 U.S.C. and 3 U.S.C. Presidential Documents)

The Federal Advisory Committee Act Sec. 6 (c):

"The President shall exclude from this report any information which in his judgement, should be withheld for reasons of national security, and he shall include in such report a statement that such information is excluded."

#### THINK ABOUT IT!

For all of those who relish in the history of the Holocaust of the Third Reich, and for those who keep on telling the story, you had best remember Adolph Hitler, Eichmann, Heydrich, Himmler, Goebbels, Frank, and others systematically began "extraordinary pacification action", also known as the final solution, which "summarily sentenced"—a Nazi euphemism for liquidation. The first to go were the ones in government who had so eagerly assisted in gaining control over the old *Constitution of Germany*, and then the poets, authors, scholars, teachers, doctors, writers, artists, intellects, etc. It did not matter whether it involved a Jew or a Christian. The prime objective was the creation of a slave world for the New Order. (You had best read *The Rise and Fall of the Third Reich*, and *The History of the German General Staff*.)

#### THINK ABOUT IT!

Think about the conditions at the time of the Third Reich! Joblessness, lack of industry, homelessness, the moving of people from their homes and farms into the cities where they were more easily

accessible. Think about this! It's all happening again. Our ex-law enforcement officers, Ted Gunderson [ex-FBI], Sheriff Mack and others, have so desperately tried to tell you, and made video tapes on the crematoriums, holding centers, facilities which separate men, women and children—<u>you must listen</u>.

The last time I was out working in the yard I heard this exceptionally heavy truck engine sound. I raised up and watched military equipment capable of spraying chemicals on both sides of the street, self generated, rolling down the highway approximately 100 feet from where I was standing.

# THINK ABOUT IT!

You had best contact you congressmen/women and have that damned *Federal Advisory Committee Act* repealed! Have your congressman/woman take a look at Title 5-appendix, the *Federal Advisory Committee Act*, Sec. 2. Findings and purpose, (b): "The Congress further finds and declares that:

(1) the need for many existing advisory committees has not been adequately reviewed."

Ask your congressman/woman to repeal the *Federal Advisory Committee Act*, for it gives the President of the United States too much power outside the lawful rules, regulations, boundaries, guidelines, confines, constrictures, and allowances of powers granted only to Congress. Not even Congress has the powers to make such laws, as exampled by these executive orders of President William J. Clinton, identified herein, which are clearly misconstruction and abuse of powers of Office of Public Trust.

Neither Mister Clinton, nor President Clinton, has the powers granted to him by the *Constitution* (it is "ASS-U-MED" that he is referencing the *Constitution of the United States*) to use human subjects for Department of Defense experiments! Nor, is the power of the Office of the President granted powers of a dictator which can turn this nation over (per Sec. 5 [c], Executive Order #13010) to the Department of Defense under any Act! My God, is Congress really that damned stupid!

In the event they are that damned dumb and stupid they had best think about who were the first in line on Hitler's list for liquidation. Right now, our U.S. House and Senate are comprised of approximately 90% "Jewish" persons, as was the movement of the Third Reich in the beginning. Those were among the first 3600 to be summarily sentenced and executed. THINK ABOUT IT! Grandma Herman-Herman

#### CHAPTER 10

#### A TIP OF THE ICEBERG

## MINERALS AND THE HUMAN BODY by V.K. DURHAM 12/28/96

This article is going to be different. We are going to talk about the medical "profession".

Back many years ago, doctors from Johns Hopkins, Mayo, etc., would come to my father's house for duck hunting. They were great fishing and hunting buddies (as long as they could be lodged and had a free personal guide). Discussion after discussion was held on folk remedies. The doctors called them "granny remedies", laughingly. Well, those so called "granny remedies" are much sought after, here in the 1990s and as the old saying goes: When all else fails, go back to the beginning (or to the drawing board and restudy the schematics).

I am, and always have been, a believer in body chemistry. Body chemistry is basically minerals (we came from the collective mineral base of Mother Earth, and her collective minerals are in our bodies). Without these minerals the healthy body begins to fail. I look at potassium as the battery, or as yeast if you're baking a cake. Sodium is like the fuel, or the milk which is the catalyst for the yeast. It takes one to make the other work. If your battery is low, you have a problem. If you are out of gas you have a problem. If the body is low on potassium and sodium, you have a heart attack or go into renal failure (liver and kidneys), and you die. It's just a simple way of looking at what your body is really about. What makes it work, or why does it not work. To me this fancy thing called new medicine is gobbledygook tied up in fancy names. Why? Well, if you boil or render a body down, it will be 90+ percent water and the rest is minerals. Notice something? The body is drug free. Somewhere I read (after such an experiment) little piles of potassium, sodium, copper, sulphur, etc., were obtained by this process of determining what the human body is about. We get those supplemental minerals from our diets. If our diets are lacking in these minerals, our bodies have humongous problems. Or, in the event foreign minerals are introduced into our food chain, such as lead, arsenic, etc. (pesticides), this will affect the chemical balance and cause Bright's disease or cardiac arrest. Oh, there are other illnesses which accompany these two major components of our body (the kidney/liver and heart), and it is believed by me that it is all caused by mineral imbalance. Now, I'm going to tell you another story and it's related because it is my own story.

Back in 1983, I was in a 47-car pileup on I-15, just outside Perris, California. I was on the rear end, and was rear-ended at a rate of speed of approximately 65-70 MPH. My auto was safely stopped, however the oncoming driver never slowed down. She was busy talking to the other occupant in the auto, both hands were off the wheel. I watched the oncoming vehicle from my rear view mirror in horror. Other autos were stopped. Flares were on the ground. I did not know if anyone was injured and on the ground, or not. I thought my heavy auto would hold the oncoming auto if I could hold her with my brakes. I threw the gear in park, and held the brakes.

Everything kept moving as in slow motion. I kept hitting my head against the roof of the car, and kept falling back and striking the headrest with the back of my head. When it was all over, my steering wheel was in the middle of the auto, over the transmission, and it was cracked in two. My auto was within \$500.00 of being totalled. My auto was a Sedan De Ville D'Elegance.

The steering wheel was not the only thing which was broken, nor was the auto the only thing totalled in that collision. My physical body was broken, and my mental capacity totalled. My sternum was broken, just split down the middle. The kidneys, liver, spleen, heart, uterus, etc., were all damaged from the constant ricocheting and striking against the interior of the auto during the collision. The next day I lost my memory. But I do remember a few things. My doctor thought since I was not missing arms or legs and there was no evidence of blood and guts that there was no need for him to come in from the golf course and hospitalize me. "Come into my office in the morning," he said.

By the next morning I was bleeding from the eyes, nose, ears, and my body was swollen twice its normal size. I could not focus my eyes, I was unsteady on my feet and it was difficult for me to walk or talk. He gave me some robaxin, lasix, sleeping pills and tranquilizers, and told me to go home and rest. Later, it was discovered (in my medical records) I was suffering from severe head trauma, a cerebral sack fluid leak, and the bones in my feet were splintered, as were my ankles, knees, elbows, shoulders, a cranial fracture, edema on the brain, broken sternum, back broken in three places, my wrists were splintered, etc. But, keep in mind, I was not injured badly enough to be put into the hospital.

Prior to the accident, my IQ was reportedly 196.6. Later tests resulted in the IQ severely diminished to 90-97. The injuries sustained had rendered me to what is called in the medical profession a "vegetable". Not having family members near, I had no one to assist me with my food preparation, etc. When Russell Herman came to my rescue, he discovered me crawling across the floor to the refrigerator or the freezer, eating my foods raw. Without his help I would have never made it! That's a God's fact!

Aside from the injuries, my mineral balance was thrown off. My kidneys, liver and heart were a damned mess. When recently cleaning out one of the rooms, my medical records were happened upon. I sat down, pulled out the records and I began to read. Contained in those medical records is a story. Laboratory results were in those medical records. Those lab records evidenced remarkable loss of vital minerals.

Curiously, no doctor explored the mineral loss. All the telltale symptoms which accompany such sustained injuries were there, in the lab reports. Had the doctors explored or even remembered that which was learned in first year Med., they would have looked at the remarkable loss of vital minerals, and the kidneys, liver, heart, etc., and I would not have gone through the excessive trauma sustained all those years.

I've heard it said by cynics: "Some people are too damned dumb and stupid to just die, and get the Hell out of the way for the new guys on the street."

What they are really saying is: "Hurry up, old fart, I want to steal what is left."

Well, I did not die. Moreover, I was not dumb and stupid. I could not function properly, and when I would speak everything came out the opposite of what I was thinking. That is why persons who suffer strokes still know what is going on around them. When I was in such bad shape, I remember asking one of my doctors, a Doctor Charles Furst with the National Head Injury Group: "Doctor," I said, "could I have suffered a stroke...?" To which he responded: "Yes, but you did not have a stroke, however," he responded, "the symptoms are the same from the injuries sustained. Therefore, even though you have the symptoms, these were caused by the injuries sustained at the time of the accident. Which is similar to a lack of oxygen to the brain which would be caused by a clot which causes a stroke."

Well, the weight gain continued, the mental confusion continued, the accumulation of excessive water continued, and the inability to void properly. Then the mental problems slowly began to improve. I suffered a heart attack and one damned thing led to another. I bled from the kidneys, and my liver was constantly giving me pain. It was necessary that I reeducate myself, and with Russell's help, slowly, ever so slowly, progress was made. Then he suffered the mishap with the Feds. I was so deathly ill during his illness, it was like the blind leading the blind. He died, but I lived.

The kids at *CONTACT* (God bless them all) sent me the Gaia products and they also sent me the colloidals. I began to take them. I began to improve. Careful studying of my mineral deficits, and steady replacement of those minerals such as potassium, selenium, maganese, calcium, iron, vitamin B series, antioxidants, pycnogenol, vitamin D, cod liver oil, vitamin A, vitamin E, folic acid, sea kelp, and so forth led to healthy weight loss. I have lost about 20 pounds. The water stomach has gone down (the kidney problems cause water to collect in the chest cavity and stomach, a telltale for Bright's disease, or as the old folks called it, Dropsy). But, what is so strange to me is that those doctors knew about mineral deficiency, and they also knew the importance of balancing the vital minerals. But, sadly, no one cared enough or knew enough to check out the mineral deficiency, and to restore the lost minerals (they seem to get their licenses out of Cracker Jack boxes these days). And that is a damned shame.

As to the colloidal silver, I take about four ounces in a Brita (another gift from cousin John Ray and Jeannie), and consume about two Brita containers of water per day. For an old woman whose body got out of control, who never weighed over 125-130 lbs, wore a size 10-12, to gain eighty-plus pounds, with doctors sitting idly by, watching this weight gain occur in less than 30 days, is unconscionable.

I sit and wonder how many people sit starving themselves to death, gaining weight on air, developing huge stomachs and chest cavities (large upper bodies), trying this diet and that diet, when all the time they are suffering from mineral deficiency!

The body's minerals can be stolen by poisons in our food chain or, as in my instance, lost by trauma. Either way, it is devastating to the human being. I truly believe mineral replacement (after discovering what minerals are lost) would decrease the cancer deaths and deaths by coronary disease greatly. Also, I believe it would greatly relieve malignant livers, etc. Do you realize, I am in

remission from pain, for the first time since February 17, 1983! That to me is amazing!

Another thing: I won't leave home without my colloidal silver in my drinking water. I take a bottle with me, and I have been setting off a lot of security monitors lately when I walk through with nothing but my watch and ring on, but what the heck! I am feeling so much better, so what's a security monitor every now and then?

Remember, the body is made up of water and minerals. Both are far more important than you will ever know.

I want to thank the kids at *CONTACT* for getting me started on the right path.

You see, I did not lay down and die. I just got to crankin' and got mad as Hell, and I am doing something about it. It is old fashioned determination to keep you kids from going through what I have gone through, if I can.

LOOK OUT 1997, HERE WE COME!

#### CHAPTER 11

#### UPDATE ON JANET by Dr. Al Overholt

(The lady and children in the Christmas Day auto wreck)

Janet is recovering at home. I had a nice visit with her last week and, considering the circumstances, she is doing very well. She still suffers quite severe pain at times. She has a metal pin in her left leg from the hip down; she said she would have to have it in for 2 years. She had to have bone removed from the hip to help rebuild her knee. This makes it very difficult for her to get around even in a wheel chair. The best news for me is she is giving God credit for saving her life and is in good spirits. Her two children are in the care of her ex-husband at the present time. Her children's names are Susan (8 years old) and Briana Danielle (2 years old). Susan had her leg and hand broken and is doing well. Briana was uninjured—talk about heavenly protection. It was amazing that anyone came out of that car alive. They appreciate your prayers, letters and cards.

> Janet Leary 5200 Entrar Dr. #54 Palmdale, CA 93551

## CHAPTER 12

#### SANAT KUMARA: MAY YOUR LIFE NEVER BE WITHOUT A GOOD CHALLENGE!

Editor's note: The following writing is by the Master Teacher known as Sanat Kumara, also known as the Silver Ray, whom Aton refers to as, "One of mine most beloved first born" in the Phoenix Journal called THE RAINBOW MASTERS. He is an Overseer of our Solar System and is most often associated with the energy source we perceive as our Sun. He, along with the seven great "Rainbow Masters" and many others from the Higher Realms, are communicating at this time to help us get through Earth-Shan's planetary transition and rebalancing.

Again, in Journal #7, called THE RAINBOW MASTERS, Sanat Kumara states:

"I have asked to speak with you because, for me, it is the time of the Great Unveiling and, in a smaller sense, of your Great Graduation to another [higher] plane of consciousness....

"ALMOST ALL THINGS UPON THE FACE OF THE EARTH WILL BE DESTROYED BY THESE THINGS WHICH SHALL COME UPON THIS BELOVED LAND....YOU MUST GET PREPARED; STOP THY QUIBBLING OVER WHETHER OR NOT THIS IS TRUTH. GET YOURSELVES INTO PROTECTION....

"How often we look upon the Earth knowing, as we look upon each small and pitiful creation and creature, that there stands a god, if he would only realize it and apply his godhood....

"MAN IS TERRIFIED AND HE IS SEEKING. HIS HEART IS HUNGRIER THAN IT HAS EVER BEEN BECAUSE HE FEELS THE CHANGES AND SEES THE HOPELESS PLIGHT GROW DAY BY DAY BEFORE HIS EYES.

"Man 'smells' his food and grows ever more hungry; this new vibration is coming forth, and he becomes ever more hungry. He is 'remembering' and he innately KNOWS that he is filled with appetite for things of Spirit in Truth—not just more lies and false prophets, psychics and card readers....

"The clarion call is: 'Come home, Earth!' It is time for Earth to come home into her radiance for which she has labored long and hard....

# *"IT IS THE TIME OF CHOICES, FOR THE HOUR-GLASS IS TRULY EMPTIED, AND IT IS IN THE TURNING OVER TO BEGIN ANEW THE NEXT SEGMENT....*

"The Father placed the Earth and all celestial, primordial matter for man. Man was to be the god of physical form: man, the highest expression of Deity known in the entire Omniverse. Ah, but man misunderstood and misunderstands yet, unto this day. Oh, man: realize that you are the highest form of Deity anywhere in the entirety of the Omniverse. This does not mean that you are the only *'man' within the Omniverse. But there is nothing beyond you; in this you are grand. Ah, but also in this you are the lowest.* 

"You are lowest because you have KNOWING and other life forms do not. Therefore, you must be both their brother and their servant."

For more background on this important Elder Brother and Ascended Teacher, plus earlier writings by him and other Ascended Masters, see THE RAINBOW MASTERS journal. Refer to the Back Page for ordering information.

## 1/18/96 SANAT KUMARA

Good morning, my friend. It is I, Sanat Kumara. You know me as "Grandfather"; others may recognize me as Tonkashila. I come now to you as the representative of the Silver Ray of Creator Source. Many associate me with your Sun and resonate with my life-giving Light. Please do NOT get overly fixated upon the label, for if you do, you will surely miss the message.

The label is to identify to you ones who need such in order to not be overwhelmed with who or what we, from the Higher Realms, really are. We are Co-Creators who have walked the paths that you are on and have learned our lessons. We are what you are—thought projections of Creator. We are Light. We are One in that we are all connected to Source and we project outward in many dimensions simultaneously from this One Light.

You and I are Creator experiencing and growing. We all have a common purpose—it is to go forth and experience and GROW. We only differ in the approach to this basic directive which is encoded into the "genetic" makeup of our Souls.

If one creates a wheel, then would it not be better to go forth and create a use for the wheel than to have everyone going through the process of creating a wheel? See the elegance and wisdom of that which is before you, and use the tools that you are given in order to move an idea forward.

We of the Lighted Brotherhood do not have need for ones to reinvent the wheel over and over again. Stop asking for the secrets of Tesla. Take that which you know and use the gifts that you have to create a new and better "Soul-ution" to the challenges that you are currently being faced with. In doing so, you will realize the joy that you have been looking for, yet missing, all these years.

Creating is JOY manifesting!

For example, look to a small child and give them finger paints or colored pencils, and you will see them play with them for hours. Yes, eventually they will get bored with them for they will have experimented and realized the limitations of their current abilities.

For another example, consider the simple act of giving. When you give to another spontane-

ously, do you not, in effect, create surprise and pleasure within the recipient? How does this make you feel? Even if you give to a complete stranger who you may never see again, you will feel at some level the emotional acknowledgment of the appreciation which that one feels within when they realize the value of the object or kind act.

Look for opportunities to express in a creative manner and you will be well on your way to creating the joy you desire.

If you feel that your life is full of misery and grief, then I would suggest you take a long, hard look at what it is that you are doing. This is not as easy a task as it first may seem, for it will not be plain to see the overall impact of your actions as a whole.

Many perceive that they are helping others "ALL" of the time. Yet, these ones may not realize that they have to let others grow and experience for themselves. This is quite common of overprotective parents who are actually stifling the creativity of their children, all the while thinking that they are doing the "best thing" for the child. This, in turn, will cause the children to rebel and distance themselves from those who are actually suppressing their ability to fulfill their innate inner directive—to experience and grow.

The hardest thing for a person to do is to allow another, whether it be friend or relative, to experience for themselves the "pitfalls" of life. Ones will yell at, beat, and mentally abuse the ones they love in order to reinforce their love and to "protect" these ones from going out and fulfilling their inner desire to experience and GROW.

Look at your actions. Are you trying to control another by making them conform to your way of doing things, or are you allowing the uniqueness of the individual to grow in its own way? What right do you have to interfere with another? We are, here, talking of adults, and NOT small children who are not well adjusted to their body or the environment in which they are experiencing.

Allow even the small children to express their creativity. For instance, if you are going to rearrange the furniture in the child's room, maybe you can give them a choice as to where they might like to put their bed. This will help them to feel a sense of worth and pride in having helped to create the change in the appearance of the room. Even a two-year-old child will find this fun! You will also be helping the child to learn that he/she can think for them-selves—and CREATE.

Look for opportunities to give others the chance to create. Stop trying to control everything and everyone, for in doing so you will have usurped the opportunity of another to experience and grow. You may feel uncomfortable doing this at first, but the repercussions of not doing this will be quite a bit more uncomfortable to you in the long run.

Look at where you are this day and at how you feel. Take PERSONAL responsibility for your condition and look at those things that you are preoccupied with or otherwise worried about. What hold have they on you?

Do you worry about whether or not your teenage child is having sex? Did you ever stop to wonder if the teenager is worried whether or not he or she is having sex? Be assured that they probably are, especially growing up in this "modern" society. Now, ask yourself: "Why don't I have better communication with this child?"

Have you pushed this person away from you through your attempts to protect them? Do you always find faults in their young, "inexperienced" logic? Can you make suggestions without insisting that they do a thing YOUR way? You should offer to them guidance and give them your reasons for offering same. But above all—allow them to experience and grow!

If you are concerned about whether or not your child is doing drugs or having sex, then talk to them and explain to them your feelings on these matters and acknowledge to them that they will have to eventually be responsible for their actions and choices.

No parent wishes to bury a child, but who are you really burying? You are burying the body, not the person. The soul, who was wearing the body, shall eventually realize that their actions were destructive and that they cannot blame another for their choices.

Understand that you can only offer assistance and, if it is refused, then you will have to release this God-Fragment of Light to its own destiny of choice.

See where you might have made mistakes; find forgiveness within for self, and then release the past, lest it consume you in the present. YOU HAVE ALL MADE SUCH MISTAKES!

Many have learned these lessons late in life and wish that they could go back and do it over. You cannot go back, and if you did, you would make the same mistake again, for in going back you only would have that which you had then. You need these experiences; be thankful that you have grown to the point of NOW being able to spot your errors. Allow others to have the same opportunities to grow as well.

When you are able to help another in this manner, you will find that friends and family members will actually come TO you, seeking advice, for you are unassuming and they will see that you DO know what you are talking about. But, allow them to come into this realization for themselves. In this way you will have gained the respect you deserve and you will be heard instead of being ignored. Do not be the one who must always interject an overbearing opinion.

Allow for others to solve their own problems in their own way—and they will probably include you in the problem solving, if and when they feel it is appropriate.

Inasmuch as you clean the garbage out of YOUR life, you will help others to do the same. In the process of creating new answers to YOUR problems, you will begin, again, to feel the joy you long for within.

Many can remember back to a point in their life where they did not have much to really

worry about, to a time when everything seemed new and interesting. Your life could be this way again IF you were to but realize that you do not need to place the restrictions and burdens upon yourself that you currently do.

Again: "What is so important that you must continue to beat yourself up, over and over again, day after day?"

When you can honestly realize that the answer to this question is "NOTHING!", then you will have learned the first step to overcoming all that may be bothering and annoying you.

You will now have to evaluate, for yourself, what it is that you are doing, and realize that there is probably a better (new to you or untried) manner in which to handle the "problem" that you are faced with.

Let us take, for example, that you are in a relationship with another and you are constantly yelling at one another in your attempts to be understood. You may wish to experiment with different manners of getting your point across. Perhaps a quiet whisper, or even, perhaps, giving in, for a change, to the suggestions of the one who is probably "only trying to help".

Put aside your ego long enough to realize when you are being stubborn just because you hate it when others are right. Are the things that you argue over really very important in the overall scope of the experiencing down there?

Do you argue over who should do the "menial" chores? Can you not share the chores and be grateful that you have someone to share with and talk to, instead? Work with one another and you will be surprised at what two (or more) Aspects of Creator's Light can come up with when focused on the same problem.

If your old routines are leaving you unfulfilled inside, can you not break free from the programming of the routine enough to create a better way—perhaps a "routine" of evolving?

All things are in a constant state of change! When you hold onto the past or freeze a moment in the present (which is actually, again, holding onto the past), you are resisting the prime directive within. You are then, in effect, causing unnecessary pressures in your life by resisting the natural flow of experiencing. Like a boulder stuck in the midst of a flowing stream, you create backpressures and "ripples" in the otherwise natural flow of Experience. It is most difficult to not want to go back and make a different choice and see where that one leads you.

You are where you are because you need the challenge of the new experience. With each new challenge, you are presented with an opportunity to create a soul-ution that has never been tried before. You may not always be successful in each attempt, but you will eventually be quite successful at experiencing and growing, and this will gradually lead you to the answers you seek and the joy you desire. Be forever persistent and you will NOT know failure!

I am Sanat Kumara, your Elder Brother, offering assistance to those who may desire same. I come in the Light of the One Light, Creator Source. May your life NEVER be without a good challenge, lest you stop growing completely!

SALU!

#### CHAPTER 13

#### COLD, DIABOLICAL TRUTH BEHIND

#### <u>EMERGING VIRUSES</u> POTENT INTERVIEW WITH DR. HOROWITZ by Rick Martin 1/28/97

Dr. Leonard Horowitz, D.M.D., M.D., M.P.H., a Harvard graduate, independent investigator and internationally known authority in Public Health education, is one of American healthcare's most captivating motivational speakers. He has served on the faculties of both Harvard and Tufts Universities, and has degrees from Harvard University School of Public Health and Rutgers University. He has authored ten books, including the critically acclaimed Florida dental AIDS tragedy exposé, Deadly Innocence—The Kimberly Bergalis Case; Solving The Greatest Murder Mystery in the History of American Medicine; and, most recently, Emerging Viruses: AIDS & Ebola—Nature, Accident or Intentional?

dr. horowitz pict.

Dr. Horowitz is now on a nation-wide speaking tour and has been the guest on many nationally renowned radio-programs with hosts such as Art Bell and Jeff Rense. I recently met Dr. Horowitz at the Jan. 10-13 Pasadena Natural Health Show where he was a guest speaker, and he agreed to an interview to be shared with CONTACT readers. That interview took place by telephone on Jan. 14, 1997.

**Martin:** Let me just begin by thanking you on behalf of all *CONTACT* readers for the invaluable work you are doing in exposing the tremendously diabolical and, unfortunately successful, coverup concerning the despicable development of viruses such as AIDS and EBOLA.

It was a pleasure to meet with you and listen to your presentation at the Pasadena Natural Health Show this past weekend. As you indicated in your talk, AIDS and EBOLA are just the tip of the iceberg with respect to retroviruses that are available and, indeed, being utilized in many contaminated vaccines.

We have a lot of ground that I want to cover with you, and since we have published literally hundreds of pages of information on the development of AIDS, as well as extensive interviews with Joyce Riley and Peter Kawaja, in addition to printing voluminous material on the very key issue of depopulation of a planet, I would like you to begin by giving a fairly brief general introduction to what you are currently trying to expose, and then there are some very specific questions I would like you to expand on in great detail. So, let's begin with, generally, what is the main topic of *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*?

Dr. Horowitz: It's the man-made origin of AIDS and EBOLA. It's virtually who made these viruses, when they made these types of virus, how they made them. Because most people could never imagine this to be true, we've reprinted the government contracts so you even know how much the bioengineers were paid for this type of research. And the purpose of the book is to take a very close look at what we are doing in biotechnology, what we are doing in vaccines, vaccinations-take a very close look at those people we've entrusted with our health and safety and ask some very serious questions, such as: Are we bringing ourselves death and disease by trusting the people that we've been trusting? And, the book's purpose, in the long range political sense, is to develop a grass-roots effort to raise public awareness to act at state, local, and federal levels to, essentially, take an issue that has been virtually covered up and have a solid, independent Congressional investigation into all of the published facts; into analyses of the vaccine lots; into FDA reforms, so that the FDA is allowed to tell health scientists the truth about what the risks are associated with vaccines, so that they can then tell health professionals and the public to call for an investigation of the vaccine lots that, most plausibly, spread AIDS to the world; to call for lookback studies into the populations who received these contaminated vaccines and, in that effort, hopefully bring the truth to light. And I say hopefully because, in the past, these types of efforts, even after they've gotten to Congress, have been either censored or Congressional investigating committees have been-particularly in this area of biological weapons-directed by the Rockefellers and the Rockefeller Foundation and the Rockefellers' committees investigating these type of things, and that's like putting the wolf in charge of the chicken coop.

So what the purpose of the book is—and I think also, there is kind of like a subtle, I guess spiritual purpose to the book—the purpose is to not only help save lives but to look at the issue of man's inhumanity towards man, and to recognize that the people that are really at the very top of all of this appear to be extremely evil. Not only, in my opinion, are they blinded by ideology, in a sense, this appears to be, to many people whom I've consulted with, a symptom of the forces of good vs. the forces of evil on the planet. And it is really playing out, very interestingly now and very quickly now, to what appears to have been predicted for centuries now with the prophecies, as well as what the *Book of Revelation* discusses. In fact I tell people, after reading the book *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*, to go back and reread the *Book of Revelation*, particularly Chapter 18. And the parallels are so striking that even scientists who understand the scriptures and who understand, who have at least dabbled in the *Bible*, have to come to a conclusion that it is very plausible that what we are witnessing here has been truly predicted and this is really God's Plan unfolding. And I think that that is a purpose, also, that has very uplifting benefits.

The three reasons why the book is extremely important in terms of uncovering and disclosing the true origin of AIDS & EBOLA is, number one, sociological. The people who have been blamed for this epidemic, the Gays and the Blacks have clearly been wronged. They have been wrongly blamed. They have been persecuted. They have taken on the guilt and the shame associated with this disease, to some extent, which has reduced their self-esteem and, in essence, has reduced their immunocapacity to even fight off infectious diseases. That's a part of a very large picture of this illness. So, to tell the truth about the origin can help sociologically for healing.

Secondly, scientifically, if you know the origin of AIDS and, very clearly, one of the research projects that I failed to mention is also—besides testing the vaccines for contamination and doing look-back studies—we could actually reproduce the circumstances under which these early laboratory experiments were taking place, recombine the viruses that they were recombining, and look and see what the relationships are to the simian-immuno deficiency viruses, which are related to HIV and HIVs, HIV-1 and HIV-2. So, that type of research, Dr. W. John Martin would like to do and is in the current process of writing up a grant proposal to do that. And the purpose, ultimately, is to help develop treatments because if you know the gene sequences and you know how they came together, and you're now in the research science beginning to learn the specific amino-acid sequences that relate to specific molecular changes within the cell that are causing disease—so, there is hope that you could develop therapies, be they genetic therapies, be they other therapies. So, that's—scientifically, I think it's an important question also, and I think I have a fair consensus in the scientific community about that.

The next reason is, ethical and moral. Number one, if this epidemic began (which in my opinion it did) through contaminated vaccines and through sloppy science, and perhaps even by intent, then there is no doubt in my mind that learning that truth could help, not only help reduce the spread of AIDS as it may be continuing to be spread, both through accidental contamination of vaccines, as well as, perhaps intent. Then you could help reduce the epidemic by telling the truth about it and finding the facts about its origin.

**Martin:** Speaking of evil, let's talk about one of your favorite people, Dr. Robert Gallo, and I do say that literally with tongue-in-cheek. Who is Dr. Gallo and why is he so important to the American public?

**Dr. Horowitz:** Rick, let me just finish my one last comment. Is that alright?

Martin: Sure. Dr. Horowitz: The last part was the ethical and moral.

Martin: Yes.

Dr. Horowitz: So, and that fits into the spiritual.

Martin. Yes, it certainly does.

**Dr. Horowitz:** That's exactly my concern, the Big Picture. The people who have perpetrated this, be they blind scientists working for the government or Satanic forces...

Martin: Right.

Dr. Horowitz: ...working for Satan...

Martin: Yes.

**Dr. Horowitz:** They really have to be exposed and they really need to take responsibility, and they need to be accountable. And, I mean, I'm not looking for blood. I'm just looking for the truth and to stop what appears to be so insane. And that's a spiritual quest, and that's why I'm really—what's moving me to do this work.

Now, with regard to Dr. Gallo, you want to know about Dr. Gallo?

Martin: Yes, in detail.

**Dr. Horowitz:** [*Laughing*.] Well, I can tell you the story about what happened at the 11th International Conference on AIDS in Vancouver, if you like?

Martin: Sure.

**Dr. Horowitz:** During that conference I was invited to participate and ask Dr. Gallo questions in an Open Forum that he was conducting.

Martin: Now, for our readers who don't know who he is, who is Dr. Gallo?

**Dr. Horowitz:** Dr. Gallo is one of the world's leading AIDS scientists, AIDS experts. He is the world's preeminent retrovirologist, expert in retroviruses. He used to work at the National Cancer Institute, and now he's been given the Institute for Human Virology at the University of Baltimore or affiliated with the University of Baltimore, in Maryland. This scientist, allegedly, discovered or codiscovered the AIDS virus with Dr. Luc Montagnier from the Pasteur Institute. What ultimately was shown is that Dr. Gallo committed, at minimum, scientific misconduct, and more likely, scientific fraud in cloning Dr. Montagnier's isolate. People in Gallo's lab and Gallo cloned the isolate that Montagnier had discovered, and then called it his. And then he decided that this viruses was in his family of discovered retroviruses, the HTLV-1, 2, and he called the AIDS viruses, initially, HTLV-3. France ended up suing the United States for about a decade. The lawsuit was not so long ago settled and, as a result, France is now sharing the royalties with Dr. Gallo and the Americans.

At the 11th International Conference on AIDS, knowing that Gallo and his research affiliate at Litton Bionetics Research Laboratory—whose laboratory operations were active both in the Bethesda area, as well as Northwest Uganda.

Martin: Litton is one of my questions further down but they're all linked, so keep on talking.

**Dr. Horowitz:** Well, Litton Bionetics is a subsidiary or was a subsidiary, actually it still exists, it is a subsidiary—actually, it's no longer Litton, they've sold it. They sold parts of it to Medpath—they are a very large laboratory organization, and Medpath, I believe, is still owned by Dow Chemical or Dow Corning. They were a subsidiary at the time of the mega military weapons contracting firm, Litton Industries, at the time Litton was vying for 6th and 7th place of the world military market providers. They were—they are currently 11th. Litton Industries is currently the 11th top military weapons supplier for the world.

And so Dr. Gallo worked with these folks at the National Cancer Institute and what they did—I'm sorry-at Litton Bionetics AND the National Cancer Institute, and what they did is they took monkey viruses that were considered human benign and they recombined them with virtually every animal cancer virus known, and there were many. Among the things that they recombined were viruses such as feline leukemia, virus RNA, and chicken leukemia sarcoma virus RNA, they combined these with monkey viruses and then-chicken leukemia virus RNA, for example, caused immune suppression, wasting and death. And, of course, cat leukemia virus RNA produced a laundry list of symptoms virtually identical to what AIDS patients suffer from, and then, even at that point, that virus could not infect humans. It needed another major mutation before it could do that. And now you're going to begin to see why it was Dr. Robert Gallo's speculation that it was an African Green Monkey that bit a man, or was eaten by a human being. And then, of course, there were other rumors that men began to have sex with African Green Monkeys the size of chickens. Now you're going to see why all of that was totally ridiculous, scientific hogwash, because to get this mutant virus, to get these recombinant or what we call hybrid viruses to infect humans and go from monkey to humans, they cultured it in human white blood cells in some studies, in human fetal tissue cells in culture in other studies, so that it would adapt. You know, it would develop the GT-120 proteins on the external envelope, it would develop perhaps not the specific proteins but very similar GP-120-like proteins, on the external envelope, so that it could attach to the human cells, be carried across the cell membranes, enter the gene of the cell and then do virtually everything that the AIDS virus does. Now knowing that, and then knowing how most plausibly the AIDS epidemic began was through the 1974 experimental hepatitis B vaccine that was developed, partially, in Litton Bionetics-supplied contaminated chimpanzees and Rhesus monkeys, and that this vaccine was tested simultaneously in 200,000 human subjects in New York City and Central Africa by 1974. I went to this conference wherein Dr. Gallo was speaking and I asked Dr. Gallo a question. And that was, "Dr. Gallo, are you at all concerned that your early research in taking monkey viruses, such as SV40, in the presence of Simian foamy retrovirus contaminants"----and Simian foamy retrovirus contaminants, Dr. Gallo knew, contain that unique enzyme called reverse transcriptase which, virtually, makes the AIDS virus work. And then I said, "and then recombining these viruses with cancer viruses, such as feline leukemia virus RNA and chicken leukemia sarcoma virus RNA, and then culturing them in human white blood cells in some studies, and human fetal tissue cells in culture in other studies, might have given rise to the AIDS virus or its progenitors, which might have contaminated vaccines by way of contaminated monkeys and chimpanzees shipped by your colleagues at Litton Bionetics to the vaccine manufacturers at Merck, Sharp & Dohme."

Well, to make, I guess, a short story even briefer, he got very angry with me. He told me that he never did this work; he couldn't have done this work, and that I need to go back and get a grade 101-level of biologic science training, high-school level.

Martin: Did Gallo really say to you that AIDS was an accident?

**Dr. Horowitz:** When I pressed him, when I pressed him on my thesis and I said, "You mean to say it's not possible"—now this was on July 30 during a conversation, he phoned me.

Martin: Was that last year?

**Dr. Horowitz:** That's last year [1996], and he allowed me to tape it. And I think probably for your readers it might be best if I stop here, go out to my camper, get the specific quote, and then call you back with it, so you get it right.

Martin: That's fine.

Dr. Horowitz: Ok, give me two minutes. [Then, after a pause:] Ok, recording?

Martin: Yes.

**Dr. Horowitz:** Specifically, with regard to the response, when I pressed him on it and I said, "So there's absolutely no possibility these types of experiments, and not necessarily in your lab, present the building blocks where hybrids were being created that might have given rise to the HIVs?"

Dr. Gallo replied, quote, "No. I cannot say no to you. I don't say no to you. I said that we don't have any virus that we know of that has homology to HIV-1, to say this became HIV-1 except for the monkey virus SIV or the human virus HIV-2, which is essentially exactly the same as the strain of SIV. We just don't have any virus that has those sequences in it. Now, if you say to me, could it be an unidentified virus that mixed with A, with B, with C, then I would say, yes, that's possible." End quote.

Then, a little bit later on in the conversation—let's see if I have that quote here, too—I have that in another document.

Martin: That's ok, I have quite a long list of questions.

**Dr. Horowitz:** In essence, what he said was this, with regard to the accident. When we were discussing the plausibility of the theory that I have advanced, though he said that he could not argue with it, he did say that I was barking up the wrong tree, but that he could tell me, even more plausibly, how it might have happened by accident, at that time. Now, that is not a direct quote. That is, virtually....

Martin: Paraphrase?

Dr. Horowitz: Paraphrase, yes. I have the direct quote in another document.

Martin: What is DNA provirus menus? And then, also, endonuclease?

**Dr. Horowitz:** Well, in very simple terms, what DNA provirus means, it is virtually the result of a very unGodly procedure. It is—virtually God created all of human life, the natural, healthy cells to operate based on taking the blueprint of life called DNA, and from that developing RNA, messenger RNA and transfer RNA, to play a major role in protein manufacture within the cell to help the cell develop health cell structures and healthy new cells. After you get infected with this retrovirus, this unique enzyme, reverse transcriptase, virtually calls for life to operate in reverse. It calls for the making of provirus DNA by transcribing the RNA that the virus provides. So it's virtually a back-

wards process of life. And so you have the term reverse transcriptase to describe the enzyme. And this provirus DNA is then aided by another enzyme that the virus delivers called endonuclease. It's a scissors-like enzyme that cuts open the normal gene sequence within the healthy cell and allows this foreign destructive provirus DNA to be inserted into God's magnificent, perfect creation. And so then what happens is that as the cell now tries to reproduce itself, it reads the blueprint of life and it gets fooled. Instead of developing only healthy new cell structures, it begins to develop viruses, and new AIDS viruses, as well. And these viruses then bud-off of the white blood cells. In doing so, they take little pieces of the outside proteins off the healthy, or now infected, white blood cells, and the body mounts an immune response, develops antibodies not only to fight off the viruses but, it again gets fooled because little pieces of the normal cells are attached to the viruses, which now the body recognizes as foreign. And that becomes, then, an autoimmune disease which is why, in most cases, antibodies are helpful to fight off diseases. With AIDS, the antibodies are formed against the normal body's white blood cells. And that's why, although you may have only one out of thousands of T-cells infected with the AIDS virus, which is one of Dr. Peter Duesburg's arguments, one of the major ones...

Martin: We'll get into him in a minute here.

**Dr. Horowitz:** Ok. But, now you see, you have the entire immune system generating antibodies against your normal white blood cells. So, you know, you really have a major problem going on that is not just associated with an AIDS virus infection, it's associated with anything that can reduce your immuno-capacity or immune-resistance. That's why the AIDS virus infection is a cofactor in the disease process.

Martin: Good answer. Why is the date Feb. 12, 1962, so significant?

**Dr. Horowitz:** That is the day that the Litton Bionetics Research Contract began for NIH Contract 712025, titled *The Investigation of Viral Carcinogenesis In Primates*, and primates, of course, are monkeys AND humans. And that day is extremely important because that's the day that Litton began the project under which numerous AIDS-like and EBOLA-like viruses were developed, and that all of this was conducted under a highly funded, largely secret, cancer research program that predated Nixon's war on cancer by a decade. And it was called *The Special Virus Cancer Program*. And that program was the direct result of well over 100 million human beings being inoculated with Salk and Sabin's polio vaccines that the authorities realized had just delivered cancer viruses.

Martin: Now, this was in Africa we're talking about?

**Dr. Horowitz:** No, all over the world, particularly Russia. Mostly in Russia. The trials for the polio vaccines continued largely in Russia, but in other areas also—also in America. By 1960-61, we were already administering the Sabin vaccines in tests, and we were delivering—our authorities were delivering—Simian Virus 40, Simian Foamy Retroviruses, Herpes Viruses from monkeys such as cytomegalovirus, such as Epstein Barr viruses, those are some of the viruses that are associated with chronic fatigue. And they were delivering these viruses and the authorities at Merck, Sharp, & Dohme and the National Institute of Health, particularly Maurice Hilleman, went to Sabin during a meeting, and he says, "You know, I've got a problem with your vaccine."

And Sabin says, "What's the problem."

Hilleman says to Sabin, "Cancer."

He says, "What are you talking about?"

Hilleman says to Sabin, "Well, you've got a cancer virus, I believe, in your vaccine."

Sabin says, "Nah."

Hilleman says, "Yes, I'm telling you."

So, at that point—now this is about 1960-61—there was a HUGE internal stir at the National Institute of Health, at the highest levels. And from that, they then began to develop secret monkey virus cancer research studies, in an effort to develop vaccines to prevent the plagues of cancer that they suspected were going to come about as a result of the contaminated vaccines. And, as they were doing this research, of course, because much of the funding was the military's and they were interested in using these as biological weapons—then you had funding for biological weapons by the same researchers who were involved in investigating this for humanitarian reasons.

**Martin:** Ok, since you brought up biological weapons, I'm going to jump ahead. You've written at great length about Henry Kissinger's involvement. In your research, speaking of biological weapons, what have you uncovered about George Bush's role in the development and dissemination of deadly retroviruses and the like?

**Dr. Horowitz:** In the book, *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*, I go into George Bush's role as being the initiator of the population control agenda. He was the principal, initial promoter in Congress when he was still a Congressman from Texas, of population control. And at the time, they were just focusing on population control in the Third World, and their motive was economic and national security. Well, it turns out that Henry Kissinger, his New World Order-and most people have no clue as to what the New World Order is. People have heard about the New World Order but they-few people know that the contemporary evolution of the New World Order, that is, over the past 45, let's say 40 years-has been Henry Kissinger's 1955 Harvard Ph.D. thesis, entitled The Meaning of History, wherein he lays out the need for ongoing small wars around the planet to maintain the economic alignment of the superpowers. And, of course, the military wars-not only are we seeing those continue today in Bosnia and the Middle East, but we have seen an increase in all of the other small wars, like the war on AIDS, the war on Cancer, the war on Drugs, the war on Crime, the war on illegal immigration, the war on illiteracy-all of these wars which we're continuing to lose, and that it doesn't matter because they're still being funded by, and making vast fortunes for, the military medical industrial complex. And so, Henry Kissinger is directly implicated in my book Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA because he virtually ordered the development of these types of viruses. And the story goes, in 1968, when Kissinger took over as NSC adviser under Richard Nixon—and, by the way, he was being considered for that position for that post, along with Roy Ash, the President of Litton Industries. Well, Kissinger got the job. Roy Ash got over 5 billion dollars in military contracts the next year, of which Litton Bionetics would soon receive 10 million

dollars for the development of immune system-ravaging viruses for germ warfare. At any rate, when Kissinger took over as NSC adviser, he almost immediately ordered Melvin Laird to do a reassessment of America's biological weapons capabilities. You see, he was looking for alternatives to nuclear weapons. How he got to that position, as nuclear weapons guru of the world, was through his relationship with Nelson Rockefeller. Nelson Rockefeller made Henry Kissinger the Nuclear Weapons Study Group Director for the Council on Foreign Relations. And here again, most people believe that the Council on Foreign Relations is a government organization. It's not. It is run by the world's leading industrialists and military industrialists. And so-of course it's a Rockefeller-led type of an organization now—Kissinger plays a major role in this organization. He was instrumental in choosing the option for developing these viruses and he was also, horrifyingly, involved in Project Paperclip, which was the exfiltration and importation of Nazis out of Germany to America to work for American intelligence and American industry. And among the peoplebesides Klaus Barbi and Joseph Mengele-that they imported (that is, Kissinger and General Bowling and others at American intelligence) was Eric Traub, and his assistant, Hitler's top biological weapons developers; and Eric Traub was one of the world's leading virologists. And they came to work under the Central Intelligence Agency for the United States Navy Biological Research Laboratory, which is affiliated with the University of California, both at Berkeley and at Irvine, and that's exactly where Dr. Peter Duesberg is.

Martin: That was one of my next questions. Let's talk about Peter Duesberg for a while.

**Dr. Horowitz:** Sure. Well, my concerns are seriously legitimate concerns regarding Dr. Duesberg. And my concerns stem from what Dr. Duesberg did in 1986 when, in science, he parted company with Dr. Gallo. All of a sudden he became the principal alternative AIDS expert saying that HIV does not cause AIDS. And you have a vast number of people in alternative health care that listen to him and believe him. And 80 percent of what he's saying, perhaps 90 percent of what he's saying, is absolutely true, irrefutable scientific fact. The problem is, the 10 to 20 percent that he's not telling you is more important than what he's telling you. The fact is, he was intimately involved in the development of these types of viruses with Dr. Robert Gallo. In 1971 during a conference, when asked by Dr. Gallo, "Peter, do you think if we took Type-C cancer viruses and recombined them, and then," (paraphrasing his comments to Dr. Duesberg), "if we take these, and of course do all of the manipulative procedures and get them to be infectious for humans, do you think we could cause cancer in humans, using these types of Type-C cancer viruses?"

And of course the AIDS virus goes through a Type-C cancer virus morphogenesis to become the AIDS virus. And Peter Duesberg responds to Dr. Gallo, in 1971, he says, quote: "That's absolutely right." End quote. This was, of course, in front of a large symposium.

So, my concern, knowing that, number one, Henry Kissinger and General Bowling brought in Eric Traub, a Nazi directly out of Hitler's work groups—that Project Paperclip infiltrated or exfiltrated some 2,000 Nazis, 900 medical and industrial scientists, and that Project Paperclip, although on the books it may have ended, but the fact of the matter is, all of the Nazis, virtually all of the Nazis survived and thrived after the war. They got out with all of their money. Their futures were intact and supported by Central Intelligence, and that, I suspect strongly that Peter Duesberg may be one of those Nazis. I believe that, even if he did not come over directly under a Project

Paperclip contract wherein they paid Nazi scientists \$65,000 a year, beginning in 1948, plus benefits, and that was a fortune in 1948.

# Martin: Good salary.

**Dr. Horowitz:** Even if he did not come over during that time, and even if he didn't come over until the 1960s—because President Bush, during his presidential campaign, was funded by the Nazis that were brought out, as well as their heirs—and that Project Paperclip, in that sense, therefore has never ceased. We are still exfiltrating Nazi scientists who carry a One World Order, New World Order agenda out of Germany, to work for both American intelligence and American industry. I suspect that Dr. Duesberg, given what he's saying and not saying, is actually a perpetrator of counterintelligence. And what he's doing is identical to the traditional Hegelian method of disinformation. What he's doing is providing the antithesis to Dr. Gallo's thesis. See, in Hegelian counterintelligence, what you do is you provide a thesis—such as like Dr. Gallo, HIV causes AIDS—and the antithesis, Dr. Duesberg, HIV does not cause AIDS—and in the process, everybody gets confused. You have synthesis. In mass confusion, people don't know what to believe. They tune out. They go to sleep. That's exactly what we have.

Given the fact the media in America are so strongly controlled, and personally I have evidence that, on at least three occasions, clearly my work has been censored. You have *The New York Times* wire services, *Associated Press* wire services, you have *The Washington Post* and *L.A. Times* wire services, you have Dr. Duesberg filling virtually a hundred percent of all of the alternatives. They have Dr. Gallo and HIV equals AIDS thesis, eighty percent of the limelight and the twenty percent that remains, for alternative debate, is given to Dr. Duesberg. And as a result of that, you have a mass public that goes to sleep. They tune out. So, I see Dr. Duesberg playing a very important role for counterintelligence, and for that reason I suspect the worst. And I would like to be clearly shown that I am mistaken. But until I am, I can not in good faith trust Dr. Duesberg.

Martin: Where is he now?

Dr. Horowitz: He's still affiliated with the University of California.

Martin: At Berkeley?

**Dr. Horowitz:** Yes, at Berkeley, I believe. And what we are told is a sob story that Dr. Duesberg is forlorn, and he's out of the mainstream, and he can't get research funding. But meanwhile, *The New York Times* book reviews ran a two-and-a-half-page spread on his latest book. Now, I find that unbelievable. I've never, ever read that long of an article about a single book in *The New York Times* before. And as I read this review, it wasn't a bad review. In fact, it didn't even take an alternative position to it until the last paragraph of the review. So, I don't see that Duesberg is so down and out. ...*To be continued*.

# CHAPTER 14

# THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 1/28/97

#### AMENDMENT FEVER HITS CONGRESS

Excerpted from THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 1/12/97, [quoting:]

An epidemic of constitutional amendment fever is spreading in the corridors of the 105th Congress.

At least two proposed amendments appear to have a healthy chance of winning approval in both House and Senate. One amendment would require that the federal budget be balanced except in certain circumstances and the other would ban flag burning.

A third proposal with wide appeal would broaden the rights of crime victims.

Prospects are less certain for amendments that would limit lawmakers' terms, require a two-thirds congressional vote to raise taxes, allow prayer in public schools and limit spending in political campaigns.

"We're in a new stage of amendment fever," said Kathleen Sullivan, a constitutional law professor at Stanford University. "For the first time in at least 20 years, there are a high number of amendments being taken seriously."

Sullivan is one who thinks the *Constitution* shouldn't be changed casually.

"The *Constitution* should not be used as a bargaining chip for short-run political gains," Sullivan said. "It was intended", as Chief Justice Marshall once said, "to endure for the ages to come". That's why the framers made amendments so difficult because they wanted to restrain us from writing this year's polls into the *Constitution*.

"The *Constitution* has this kind of a mystical civic force that is the one thing we all agree upon as the bedrock of our system."

Oddly, many of the proposed amendments are being pushed by Republicans, who usually take a more cautious approach to changing the *Constitution*.

"One of the ironies has been that the ascendancy of the conservative party to the majority has led to a proliferation of amendments, which is the very antithesis of conservatism," said Thomas E. Mann, a Brookings Institution scholar. [*Just another one of the Elite's play on words to fool "us slaves" since both parties are CONTROLLED BY THE ELITE.*]

But, he added, "It's a way to advance objectives that can't be achieved in any other ways [especially

if they are malevolent, dastardly and selfish objectives as are the Elite's plans]."

Of the 11,000 amendments proposed since the *Constitution* was drafted more than 200 years ago, only 33 passed Congress and only 27 of those were ratified by the states. [End quoting]

I certainly hope you start working overtime writing letters to, phoning and faxing Congress to bring a halt in the Elite's attempt to replace our *Constitution* with their CONSTITUTION OF INTERDEPENCE OF ALL THE WORLD'S PEOPLE UNDER THEIR NEW WORLD ORDER.

# DOCTOR: ASSISTED DEATH <u>A 'MORTAL DANGER'</u>

Excerpted from *THEORLANDO SENTINEL*, 1/11/97, [quoting:]

About 10 percent of the physician-assisted suicides in the Netherlands over 27 years were not voluntary, a Dutch doctor has told a jury in a lawsuit challenging Florida's ban on assisted suicide. The trial was expected to go to the jury Monday. A man with AIDS says in a lawsuit he wants to have a doctor help him die.

Assisted suicide "is out of control" in the Netherlands, testified Dr. Richard Finegsen, a Dutch cardiologist. "It is a terrible and totally unnecessary act—a mortal danger to our civilization."

He said a government-sponsored report in 1991 found that about 1,000 of the 11,800 physicianassisted deaths of terminally ill patients were cases where people had not given their consent.

And only 28 percent of the voluntary deaths were reported to the government and none of the doctors reported involuntary deaths of terminally ill patients, he said.

"Dutch doctors don't like paperwork," Finegsen said. He has written several books on physicianassisted suicide.

The study depended upon physicians being able to remain anonymous in the report.

Charles Hall, a 35-year-old Beverly Hills man who is dying of AIDS complications, is asking a judge for the right to die an assisted death.

Dr. Cecil McIver of Jupiter is seeking immunity from prosecution if he helps hasten Hall's death.

People assisting in suicide in Florida can get 15 years in prison.

Finegsen said the Netherlands requires terminally ill patients to make an explicit written statement to the physician that their choice of suicide is voluntary.

Other rules, he said, are: The family must be consulted; a second doctor must be consulted; the only cases that are legal are when the suffering is unbearable; and the death must be reported to the

government.

Hall's attorney, Robert Rivas, objected to the testimony on the basis that what happens in the Netherlands is irrelevant to Hall's case. [End quoting]

His testimony is certainly an excellent example of what will be or is already happening here.

Can you imagine how easy it will be to buy the murder of your enemies or someone who has what you want?

The government is already using this method—ill or healthy—at their pleasure, and you want to now put it into the hands of ANY doctor??

#### NICOTINE, COCAINE: SWISS SCIENTISTS NOTE SIMILARITY

Excerpted from THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 1/12/97, [quoting:]

Nicotine appears to stimulate brain cells in nearly the same way that cocaine does, new research finds. Scientists at the drug company Glaxo-Wellcome in Geneva studied laboratory rats that received cocaine and nicotine for two weeks. By measuring proteins produced by genes activated in the brain, the researchers found that the two drugs appear to stimulate those areas in nearly identical patterns. Neal Benowitz, a nicotine researcher at the University of California at San Francisco, said the research adds a new level of support for the idea that while nicotine and cocaine have different effects, they are very similar drugs. [End quoting]

If you add to the above information that <u>they add cocaine to cigarette paper you'll begin to</u> <u>understand why it's so hard to break the habit</u>—I'm talking from experience. <u>With God's</u> <u>help</u>, I made it a number of years back.

# ENERGY PRICES LOW, O'LEARY SAYS

Excerpted from *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 1/20/97, [quoting:]

The price of energy is artificially depressed in this country, Energy Secretary Hazel O'Leary said in an interview on the eve of her departure from office, and Americans will not be serious about conservation or energy independence until they pay more or there is another shock.

She said she tried within the constraints of the budget to nurture alternative fuel and energy technologies. The prevailing view, she said, is that "somehow, miraculously, the market will present itself" for technologies like fuel cells. [End quoting]

What a bunch of propaganda!!

*CONTACT* has given you much information on free energy devices lately. Is this more damage control??—repeating their <u>big lies</u> often enough to convince us to willingly pay higher and higher fuel costs.

O'Leary even gives us a VEILED THREAT of a near term energy crisis.

THERE IS NO ENERGY OR POTENTIAL ENERGY SHORTAGE AND NEVER HAS BEEN. WE MOST DEFINITELY HAVE A <u>DIRE SHORTAGE OF HONEST LEADERS</u>!! HOW MUCH LONGER ARE WE GOING TO PUT UP WITH THIS??

How many of you who have read our articles on free energy have been on the phones, faxes, E-mail or been writing letters to our leaders??

NEXT 3 NEWS BITES excerpted from CONSPIRACY NATION, Jan. 1997, [quoting:]

# TSAR NICHOLAS II OF RUSSIA

February 1996: The reburial of the remains of Tsar Nicholas II is postponed because the Russian Orthodox Church does not accept scientific findings that the bones are genuine. (*London Telegraph* Feb. 9) [*More verification of* CONTACT *writings denying the murder of* (*Czar*) *Nicholas II in* 1918.]

# TRAFFICKING IN HUMAN ORGANS

October 1996: Xavier Gautier, an investigative journalist for the French newspaper *Le Figaro*, found dead, hanging by the neck in Yugoslavia, had been investigating "alleged trafficking in human organs taken from specially selected and executed Bosnian prisoners of war." I have previously pointed to this worldwide organ traffic, but have been told it's an "urban folk tale". [*Many people are being murdered around the world*—*for their organs*.]

# CLINTON ELECTED BY ONLY 24 PERCENT

November 1996: Bill Clinton is re-elected President. 49 percent of the electorate actually votes and of that 49 percent, 49 percent vote for Clinton. This means that <u>only 24 percent of the electorate</u> <u>actually voted for Clinton</u> [*emphasis mine*]. for those not good at math, look at it like this: suppose 100 people are eligible to vote, but only 49 of them do so. Of those 49 only 49 percent vote for Clinton. 49 percent of that 49 is 24. [*Call that a victory??*]

Dogging Clinton's heels well be Rep. Dan Burton (R-Ind.) who will replace Rep. William Clinger as chair of the House Government Reform and Oversight Committee. Says Burton, who publicly doubts the credibility of the Vince Foster "suicide" investigation, "Nobody's above the law. We're going to be diligent in finding out if there was wrongdoing and if anyone should be prosecuted."

Let's hope that Burton is really out to get to the bottom of things [*Don't hold your breath!!*], which if Clinton is innocent will work to his benefit as well. [End quoting]

# THE VERY LARGE TELESCOPE

#### mirror pict.

# From POPULAR SCIENCE MAGAZINE, Feb. 1997, [quoting:]

The very large telescope, [*see picture at bottom of page*] to be completed in the Chilean Andes by the end of the decade, will need very large mirrors. In fact, its four mirrors, each measuring 8.2 meters [*approximately 27 feet*] in diameter, are the largest in the world. After formation with a new spin-casting technique, the mirrors required cooling for several months. The European Southern Observatory will use the telescope to look far back into the universe's past. [End quoting]

This is quite an amazing feat to accomplish. I sure wish I could look through this telescope—**how about you?** Of course nowadays they don't look through the large telescopes—they use computer monitors. Everything is computerized.

#### COMPUTER ATTACKS SHOW NEW PATTERNS

Excerpted from *PC MAGAZINE*, 2/4/97, [quoting:]

In a report, a law-enforcement consultant describes a scenario that's enough to make your hair curl. Apparently, if a virus is hidden in a Java program on a Web page on your server, unbeknownst to you, and someone downloads the virus, your server can legally be the target of a wiretap and a search warrant. Worse, according to the source, the title [*of ownership?*] of your computer can be transferred to the government as soon as a hacker uses it to commit a crime. Use a computer. Go directly to jail. [End quoting]

One way or another, the Elite will try to control all computer use to bring in their New World Order. Worldwide communications have to be gotten under their control.

# A CIA FUNDING OPERATION by Gene "Chip" Tatum

Excerpted from *CONSPIRACY NATION* newsletter, Vol. 9 No. 93, 1/12/97, e-mail: <br/><br/>d@shout.net>, [quoting:]

#### **STEP 1:**

Find a depository which fits the following criteria:

1. Large cash reserves.

2. Much of the cash reserves should represent deposits from an illegal activity (i.e.: drug transactions). For this example we will use Banco Nacional de Panama, a reserve depository which is protected by Manuel Noriega. The depositor will be Pablo Escobar. Finding the proper depository would be the function of the CIA, and in this example we will use William Casey.

#### **ST**EP 2:

Arrange for a loan from this depository. We will use the name of George Bush in this example for the person obtaining the loan.

We will use the amount of \$8 billion for this example. Sometimes the depository will not be very cooperative. If this occurs, the CIA will coerce or intimidate the depository officials into cooperating. Ultimately, the loan will be made.

#### **STEP 3**:

Split the loan proceeds in half. One half (\$4 billion) will be sent to Iran to purchase "super bills" at the rate of two "super bills" for one authentic bill. Thus, \$4 billion in cash buys \$8 billion in "super bills". (NOTE: A "super bill" is a perfectly counterfeited U.S. bill. These bills are printed by an Intaglio press which was sold to the Shah of Iran in the late '60s, early '70s. The Shah was also given the plates, ink and paper necessary to successfully print U.S. dollars in large denominations. This was given to the Shah by the CIA. (Unfortunately, the Shah left the press, plates, ink and paper for the Iranian Revolutionary Councils when he fled in late 1978.)

The second half of the loan (\$4 billion) will be sent to a CIA launderer selected by the CIA (Casey) for his or her ability to move large sums of money around the world as a matter of ordinary business. For this example we will use the name of Nana DeBusia. (DeBusia is the grandson of Guyana's first democratic leader and owner of many U.S. and foreign banks.)

#### STEP 4:

Repay original loan to depository in "super bills." (Give Banco Nacional de Panama \$8 billion in "super bills" to replace the authentic currency it loaned.) These "super bills" are placed in the reserve vault and, as long as they are not withdrawn by the depositor, their existence will not jeopardize the value of the U.S. dollar. But, because they are perfect in every way, to put the "super bills" in circulation would eventually devalue the U.S. dollar by flooding the monetary marketplace with U.S. currency.

#### STEP 5:

Arrange to sell Iran something of value for [*in order to recover*] the authentic currency used to purchase the "super bills". In this example, we will use arms, ammunition and replacement parts for military equipment. (We will use the name Oliver North as the example of a person arranging the sale of arms to Iran.) In other words, the CIA now arranges to sell Iran \$4 billion worth of arms

and equipment in order to get the original \$4 billion of authentic currency back. Now, the CIA has \$4 billion to use in funding covert activities without relying on Congressional authority and funding. If caught, the CIA can report the source of funds as being from an arms transaction with Iran.

### STEP 6:

Ensure that the "super bills" are not withdrawn. This is done through the process of neutralization of the depositor.

Neutralization is the use of intimidation, coercion or termination. In this example, Pablo Escobar is killed.

### STEP 7:

This CIA launderer in possession of one-half of the original loan proceeds is moving his \$4 billion through a maze of banks which are cooperative with both the launderer and the CIA. For this example, we will use the following trail of deposits to banks: a bank in Spain; the Vatican Bank; banks in Luxembourg.

Then the launderer wires from his London offices \$3.8 billion in laundered monies to private numbered accounts being controlled by the original architects. The launderer keeps \$200 million for his job well done, leaving the \$3.8 billion in the numbered accounts.

### STEP 8:

Neutralize the CIA launderer. In this example Nana DeBusia was indicted by the U.S. on 32 counts to include bank fraud. The CIA stepped up in his behalf and stated that it would not be in the best interest of the U.S. to prosecute DeBusia. He was facing several hundred years in prison if convicted. He was subsequently acquitted on all counts.

# CIA TALLY

\$4 billion for use in unauthorized black ops\* (\*black operations are those covert operations performed without the knowledge or authority of Congress.)

\$3.8 billion in private numbered accounts controlled by the architects of the funding operation

# SUMMARY OF THE EXAMPLE

To summarize the example, the Director of the CIA, William Casey, approached the Ex-Director of the CIA and current Vice President of the United States [*at the time of Reagan Presidency*], George Bush, with the name of a vulnerable depository, the Banco Nacional de Panama. Vice President Bush then arranged for a short term loan of \$8 billion.

Bush arranged for \$4 billion to go to Iran to purchase super bills and \$4 billion to go to Nana DeBusia to be laundered into several private accounts. He (Bush) commissioned Oliver North to oversee the Iranian connection. North delivered \$4 billion in U.S. currency to Iran. Iran gave North \$8 billion in super bills in exchange for the \$4 billion in good U.S. currency. North then

delivered the \$8 billion in super bills back to the Banco Nacional de Panama. The loan transaction is now complete.

There is \$8 billion in super bills in the reserve vaults of the Banco Nacional de Panama, there is \$4 billion in authentic U.S. currency in the hands of the Iranians, and there is \$4 billion in good currency with CIA launderer Nana DeBusia.

North sells the Iranians military hardware and parts for the amount of \$4 billion and diverts a portion of the proceeds to the Contras of Nicaragua (Iran/Contra).

Nana DeBusia, in the meantime, is laundering the deposits of \$4 billion through various banks, including the Vatican's bank in Italy. After several successful banking transactions, DeBusia presents \$3.8 billion in the sound deposits to numbered accounts in various locations.

When the funding operation is complete, there is \$4 billion in CIA accounts to be utilized for covert and black operations; there is \$3.8 billion in private numbered accounts controlled by George Bush and William Casey. Pablo Escobar, the primary depositor is dead to ensure no one will withdraw the super bills. General Noriega is in U.S. federal prison and under constant U.S. guard to ensure his silence, and William Casey is dead, leaving \$3.8 billion in good U.S. currency in the control of George Bush.

\* \* \*

Views expressed do not necessarily reflect those of *Conspiracy Nation*, nor of its Editor in Chief. [End quoting]

# This is what you call CREATIVE financing, or how about VIRTUAL MONEY??

# WANTED ONLY FOR OUR BODY PARTS

Excerpted from THE ST. PETERSBURG TIMES, 11/7/96, [quoting:]

If the Pentagon has been worried because a majority of Japanese (particularly those on Okinawa) would like to see the 47,000 American troops still stationed there go home, they can relax. The Japanese establishment has just found a new, socially useful function for those unwanted Marines. All those who manage to get themselves killed in the line of duty (or because they got drunk and drove too fast), and who wind up dead at military hospitals, can soon donate their organs to Japanese citizens.

The Japanese themselves have been debating a law that would permit their own citizens to donate parts after death. But such a law would involve accepting the standard of "brain death"—the legal definition of death in the United States. A committee of Japanese legal, medical, religious and other experts met over several years to discuss this issue without coming to a unanimous conclusion.

A friend who was a member of this deliberation group once told me he had thought the major objections would come from the Buddhist clergy because of their belief that the soul takes three days to leave the body by which time organs can no longer be harvested. But the major objection was raised by liberal Japanese lawyers who pointed out that Japan is a group-oriented society with a strong sense of "inner" and "outer" groups. They raised fears that a definition of brain death might lead doctors to make socially convenient decisions, such as "pulling the plug" on a homeless person.

In the absence of a brain-death law, rich Japanese who need kidney, cornea or other transplants have been traveling to the Philippines or the United States to get them. But now Japanese doctors would like to use organs that the five U.S. military hospitals in Japan are willing to make available. Well, I suppose it's nice to know the Marines are considered good for something in Japan.

But the absurdities of the United States' insistence that we must maintain these forward-deployed troops at all costs (rather than arranging for access to Japanese ports for our naval vessels) does not end here. A meeting was recently held in Washington to discuss Prime Minister Ryutaro Hashimoto's promise to develop Okinawa as a free-trade zone and turn it into "a second" Hong Kong.

A State Department spokesman said at this meeting, "It would be an unnecessary complication to in any way raise U.S. commercial interests" as part of the ongoing U.S. effort to retain military basing rights on Okinawa. In other words, the United States continues to "delink" economic and military matters where Japan is concerned. This means, among other things, that we are defending a nation to which we are going into debt.

It also means that whenever we do finally get tossed out of Okinawa—and this is likely to occur sooner than anyone in the Pentagon would like to think—we will have no economic leverage, no business concerns in place to take a piece of the new action.

When President Clinton attends the APEC summit on Now. 25, it will be at the former U.S. naval base at Subic Bay. The Americans were thrown out of Subic in 1992, after a large majority vote of the Philippine Senate. The Pentagon had said that the 7th Fleet could not survive without the Philippine facility, but it seems to have managed.

The Pentagon also swore that the Filipinos would be sorry when they lost all those base jobs. But instead, Subic Bay has become a thriving free-trade zone, an Asian hub for Federal Express and other international concerns. This is exactly what Gov. Masahide Ota intends to achieve for Okinawa.

But meanwhile, by all means let us supply body parts to the Japanese. They seem to be more acceptable than California rice, Florida oranges or Detroit automobiles. [End quoting]

# Greedy, evil people will take or steal anything to maintain their lifestyle.

# YOUR TASK

From GUIDEPOSTS, P.O. Box 1479, Carmel, NY 10512, [quoting:]

Your task, to build a better world, God said. I asked Him how? This world is such a large vast place, so complicated now, And I so small and useless am, there's nothing I can do. But God in all His wisdom said: <u>Just build a better you</u>.

> —submitted by Bob Oakes, Weyers Cave, VA

#### CHAPTER 15

logo

### STOPPING THE ANTI-CONSTITUTIONALISTS by Grandma 12/17/96

### FOLKS, YOU HAD BEST READ THIS AND THINK ABOUT IT!

An acquaintance of mine, Ron Wheeler, sent me a fax last night, and I know Ron well enough; he thought I would hit the ceiling after reading his epistle written by the anti-constitutionists. Well, he was right, I'm still up there and steaming!

#### THINK ABOUT IT!

How many times have you listened to malicious gossip about someone, something, or you guys and gals, listening to your (jealous) friends who began to pick on a sore spot about your wife, your husband, your partner, your associate, or anything else coveted by that party? You and I know, this is the first bastard to be in bed with your wife/husband, or your ex-partner's new partner! That is the way it works, folks. Never seen it fail!

This is the way it works. We listened as the President of the United States, and the Vice President, told those young college students out West: The old *Constitution* is outdated, outmoded, and is in need of change and doing away with. The same goes for this New Age thinking of global control. It happened in Germany, Poland, Hungary, all across Europe—and even the changes in the welfare system. Yep, the same thing.

First, control was obtained over the courts (German Bar Association). Next came mob rule of the mobster elite (business syndicates). Then, in order to rape the profits from big industry, minimum wage and slave labor of prison inmates was implemented. Next thing that happened, prices soared. Those who had jobs, worked either as slave labor or prison inmates. So many restrictions were placed on private manufactured goods, farm products, manufacturing and industry went down the tubes, so did farms. Those people looking for new jobs went in mass migration (preplanned by the mob rule elitists) into the cities, only to freeze to death without jobs, heat, food. Some died from diseases because no doctors were available, or the doctors were also being persecuted and on the proverbial hit list because genocide was the primary objective. Genocide was conducted; no law could stop it. The German Bar Association, and other Bar Associations across Europe had systematically done away with the old constitutions which were patterned after our *Constitution* and assisted by Ben Franklin, Thomas Paine and other notables of the design of our much admired grandfathered *Constitution*. You didn't know that did you?

Sure! The seven articles of the grandfathered *Constitution* give the right to conduct international trade business! But, it cannot impede the rights of the people in the conducting of those international trade agreements. This is the prime reason for the general welfare provisions. The general welfare meant (and still does today): "Insuring the economic status of American industry, manufacturing, jobs, income, producer, etc., will not be overpowered, or overcome by the more experienced European nations", thusly causing the destruction of the American economy. This is the reason for the contracted seven articles, for allowing the trade provisions. Beyond those seven, Congress, the Senate, and even the "Prez", are prohibited entry into the *Bill of Rights*.

# THINK ABOUT IT!

All of you know about the Herman Estate. You also know about V.K. Durham's long running battle trying to obtain a prosecution for Mr. Herman's murder. First, V.K. must obtain the prosecution of the murder before the Estate matters can be resolved.

V.K. has so far been unable to obtain the services of law enforcement agencies, attorneys general, state attorneys, FBI, etc., for the investigation and prosecution of the murder of Russell Herman. Then the Social Security Administration could not gain access to the estate(s), and cut off V.K.'s SSI-Disability. Yes, they were bold enough to put it into writing on SSA letterhead.

V.K. turned around and filed Ancillary Jurisdiction: Murder charges into the U.S. District Court, on November 6, 1996. The U.S. District Court seemingly has its own problems: one of Clinton's appointees got caught taking bribes from attorneys and attorney firms (this was one of the judges in the primary case filed into the U.S. District Court by V.K. on her Aunt's estate, which suffered so much political influence it was unreal. The SSA got into the action demanding access to the Herman estate, after V.K. had told them in writing that a murder was involved, and the information is "none of your damned business".).

The Social Security Administration, individuals, employees, appointees, delegees, agents, and agencies kept on "keepin' on", abusing, misconstruing powers of Offices of Public Trust monies. Then, they put it in writing: V.K. "owed them \$12,118.68" (and this is a quote):

Dear Mrs. Durham,

We are writing to let you know that we have paid you \$8579.50 too much Supplemental Security Income (SSI) money. The overpayment happened September 1994 through November 1996.

You are over paid because we cannot determine the extent or the amount of the estate that you are the executrix for.

This new overpayment is in addition to the old overpayment of \$3539.18 already on your record. (End quote.)

# THINK ABOUT IT!

V.K. has received no money from the estate(s). V.K. has found it necessary to borrow money to

finally get the estate(s) into the U.S. District Court.

### THINK ABOUT IT!

On December 14, 1996, V.K. Durham filed 18 U.S.C. Criminal Charges against the Social Security Administration, individual, employee, agent, assignee, delegee, appointee, etc., Oliver M. Holmes, et al., and the appointor pursuant to the *Federal Advisory Committee Act*.

### THINK ABOUT IT?

#### **Appointor:**

The President of the United States The *Federal Advisory Committee Act* 

**Appointee:** 

Department of Health and Human Services

Managers of:

The Social Security Administration Public Trust Monies also known as Old Age Pension and Disability "Treasury Trust Funds".

# ARE YOU THINKIN'?

V.K. also invoked the Master/Servant Laws. So, it appears with the President already up to his eyeballs in criminal activities, the Old Boy is going to have to explain the following (as will Congress and the Senate, governors, FBI, attorneys general, state senators, congressmen, etc.):

(1) 18 U.S.C., Sec. 4, Misprision of Felony, by concealing a homicide. All information, including photos (prima facia evidence) were sent by certified mail;

(2) 18 U.S.C., Sec. 1512, Tampering with a Witness or Victim; attempting to prevent a criminal act or suspicioned criminal act from being set before a U.S. District Court Judge, by a victim or witness;

(3) 18 U.S.C., Chapter 96, Sec. 1962, The Rico Statutes, murder incorporated, extortion, threats, coercion and intimidation by appointees of the Appointor, etc.;

(4) Social Security Administration's employees of Medicare/Medicaid Insurance, U.S. Treasury (appointee by the Appointor) trust fund, who paid for the murder, which occurred in a federal facility; employees refused to conduct an autopsy that could be used in a court of law (and were so damned sure of themselves, they put it in writing; V.K. recorded it off Public Record).

# THINK ABOUT IT!

The Fed could not get the estate(s) by following the law. They tried to sneak in the back door and take the estate(s) by misconstruction and abuse of powers of Offices of Public Trust.

### ARE YOU THINKING ABOUT THIS ?!

V.K., knowing a conflict of interest prevailed in the U.S. District Court appointees and the Appointor, who has exceeded and abused his powers of Office of Public Trust, and the *Federal Advisory Committee Act*, did file in the U.S. District Court to call forth a duly constituted, fully informed, Article IX, constitutional common law grand jury, to investigate, determine and prosecute the perpetrators.

/s/ Grandma

#### CHAPTER 16

#### HILARION: FOCUSING YOUR EMOTIONAL (HEART) DESIRES

Editor's note: The following writing is by the Ascended Master known as Hilarion of the Fifth Ray, the Emerald (green) Ray of Healing, among the seven great "Rainbow Masters" communicating at this time to help us through Earth-Shan's planetary transition and rebalancing.

In Journal #7, called THE RAINBOW MASTERS, Hilarion says:

"Man needs the example of imperfection, that he can relate to perfection. Do not suddenly sit on thy pedestal and proclaim achieved perfection. Seek, rather, to be perfected by that Wondrous Energy that comes from Perfection. As you are perfected within, the Light will radiate without. Know perfection as the graces of the Great Spirit, and seek them.

"Judge not how far thy brother has progressed; look within at thy own degree of progress and move ever forward. Wrap thyself in the Protection of that Perfection, that the evil brotherhood is kept without. Darkness cannot invade thy presence in Light, unless thee allow of it.

"Do you not see that if it were possible to be humanly perfect, there would be no need for Divine Perfection? If it were possible to contain God on Earth, outside of thee, there would be no need to pursue Heaven."

See Journal #7, called THE RAINBOW MASTERS, for more background on this important group of teachers, plus earlier writings by them. Refer to the Back Page for Journal ordering information.

#### 1/25/97 HILARION

Good afternoon, my friend. It is I, Hilarion, of the Emerald Ray of Creator's Spectrum of Light-Thought projection. I have come this day that a needed message be penned for there are many in need of THE TRUTH regarding the nature of their current condition.

Many are faced with the bombardments of the physical environment at this time. One major way of distracting a person is to get them focused on the physical body in which they are housed. You are being bombarded from every direction imaginable at this time and, for some, these directions are UN-imaginable. Let us simply list a few of these serious distractions:

(1) Your food supplies are depleted of the necessary nutrients.

(2) You are being attacked with various lethal viruses that, on top of the physical dangers and discomforts, cause further mental anxiety (FEAR!) of the possibilities that you or a loved one

"might" contract such a disease.

(3) Your medical doctors lack true healing knowledge, and thus the treatments lack depth and understanding, and thus fail in most cases.

(4) You are being heavily attacked with electronic "pulse" weapons that cause disrupted sleep, so that no matter how much sleep you get, you never seem quite rested.

Throughout all of this, you ones attracted to these messages are trying to maintain a focus on the spiritual aspect of "why" you might be there.

I have been asked to assist in the understanding of who you are and the purpose of the physical experience. I am known as the Healer because the frequency and wavelength of my energy field most often will cause a triggering within others of the Heart Energy Center. I only CAUSE the triggering; the person or entity will do the rest if it is to be done at all.

The GREATEST killer of mankind is the inner mental programming of the mind. Put in other terms for clarification: Man creates and holds onto the past pains, and allows them to grow until they literally manifest in the physical. For example: Ones will hold onto the pain of past emotional trauma that resulted from the "lost" love that they felt for another. They continue to grind on this past emotional trauma until it manifests in the physical domain as an "incurable" cancer. The condition may even respond—at first—to treatments, but it will come back stronger than ever, for you have decided that you do not want to get better and that you, somehow, need to punish self.

The only way for this type of condition to be healed is from the inside (inner mind) out. Treating the body in this case is of little-to-no value unless and until the MIND is in a balanced mental state AND the HEART is in a balanced emotional state. There is an important distinction to be emphasized here: Ones can MENTALLY tell themselves to heal—BUT—if the HEART is in conflict, the healing shall not occur. IT IS POSSIBLE FOR ONES TO HEAL ANY CONDITION THAT AILS THEM IF THERE IS TRUE HEART DESIRE TO DO SO!

Many will simply say that they do not wish to die—yet they will, in actuality, create a condition in which they will suffer for years and be a burden for others as they fight with a mental desire (USUALLY FEAR OF DEATH) to live and an emotional desire to escape the pain.

When these ones can learn to forgive themselves with the heart, and not with the mouth, they will begin to turn around the condition in which they find themselves, and the miraculous healing will have begun!

This condition is becoming a plague on your planet at this time and will continue to grow in the coming years due to the impact of that which is to come—from the process of the cleansing of the planet herself.

You live on a Sentient, Living Being who has a right to mentally and emotionally heal herself

of the "cancers" that have been allowed to fester and grow. She will not be denied this right, and those who cannot withstand the cleansing process (a frequency shift into a higher dimensional existence) shall be the ones who willnot survive the impact of this shift!

This will, in effect, be a lot like what your biological scientists call Natural Selection, wherein only the strongest survive. In this case it will be only the strongest emotionally and mentally—those who have their heart and mind in balance enough to keep up with the frequency shifts. The chaos of unbalance will not be tolerated. Those who refuse to pursue the personal responsibility of BALANCING their thoughts and actions, and thereby maintain the emotional wattage (power) that they give these unbalanced thoughts, will simply weed themselves from the play!

The choice is always left up to the individual in these cases. Each must make their own choice as to what is the more important heart desire:

(1) to grow beyond what you are this day and explore further your potential as a souled being; or

(2) to succumb, as you are, without knowing what you could have accomplished if you had chosen to overcome the limitations that you have placed upon self.

Keep in mind that the journeys of the soul are infinite and that you will again be faced with the same choice, again, in upcoming experiences and you will have to face the inner battle, again and again, until you can find a deeper purpose in making a more daring choice.

This same general phenomena applies to ALL your choices in life, regardless of whether or not it is a terminal disease or going through abusive relationships, one after another. Unless and until you decide that you have punished self enough, you will continue to subject self to these tortures.

WHO, exactly, might you think would help you to stay in this state of self punishment? The adversary (that which is in opposition to Creator God) knows that he cannot be victorious and behaves somewhat like an immature child in that, if he cannot win, then he will make the game as difficult for everyone as possible.

What causes you to hold on to these past pains and traumas? Why is it that you can MEN-TALLY see the absurdity of doing so, yet you cannot seem to EMOTIONALLY break free?

Could it be that you are lying to self and holding onto a fallacy that only exists in your mind or heart? You must get honest with yourself! This is done by looking within and seeing yourself as you REALLY are, and NOT how you "think" that you are.

For example, we see those who will run around loudly complaining about others, such as how this or that person gossips too much, etc. Yet, all the while, these complainers do not ever stop to notice that they do the same EXACT thing which they claim to despise in these others.

If you are not willing to confront your SELF, then you are insuring that you will be repeating the same unbalanced conditions over and over again. These experiences are for SELF discovery! God knows your inner potential. It is YOU who do not realize it, for you are too busy with your emotional guilt and mental anxieties to realize that these are the challenges that you have to face in order to grow into the responsibility of the position as a Co-Creator in the infinite expanse of everything that is.

HEALING BEGINS WITH THE HEART DESIRE TO DO SO! This is the emotional feeling that precedes the mental desire. This brings us to a most important point: What comes first: the thought or the emotion?

### EMOTION IS ENERGY!

Emotion is the energy that precipitates the thought! Emotion has potential that is focused with the thoughts. Thus, you will have greater success in healing if you can become impassioned about the healing. When you feel "down and depressed" over your condition, you are utilizing very basic (low frequency) emotional energy. This energy is NOT very conducive to healing!

Returning now to the point I was introducing at the beginning of this writing: the ones who are trying to control your societies are aware that if they can keep you in an off-balanced condition, with great mental distractions which precipitate these lower emotional states, then they will keep you sick, mentally stressed, and thus in a drained condition that is most conducive to the suggestive nature of their mind-control techniques.

You can override these traps when you realize that you do not have to dwell long in these lower emotional states. DO allow the honest emotional reactions to a situation to play out, but DO NOT dwell, for very long, down in those low frequency depressions. For instance, you ones have heard that "laughter is the best medicine!" Why can this be quite true?

When you laugh, you are altering (raising) the frequency of not just your brain waves, but of every cell in your body! This, in turn, will allow for better, more efficient communication among ALL of the various parts and systems in the body.

The body will begin to operate more efficiently and you will begin to eliminate the toxins, poisons, and other foreign agents that will otherwise accumulate due to poor communication between the various organ-coordinating energy centers of the body.

It is like revving up an internal combustion engine (like your automobile motor) and blowing out the carbon deposits that will otherwise just sit there and accumulate around the cylinder walls and exhaust ports, to the continual detriment of engine performance. In a mechanical sense, you can think of the revving-up process as akin to "raising the frequency" of the en-

#### gine.

There shall come a time when you ones will not feel much like laughing about anything. You must effort to keep in mind that the upcoming, massive cleansing cycle is as natural as sneezing. When your planet sneezes, coughs, and otherwise shakes with the tremors of a fever, she is doing this out of a NATURAL healing cycle that will lead her back into balance. YOU may perceive this as a very destructive occurrence, but let me assure you that it is quite necessary and quite beneficial in the long run.

When you are sick and trying to rid yourselves of a viral infection, do you give consideration to the very germs or conditions that allow for this sickness to persist? If the raising of your body temperature a few degrees, for a short period of time, will burn out the viral infestation, is it not acceptable to do so without regard for the well-being of the life forms (viruses) causing the conditions that allow for the disease to grow?

Your planet shall have the balance that she seeks, for she is entering a high-frequency light field (what you ones have named "The Photon Belt") that will help facilitate this healing and transformation. In the process, those who are adding to the problem (by not putting their houses in order) shall be "out of sync" with the cleansing and will, in effect, remove themselves from the playing field.

Remaining in ignorance will not be acceptable, either, because the emotional frequency and vibration of "fear that is borne out of ignorance" shall likewise cause these ones to remove themselves from the playing field.

Under the purging conditions of this high-frequency light field, holding onto ANY lowerfrequency emotions will cause a very rapid deterioration in the physical body. Thus ones will have to deal with these lower emotions in short order. <u>Noticeable deterioration will take place</u> <u>in a matter of weeks instead of years</u>!

Please know that you CAN survive the upcoming changes. You will have to learn to release the garbage (the emotional baggage) that you hold onto so closely.

You will need to be more consciously aware of how YOUR emotional state affects your health as well as affecting the health of others AND the very planet upon which you live. These emotional energies are focused with the mind and can add to or subtract from those around you.

The general, overall result is a collective frequency or tonal vibration of the planet and her occupants. You EACH contribute to this overall average and you EACH have a choice in whether you add to or subtract from this average.

Find something that you can be thankful for and happy about, and you will have taken the first steps toward healing. Get impassioned about something worth living for, and you will almost undoubtedly heal. Keep up the "woe is me" attitude, and you will almost certainly

create a condition that is most unpleasant.

Choose wisely that upon which you focus your emotional energies for you will ALWAYS manifest your HEART'S desire! Your actions will always reflect this desire.

I am the Cohan of the Emerald Ray. I am Hilarion, teacher and wayshower. I come in the Radiance of Creator's One Light, which is Infinite and Eternal. Blessings to you all, from my heart to yours! Salu.

### CHAPTER 17

# THE STORY BEHIND THE EKKER HOUSE CASE by Rick Martin 5/10/95

Editor's note: We are reprinting Rick Martin's excellent research on this subject due to the number of inquires about the history of the matter as a result of the Ekkers' recent court challenges. This was originally published in CONTACT as Part 1 of a series called: "The Valley Of Radiance" — E.Y.

The story you are about to read is *stranger than fiction*. Truth usually is. The names are real and have not been changed out of concern for the honorable and the innocent—and to expose all others to the clear light of Truth.

On June 16, 1987, Doris and EJ moved to Tehachapi, located in Kern County, California off Highway 58. Tehachapi, considered "high desert", sits at an altitude of 4,000' with higher peaks surrounding it. Its population at that time was approximately 5,000. Tehachapi means *land of plenty acorns and water*, and offered promise to EJ as he further explored possibilities in the wind business.

Doris and EJ's home was nestled against the mountain, overlooking the valley. It was purchased in May, 1987 for \$215,000 with a down payment of \$23,500 cash, \$15,000 second trust deed, \$6,500 to the broker, still owed, and a land sale contract of \$170,000. The property was purchased from Zack T. and Mary Ann Haynes, who have subsequently moved to Texas. At the time of the purchase, there was an outstanding encumbrance (mortgage) on the property with Santa Barbara Savings and Loan Association in the amount of \$170,000.

The property located at 21512 Adam Drive and is "legally" described as:

"Lot 130 of Tract No. 3224, in the unincorporated area of the County of Kern, State of California, as per map recorded May 9, 1969, in Book 17, Page 151, of Maps in the office of the Recorder of said county."

Tehachapi is in a beautiful valley and they looked forward to peacefully enjoying their home in semi-retirement. Doris and EJ were by now comfortably settled into their "retirement" home and life was joyful. The Tehachapi valley was quiet and beautiful. Little did they know of the events that were about to take place to disrupt the stillness and throw their lives into chaos.

At the time the Ekkers purchased their home from Zack and Mary Haynes in the summer of 1987, for a purchase price of \$215,000, Zack agreed to a \$170,000 land sale contract. Santa Barbara Savings & Loan, held the mortgage on the \$170,000, under the name of Haynes. The Ekkers would make their payments directly to Haynes, who in turn made payments to Santa Barbara Savings & Loan. Part of the verbal agreement upon signing the land sale contract concerned the possibility

that some payments might not be timely. In fact, the price was increased to compensate for the "condition" of possible late payments. Zack Haynes did agree. They had sufficient funds to cover the mortgage payment for an interim period, should such a situation arise. The Hayneses, as it turned out, were also particularly sensitive about their credit rating. Immediately upon closing the sale, the Ekkers had the land sale contract properly recorded, as required by law. This was done on July 7, 1987.

During September Haynes was passing through Tehachapi and EJ met with Zack. Contrary to the verbal agreement made prior to the sale, upon being informed that the October payment would be late, Zack said he just might have to foreclose to protect his interests and, "Payments need to be timely".

Sometime during the month of October, Ekkers did, in fact, receive a Foreclosure Notice from Zack Haynes for the late house payments. Immediately following on the heels of this notice was a letter dated October 22, 1987 from Susan Zuback with the loan department of Santa Barbara Savings & Loan, addressed to the Ekkers. This letter was a Default Notice giving them until November 22, 1987 to pay off the note. EJ, of course, responded and then received a letter from Santa Barbara Savings & Loan dated December 3, 1987, requiring EJ's signature on a 160-day extension agreement. After some discussion about the signatures back and forth, EJ ultimately did sign the document and returned it to Santa Barbara Savings & Loan. He assumed the extension to be in effect.

On November 18, 1987, the Haynes received a letter from Santa Barbara Savings & Loan granting a 160-day extension on the "*acceleration proceedings*". Acceleration proceedings (foreclosure) were to begin on approximately April 2, 1988 if full payment was not made.

The Ekkers had until mid-January to pay the outstanding balance owed to Haynes. Doris and EJ were fortunate enough to secure a loan to cover the outstanding amount. The money was paid to the Haynes. Haynes then sent the funds to Santa Barbara Savings & Loan; however, they were <u>not</u> accepted. Immediately following this, Haynes received a Notice of Default from Santa Barbara Savings & Loan, with a copy also going to Ekkers. Santa Barbara Savings & Loan had not accepted the payment from Haynes, using the rationale that Haynes had sold the property without notifying SBS. They were, therefore, justified in not accepting it <u>and</u> accelerating the \$170,000 note. When Doris and EJ received their copy of this foreclosure notice they were, understandably, alarmed! EJ then found out that Zack Haynes had never signed nor mailed in his portion of the extension agreement, therefore, there was no extension!

When you file a Notice of Default, there is an automatic grace period or delay of 90 days. Then there is an additional three weeks to publish the Notice of Public Sale. In the Ekkers case the Notice was published by the California Newspaper Bureau, since renamed. The sale was set to be held at 10:00 A.M., May 24, 1988 at "the East Front Entrance of the Bakersfield City Hall at 1501 Truxton Ave."

By this time, Doris and EJ were determined not to vacate their newly acquired retirement home, but rather, they would go to the public sale and purchase their home outright! They were able to secure a loan through a close friend, and went to the auction early. Being a wise real estate investor, the

only condition their friend placed on the loan was that, since it was a public auction, they open the bidding <u>low</u>.

Between the hours of 9:50 A.M. until 10:30 A.M., either Doris or EJ Ekker had the entire lobby and entrance area of the Bakersfield City Hall in full view every minute. No one stopped in the area and only two people entered the lobby, and only one exited in that time period. One of the people was a man who went into a side room upon entering the building. As it turns out, this person was Larry Mitchell of the California Service Bureau, Inc. Larry entered the building, stepped into a phone booth and made a call, then exited the building without saying a word to anyone. There was NO SALE!

During the forty minutes at City Hall, Doris and EJ had witnesses to "the sale that never was". The witnesses were both very credible; namely, the Bakersfield City Treasurer, William Descary and the City Clerk, Carol Williams.

Since there was no sale, there was nothing left for the Ekkers to do but go home.

The next day, on May 25, 1988, EJ wrote a letter to Financial Corporation of Santa Barbara at 3040 State Street and said, [quoting:]

Your Notice of Trustee's Sale, copy enclosed, announces that you would auction the property at 21512 Adam Drive, Tehachapi, California at 10:00 A.M. on May 24, 1988 at "the East front entrance to the City Hall, 1501 Truxton Ave., Bakersfield, California."

We were present at the appointed time and place and no representative from your company or Specialized, Inc. or Santa Barbara Savings & Loan appeared. Several City employes were witnesses to that fact.

The Hayneses sold the property to us on a Land Contract and your foreclosure is a result of that clause in their contract with Santa Barbara Savings giving SBS the "right to accelerate". We have delayed legal action in expectation that a successful bid at the Public Auction would be the most expeditious route to a clear title to the property.

Since you failed to appear for the Public Auction or provide notification of any change of time or place, it is our understanding that you are obliged to accept our opening bid. Since there is also an "investor" in the Haynes loan it would seem you have committed a serious breach of your fiduciary duty by failing to appear.

Before we take any further action that might result in the long delays attendant to litigation in this matter, we offer you an opportunity to respond to this statement of our position. [End quoting.]

With letters about to cross in the mail, EJ wrote a letter to the President of Santa Barbara Savings & Loan, Mr. Clyde Wagoner, dated June 23, 1988 explaining that they had not received a reply to their May 25 letter concerning the no sale and, therefore, invalid Trustee's Deed.

With EJ's letter to Mr. Wagoner just mailed, a letter arrived, addressed to Doris and EJ, dated June 17, 1988. In her letter Donna Yencer, Foreclosure Clerk with Santa Barbara Savings & Loan states, [quoting:]

On May 24, 1988, a trustee's sale was held on behalf of Santa Barbara Savings & Loan. The auctioneer advised us he did cry the sale and that three women from the California Republic Bank were present at the sale as witnesses. Also at the sale that day was a Realtor. Our Association is in receipt of a Certificate of Sale stating that the trustee sale was held at the scheduled time and place. [End quoting.]

In a state of shock and total disbelief, Doris and EJ began to further discuss their situation and their options.

Then, on July 17, Doris and EJ were served with a Notice To Quit dated July 12, signed by Steven J. Berg, Litigation Administrator for Santa Barbara Savings & Loan.

Upon receipt of the Notice To Quit, EJ telephoned Mr. Berg and advised him to review the file prior to initiating further action on the Notice. On August 2, Steven Berg wrote a response to Doris and EJ, [quoting:]

I have contacted the service that conducted the trustee's sale concerning the property you continue to occupy and they have provided me with the auctioneer's Certificate of Sale concerning said sale. A copy of the certificate is enclosed. In light of this sworn certificate the Association hereby makes final demand on you to peacefully vacate the premises. This matter is being referred to local counsel to take the appropriate measures to regain possession of our property and place it on the market for sale. [End quoting.]

On August 11, 1988, EJ responded in writing to Steven Berg's letter, [quoting:]

Thank you for your letter of August 1, 1988. We returned yesterday from a business trip and are answering you as timely as possible.

It appears that the service that was supposed to conduct the trustee's sale is going to "stonewall" the situation. They have perjured themselves and are acting in a fraudulent manner which will injure us if we allow it. If we take it to court it will injure SBS because our action will have to be against you.

We have too much invested in this home to meekly walk away. You have a choice of two courses of action apparent to us. You can pursue the legal eviction procedure and become a party to a lawsuit which may take a long time to settle with very little chance of winning. Or you can join with us in placing the responsibility where it belongs so that the damages are borne by the guilty party.

To help you decide where to place your bet we will enclose photocopies of statements signed by two Bakersfield City officials, the Treasurer and Clerk, indicating they saw us in their building at the time and on the day in question and that there was no sale held. We arrived at the building at approximately 9:45 A.M. and inquired of the Clerk where the sale would be held. She, and others in her office, took the notice, checked the time and date and directed us to the East front entrance to

the lobby. We waited there till approximately 10:15 and, because no one came, I entered the Treasurer's office to again confirm that we had the correct address. Most of the employees were on a break so Mr. Descary helped me himself. After verifying the time and place on the notice he instructed an employee to make some telephone calls to see if anyone at the County might know if the time or place had been changed.

While those calls were being made I walked the few steps to the Lobby where Mrs. Ekker was waiting. She then returned to the Clerk's office where they also placed some calls while I waited in the lobby. When she returned without any new information, I went back to the Treasurer's office where I was informed they were also unable to locate any information. At that point Mr. Descary walked with me to the lobby to point the direction to the local office of Santa Barbara Savings & Loan, suggesting that perhaps they might help us. We started in that direction, but, due to the heat, decided to drive and then decided we should get some legal advice. We had come prepared to bid on the property, no sale was held at the place advertised and we were not sure what we should do.

We were advised to write to SBS and inform you of the situation so that you would have an opportunity to investigate. From that point you have the file and can reconstruct the events. Your investigation, as demonstrated by the recorded deed and the auctioneer's Certificate, has uncovered perjury on the part of more than one person. We hope you share our outrage and will work with us to shift the damage to the responsible parties. If you do not we must promise you a long and serious litigation. [End quoting.]

Once Doris and EJ had been served a 3-Day Notice To Quit on their "retirement" home, things began to feel very uneasy. There was an uncertainty in the air and while there was no intention to give up "possession", there also wasn't any direct <u>knowledge</u> about legal procedure. Liz Kerzner, new to the area, had a close friend from Los Angeles named Jodi who was also in the employment management business. Jodi and her husband Steve would often came to Tehachapi to enjoy the valley, see Liz and meet frequently at Doris and EJ's house. Steve specialized in the eviction business. Upon receiving the Notice To Quit, Steve was immediately consulted. Doris and EJ were informed that the next step would be receipt of a Complaint For Unlawful Detainer—which <u>must</u> be responded to in order to keep possession of the house. They were informed that to receive a 3-Day Notice To Quit was serious business and that if an Unlawful Detainer was served, they could <u>delay</u> the eviction, but for all intents and purposes, they were out of that house.

At 5:30 P.M. on October 6, 1988, EJ was "served" with a Summons and Complaint for Unlawful Detainer. The woman who delivered it apologized for interrupting the meeting which was taking place and for coming so late in the day. She commented that she was specifically requested to deliver this one last.

One of the guests present, a real estate broker, read the Complaint and commented, "This looks very serious to me. It appears that you only have five days to answer it in legal form and typewritten. This is Thursday and I doubt if you can get an attorney here on such short notice. But if you don't answer they'll have a default which will cost you the house and twelve, maybe sixteen thousand dollars."

After the guests left it occurred to Doris and EJ that Monday was a holiday and Tuesday was the deadline to respond! How would they find a lawyer to represent them, become informed about the case and write a response in one day? What kind of cruel joke was being played on them and by whom?

After several hours of discussing business projects, the guests were settled in and comfortable on the living room sofa at Doris and EJ's house. This was a business meeting, and it was now early evening. All of a sudden there was a knock at the front door. A Complaint for Unlawful Detainer [*an eviction notice*!] was served on Doris and EJ on this day, October 6, 1988. The woman serving the Notice apologized for the lateness of the hour, but explained that—get this—she had been asked to deliver this one last, that it would purposely be delivered late in the day. When the meeting dispersed, EJ quickly shuffled through the lawsuit to the last page and there, standing out in bold black ink, appeared the name Steven J. Horn, Attorney for Santa Barbara Savings & Loan (SBS). But who was Steven Horn? Little did they know, they would soon find out, in no uncertain terms. How would they find a lawyer on such short notice? After all, it had to be answered in five days, and coming up was a long holiday weekend. And then, if all else failed, where would they move to?

Pressure was beginning to mount, emotions were high. The odds of finding legal help in time seemed impossible. Would they be evicted? When the Ekkers got to court, would the case be heard on its obvious merits? Would the fact that their house had been put up for public auction with no sale taking place cause a ruling on their behalf? They just didn't know. But in the meantime the scramble was on to find a lawyer.

And now we find ourselves in the year 1997. The legal battle between the Ekkers, their attorneys, and all the parties involved in this property case, has continued unceasingly. The legal documentation on this case is now the largest in Kern County history. And to this very day, the Ekkers have not had their day in court, and no jury has been allowed to hear the evidence to reach the inevitable conclusion that THERE WAS NO SALE!

#### THE TREASON OF "OUR" REPRESENTATIVES by V.K. Durham 1/6/97

"Old age and treachery will overcome youth and skill" is a sign which hung in my doctor's office for many years. Many are the times Doc and I talked about this old adage. On one of those days I said to Doc, "that is one Hell of a statement and quite frankly I do not know whether to be offended, or just how I am supposed to take that statement." To which he replied "Well, I keep that there because it tells me why those bastards stay in the Congress and the Senate until they seemingly grow moss. Didn't you ever wonder why they stay in office until they are near Death's door?" I said, "No, I just thought it was because they had done such a great job, they were continually being voted back into their respective Offices of Public Trust." He countered, "I took you for a half-way bright woman, do not disappoint me in this fashion. They have to stay in office to keep on covering up all that crap they did in their tenure. Then they train their aides, and the aides run for office when those old farts are ready to retire, and the aides continue on with the cover-up." Well, I said, "How does that constitute treachery?" He said, "The better word is treason, but treachery is a kinder and gentler word. The treachery is when these elected congressmen, senators, etc., know the aides are young and impressionable and they also know those youngins don't know sickem about the Constitution, because during that old fart's tenure, the Constitution was taken out of the schools and replaced with Political Science. Therein comes the treachery. The youngins see how the old guys are doing it and they automatically think it is the way to go. So the game of treachery is perpetuated by the continuation of the young ones keeping on with what they learned from the old guys in the political power seats. It's sort of a protection racket for treacherous political corruption."

Somewhere there is a message in that statement. However, we must take into consideration that what has become the **accepted** is not **acceptable**, for it is destroying this nation. There is a remedy. The remedy lies in the intestinal fortitude of the U.S. Congress' faithfulness to this nation and to their Oaths of Office, for indeed they have the power to rescind all repugnant acts.

Our troubles began when the final signatures to the contract for the Reorganization of Europe was acknowledged in 1947 (Bretton Woods Agreement, International Monetary Fund Agreement, General Agreement on Tariffs and Trades). This in turn was never ratified by Congress as mandated by the *Constitution* for the United States, in two (2) years after the agreement was signed by all parties. Then the National Security Act of 1947 was implemented in order to accommodate the after reorganization plan no. 1 of 1958 (ten years later—72 Stat. 1799). Subsequently, methodically, step-by-step, the powers of the Office of President were increased. That power increase is a repugnancy to the *Constitution*. It allows power which the *Constitution* restrains. Even the U.S. Congress is restrained from giving such at libitum (at liberty) power to the President of the United States. The Congress and Senate, including the President, are restrained from misconstruing and abusing those constitutional powers.

Let's go to the *Federal Advisory Committee Act* (1972). Bit-by-bit, sound old laws were set aside (not done away with, but set aside and replaced). Our President (through the collusive acts of American Bar Association members) was given the powers which are only bestowed upon kings and dictators.

Now, let's go back to the Nixon Presidency. (Go to your library and pull up Title 3, the President, Executive Order 11490—F.R. Doc. 69-13005; filed Oct. 28, 1969, 2:19 p.m.) Take a good look at Sec. 3015's revoked Orders. There are 23 in all. Especially, take a close look at the revocation of the defense mobilization orders.

Mr. Nixon's Executive Order, Sec. 3011, Emergency Actions, states:

"This order does not confer authority to put into effect any emergency plan, procedure, policy, program, or course of action prepared or developed pursuant to this order. Plans so developed may be effectuated only in the event that authority for such effectuation is provided by a law enacted by the Congress or by an order or directive issued by the President pursuant to statues or the *Constitution of the United States.*"

Mr. Nixon was no dummy. He realized, as evidenced by his statement, what he did or was desirous of doing must be pursuant to the *Constitution* for the United States. Then, along came the *Federal Advisory Committee Act* in 1972, which contained Sec. 6, an escape clause for political misconstruction and abuse of powers of the Office of the President. This has actually abused the civil governments of the states and the civil government of the United States.

For some reason, no politician wants to acknowledge that treaties are in existence between the civil governments of the territorial sovereign states and the civil government of the United States. Look at it this way: The original states, in the realization of the need to protect commerce, have a common defense and a method to pay a central government for its services for those protections, did enter into a contractual treaty agreement called a constitution. Each sovereign state retained their own constitution. The civil government of the United States was forbidden access to the powers of the laws of those constitutions retained by the states. Those rights were retained by the civil government of the original states. When subsequent territories decided they wanted to be included into the union, the sovereign territorial civil governments put into effect enabling acts. These enabling acts were then submitted to the original states. The original states civil government for their own collective civil government of the United States then entered agreements (treaties) with the subsequent territorial sovereign civil governments of those territorial states. At that time stipulations for those territorial sovereign civil governments (see messages and papers of the President) were agreed to in writing, with terms and conditions just like any other contract of treaty or of purchase, etc. For that purpose, Article VI of the Constitution for the United States was ratified. Those treaty provisions as contained therein apply to the territorial sovereign civil governments of the states. Further extending into international treaty law (in the XXXs section): "No treaty can be entered into which infringes or impedes Article X of the Bill of Rights." In more specifics, no treaty on an international basis can impair, impede, dissuade or discourage those rights retained by the people (Bill of Rights, Constitution for the United States). For this purpose, Article I, Sec. 10 was ratified.

Let's use Illinois as an example. The Enabling Act of 1818, before it could be acted upon, had to conform with the laws pursuant to the *Constitution* for the United States, Article VI (debts and engagement provisions). Illinois, by law, pursuant to the *Constitution* for the United States, VIth Article, invoked the Act of 1787 (the Northwest Ordinance law), which itself was predicated upon the 3rd Clause of the VIth Article; the laws of the confederation of the original states which invoked the *Constitution* for the United States. There are those in political offices who are desirous of leading you to believe the *Articles of Confederation* do not exist. Check it out, it's still there in the VIth Article, Clause 1, last word.

Perhaps there is a reason for attempting to make one think it no longer exists. The *Articles of Confederation*, at Article II states "each state retains its sovereignty, freedom, and independence, and every power, jurisdiction and right, which is not by this confederation expressly delegated to the United States, in Congress assembled." (The Vth Article, expressly shows the intent "for the more convenient management of the general interests of the United States," stated in defined specifics.)

Constitutional confederation stipulations are stated at Article VI, Clause 1. *Articles of Confederation*, Article IX, Clause 6: "The United States in Congress assembled shall never engage in a war, nor grant letter of marque and reprisal in time of peace, nor enter into any treaties or alliances, nor coin money, nor regulate the value thereof, nor ascertain the sums and expenses necessary for the defence and welfare of the United States, or any of them, nor emit bills, nor borrow money on the credit of the United States, nor appropriate money, nor agree upon the number of vessels of war, to be built or purchased, or the number of land or sea forces to be raised, nor appoint a commander in chief of the army or navy, unless nine states assent to the same, nor shall a question on any other point, except for adjourning from day to day be determined, unless by the votes of a majority of the United States in Congress assembled."

The nine states referenced are the original nine who united under a common cause, for a common civil government, for management purposes of (a) protection of commerce, manufacturing and production of goods, (b) to provide for a common defence, and (c) to pay for these services by imposing (1) taxes, (2) duties on imports, (3) post roads, (4) naval depots and warehouses, etc.

With all these laws supported by the *Constitution* for the United States, treaties with the territorial sovereign civil governments of the states with the caveat of being "on equal footing with the original states when entering the treaty for union of the republic firmly in place", so stated in the *Articles of Confederation* (which is still in force even though amended), we must ask ourselves: How in the hey did we get into this present mess?! Well, the answer is relatively simple. There are various causes which brought forth this current effect of a constitutional monarchy; (1) de-education of the masses by years of not teaching the *Constitution of the United States* and of the constitutions of our respective states, (2) de-education of the masses by not teaching American History <u>as it occurred</u>, (3) the allowance of the Bar Association Members to make laws which usurp the rights retained by the people to make all laws necessary for the common man in a common community (state) of civil government, (4) misconstruction and abuse of powers of Offices of Public Trust, (5) Roosevelt's Enabling Act which by law can only exist for a period of four (4) years, which federalized and set aside our constitutions of territorial civil governments of the states, setting aside our constitutional

common laws of the land, (6) ignoring and setting aside our treaty with the civil government of the United States, whereupon (7) the civil government of the United States was set aside and became the Federal Government of the United States.

What occurred here, in this time frame between 1916 and 1997, is that our constitutional civil common laws which are counteracted to us were overpowered by federal law (Maritime Law) which according to Rhodian law can and will take every thing in its pathway unless there are laws to stop it.

These are the old Aechean and Amphictomony leagues that the original states were so concerned about while deciding on a central government.

Consequently, by and through misconstruction and abuse of powers of Offices of Public Trust, albeit knowingly (de-education), this once great nation has been overthrown from within. Nikita Khrushkhev stated that to J.F.K. in his famous meeting with Mr. Kennedy.

Those perpetual, inviolable, inherent rights, liberties, and freedoms so hard sought, so hard fought for, and as intended by the founding fathers, were overthrown by the very persons with whom we have a treaty/contract: to uphold, protect and defend us and our constitutions.

Historically, every great nation, its constitution and its people, has been systematically overthrown due to ignorance or dumbing down of the peoples. Educated populaces do not allow this sort of thing to occur. De-education or dumbing down creates a mass hysteria attitude; people re-act by the inability of reasoning thought. Psychology calls it the self-defense mechanism.

Recently, I was browsing the U.S.C.'s disarmament treaties. Curiously, these treaties call for the disarming of nations (super powers), not the disarming of the populace of a nation. How simple would it all be if our government would cease and desist the manufacturing, selling, and giving away of armaments for alleged good behavior, such as evidenced in Mr. Clinton's instances. As stated in an earlier writing by me, "that's like giving Lizzie Borden a smack on the hand with one hand, and giving her an axe in the other." By such acts, one must surely ask themselves: How in the world can a sensible person do such a thing?

Also, recently, we watched as Peru and other nations went through a hostage crisis. Those nations now, at this time, are under martial law, their constitutions having been set aside.

Concurrently, we here in the United States are experiencing letter bombs. Allegedly, these letter bombs are sent through the mail, with all the security systems in place in our national and international airports. This is highly dubious and doubtful, leading to the thought of these alleged letter bombs being brought in, in diplomat immunity pouches, by special couriers.

Of course, the American people are going to cry for more laws and more security, failing at each turn to recognize a ruse being deployed at their constitutional expense. Bill Clinton did not get his Executive Order 13010 passed, which contained his intent of Martial Law in Sec. 5 (c). It was stated therein that the powers of the Office of President would be turned over to the Department of

Defense. Good Heavens! Has the whole Congress and Senate been dumbed down to the point where they can not read the intent stated in these executive orders which are allowed by the *Federal Advisory Committee Act*?! Perhaps it is time our duly elected civil state governments uphold their Oaths of Public Trust, adhere to 18 U.S.C., Public Policies, Nos. 1, 2 and 3 (in the front of the book, boys and girls), and challenge the *Federal Advisory Committee Act*, carefully scrutinizing Sec. 1 and 2 of that act, to the point of repealing the act based on Sec. 6. Sec. 6 is the escape clause for underhanded, undermining, dirty, covert activities which extends the powers of the Office of the President beyond those powers conferred, enumerated and granted by the *Constitution* for the United States, allowing for excessive misconstruction and abuse of powers of the executive in violation of the VIth Article's treaty provisions as enumerated to the sovereign civil governments of the states by their own enabling act and by treaty with the civil government of the United States. This is also a breach of the Xth Article of the *Bill of Rights*, with full intent to sorely test the *Bill of Rights* entirely.

We sit today without jobs, industry, manufacturing, and the ability to house and feed ourselves and our loved ones, watching our courts function in conflict of interest and in opposition to the *Constitution* for the United States, denying the Laws of the Land to the people who beg, cry and plead for their constitutional common laws in order that their rights and properties be protected per the treaty/ contract of the *Constitution* (law), only to be turned away at every court, suffering the indignities imposed upon them by the courts refusal to employ the [state] civil laws of the people. While the people stand helplessly by, their equities in the United States are being undermined by a government foreign to the [state] civil governments' treaty with the civil government of the United States.

In the United States today no attorney general of our respective states will uphold, protect and defend the rights of the people. It is their contention (evidenced on AG [Attorney General] letterhead, from AGs across the nation): "We do not prosecute criminal matters, or get involved in public matters, etc., our jurisdiction is to protect and advise other state agencies." This is an outrage! We pay for their services by and through the taxation process!

Over 80% (eighty percent) of equity (American land) is foreign owned! Americans have systematically become displaced persons in their own land. This is an outrage!

Especially outrageous: These foreign aliens do not conform nor comply with the treatied Alien Act! Our President, and our duly elected, would rather take the moneys from these aliens and sell this nation out than to live by the Oath of Office to which they are bound. There is no difference between those declared injuries cited in the *Declaration of Independence* and those suffered by Americans today in 1997; the only changes would be changing the wording from King and He to the President of the United States and the House and Senate (we have gone full circle back to the beginning).

V.K. Durham

#### CONSTITUTIONAL LAW CENTER UPDATE by CLC Staff 1/27/97

#### This update could be categorized as the good, the bad and the ugly!

**THE GOOD:** George Green, Betty Tuten and their attorney, David Horton, received another blow in Court this past week when their counter-claim attempts against Mr. Brad Elley, attorney, were denied by a fair, no-nonsense judge.

## With all the examples of lack of justice in the courts, this is a fine example of justice and with the hope that we all can continue to see justice.

**THE BAD:** Kern County Superior Court Judge Sidney P. Chapin denied the Motion for Reconsideration of his Order denying the Ekkers the ability to discuss anything that had to do with the "non-sale" of their residence on May 24, 1988, at their up-coming trial.

# The hearing on the motion was well attended on January 7, 1997 and it was believed that the strong points of law, as ably brought forth by the Ekkers attorney, would cause Judge Chapin to change his mind, but he did not and that is being studied.

**THE UGLY:** The same Kern County Judge Chapin has just been publicly censured by the California Commission on Judicial Performance for his failure to timely perform and render judgment on a one-day bench trial he heard in September of 1993 in Ventura County. Please refer to accompanying article by *Bakersfield Californian* staff writer, Tamara Koehler, as published January 23, 1997 in the *Bakersfield Californian* [see next page].

What is ugly is that, in the Ekker case, the matter was set for a jury trial after years of prosecution and on the day it was assigned for trial before Judge Chapin, and with a jury panel waiting to be selected, the Judge heard a previously denied motion and then granted judgment to the defendants and denied the Ekkers their jury trial, basically. It would be all but impossible to have a fair trial without the ability to discuss the day that the alleged sale took place.

And even more ugly, Judge Gamble of Nevada, who is known in Nevada to make rash decisions and self-satisfying judgments, did it again!

On this particular occasion, Judge Gamble Ordered a mother to bring her 12-year-old son before the Court and in his courtroom Ordered the mother to spank the child. Then after the spanking, the Judge ordered the boy to turn and face the audience. When asked how he (the boy) felt, the boy responded, "embarrassed."

Please refer to the accompanying article by Tim Anderson as published in the Reno Gazette-

Journal on January 23, 1997.

This is the same Judge Gamble who unilaterally took it upon himself to categorize the parties in that case (Phoenix Institute v. George Green, et al.), as being basically anti-Christian and "...have perverted the Gospel of Jesus Christ and I won't have that in my Courtroom."

That's it for now!

More updates to come.

\* \* \*

Editor's note: The following two articles (one pasted up as received) accompany the previous article as explained in the CLC Update column.

#### JUDGE CLOBBERED FOR ORDERING MOTHER TO SPANK SON IN COURT

#### From THE RENO GAZETTE JOURNAL, 1/23/97, [quoting:]

Douglas District Judge David Gamble came under fire Wednesday from parents and teachers for ordering a 12-year-old boy to be spanked in his courtroom during a juvenile detention hearing.

Gamble defended his decision, saying he believes there's a good chance it will make a difference to the juvenile and to his mother. The mother applied the corporal punishment to her son Tuesday in Gamble's Minden courtroom.

"It was what I felt the boy and his mother needed." Gamble said. "The results won't be known for a while, but I'm hopeful it will change things for them."

He said the mother was appreciative.

The youth, who has appeared before Gamble for previous offenses including stealing, was in court on a complaint of being involved in a snowball-throwing contest at Searselli Elementary School, using foul language and making obscene gestures to a schoolyard attendant.

Gamble said his action was aimed at telling the youth that he needs to respect authority.

"He needs to know that someone's in charge, and that it's not him", Gamble said.

But public humiliation is not the answer said Jim Keegan, cochair of Searselli's Parent-Teacher Organization.

"This isn't the appropriate way to deal with this kind of situation." Keegan said. "The boy is deserving of some kind of disciplinary action, but spanking in public isn't an effective method."

Keegan, father of eight children, said he's never heard of this kind of punishment. Others in Douglas County said they are also unaware of a judge taking this kind of action.

Gamble said it was a first for him. "But I had been thinking about it for awhile" for certain cases, Gamble said.

He also said he anticipated a negative reaction from those who question the appropriateness and effectiveness of such action.

"Corporal punishment can't force a student to respect teachers." said Marty Cronin, Douglas High School history and speech teacher and president of the Douglas County Professional Education Association.

Gardnerville parent Cindi Otto concurred.

"I guess the judge was trying to make a point, but I don't know that public humiliation teaches respect." Otto said.

In fact, such actions could backfire and make the youth even more rebellious, said Brian Wilcox, executive director of the Center on Children, Families and the Law at the University of Nebraska.

"We oppose corporal punishment generally because it's ineffective." Wilcox said. "As often as not, it is counter-productive."

But a representative of the Children's Cabinet in Reno said those opposed to the ruling should also think of the times they notice children being spanked in public places such as supermarkets.

"What makes a court that much different." asked Pam Beeker, special projects coordinator.

She emphasized the organization teaches alternatives to spanking in an extensive network of parenting classes.

The 12-year-old previously appeared before Gamble for allegedly breaking into and stealing candy and a compact disc player from Pau-Wa-Lu Middle School. The boy and some friends were also accused of throwing rocks through windows at Searselli Elementary. The boy was suspended from school Friday and taken to juvenile detention.

The youth's mother told the judge Tuesday she wanted her son to remain in detention because she felt she couldn't control him or look out for his welfare.

The judge left his seat on the bench and approached the mother and son at the defense table. Gamble told the boy to lay across his mother's lap, and directed the woman to hit her son with an open hand across the buttocks.

"Make sure you do it hard." Gamble said.

After about five blows, the boy was allowed to stand up.

"That's what happens when you flip people off and act rude to teachers," Gamble told the boy.

The judge turned the youth around to face lawyers, reporters and other courtroom spectators and asked him how it felt to be spanked in front of people. The boy said he was embarrassed.

He was then taken back to the Carson City detention center. [End quoting]

This is another Nevada judge in cohoots with the George Green, Abbot, Horton gang against "Ekker, Ekker Phoenix Institute".

I certainly think that Judge Gamble should let others practice penalizing him for his unconstitutional misdeeds <u>in public also.</u> Don't you?

I like how the information about these judges is falling into our hands so that we can **<u>give them</u>** <u>some free publicity.</u>

#### STATE ADMONISHES KERN JUDGE

2 pages

#### MORE SCARY TRUTH BEHIND MAN-CREATED BUGS

#### Continued Interview With Dr. Horowitz by Rick Martin 2/4/97

Leonard Horowitz, D.M.D., M.D., M.P.H., a Harvard graduate, independent investigator, and internationally known authority in public health education, is one of American healthcare's most captivating motivational speakers. He has served on the faculties of both Harvard and Tufts Universities, and has degrees from Harvard University School of Public Health and Rutgers University. He has authored ten books, including the critically acclaimed Florida dental AIDS tragedy exposé, Deadly Innocence—The Kimberly Bergalis Case; Solving The Greatest Murder Mystery in the History of American Medicine; and, most recently, Emerging Viruses: AIDS & Ebola—Nature, Accident or Intentional?

Dr. Horowitz is now on a nation-wide speaking tour and has been the guest on many nationally renowned radio programs with hosts such as Art Bell and Jeff Rense.

I recently met Dr. Horowitz at the Jan. 10-13 Pasadena Natural Health Show where he was a guest speaker, and he agreed to an interview to be shared with CONTACT readers. That interview took place by telephone on Jan. 14, 1997. We here begin Part II; Part I was last week's Front Page story.

**Martin:** Let's go back to Litton Bionetics Research Lab. I want to have you talk extensively about Litton, the FDA, the Centers for Disease Control, the National Cancer Institute, as well as Merck Pharmaceutical. Let's try and link all of these together.

**Dr. Horowitz:** Well, they're very easily linked together because of the contracts that I publish in the book *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*. Not only the one under which Litton developed numerous AIDS-like and EBOLA-like viruses, but their grants for supply services. Actually, it was "support services" for the SVCP, that is, quote, "support services for the Special Virus Cancer Program." End quote. That was the contract—and even Dr. Gallo admitted to me, during my telephone conversation with him, that they provided all of the cancer researchers throughout the world, including the biological weapons developers throughout the world, with all of the monkeys, all of the monkey viruses, all of the monkey cell-lines, all of the reagents associated with primate cancer research.

Martin: We're talking about Litton now?

**Dr. Horowitz:** Exactly, Litton Bionetics. Now, what they supplied—how you hook these organizations together with the others is very, very clear. They supplied the contaminated monkeys and chimpanzees. Now, their laboratories were breeding grounds for viruses jumping from one mon-

key to the next. In fact, the researchers in New York who discussed having their monkeys said that seventy percent of their monkeys were contaminated with Hepatitis B environmentally, as well as numerous other viruses, and that was a major problem—a biohazard and containment problem—and the contract to make sure that these viruses didn't escape from these labs was held by Dow Chemical Company. And they only spent one percent of their entire budget to make sure that an outbreak did not occur. And, clearly, outbreaks have occurred.

Martin: Let's talk about Reston.

**Dr. Horowitz:** Ok, but before that let me just follow-up your question. Bionetics sent Merck, Sharp and Dohme contaminated monkeys to develop the 1974 experimental Hepatitis B vaccine that Merck, together with the Food & Drug Administration, the Centers for Disease Control, and the National Institute for Allergies and Infectious Diseases, they made the first four lots of experimental Hepatitis B vaccine that most plausibly brought AIDS to the world. And that's my thesis. And I go into detail about why it is that I say that. So, those specific organizations ARE intimately connected and are highly implicated in the emergence of the AIDS epidemic.

Martin: Did you do any research at all on the Caribbean?

Dr. Horowitz: A little bit. In particular, are you concerned about Haiti?

Martin: Yes.

**Dr. Horowitz:** Well, it's very clear how Haitians got this disease, and of course, I interviewed in my book *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*, Dr. Robert Strecker, in Chapter 7 to Lauri Garrett, of course, in *The Coming Plagues* and others in her entourage—which again, the purpose of which is disinformation because Lauri Garrett, along with Richard Preston who wrote *The Hot Zone*, was funded by the Sloan Foundation to produce that work; and that, the Sloan Foundation was not only intimately involved in the development of these types of viruses, but they gave Dr. Gallo some of his reagents. They paid MIT two-hundred-thousand dollars a year under the neuro-scientists umbrella for "mass persuasion technologies research" for, quote, "public management", end quote—that is, brain-washing. So that's what *The Hot Zone* and *The Coming Plagues* virtually are. Garrett very conveniently misses an entire decade where they were recombining these viruses, and she, like Dr. Gallo, defends against the manmade theory of AIDS by saying that they didn't have the, quote, "molecular genetic engineering capabilities" until 1975. Well, that's very true, but Alexander Graham Bell did not need fiber optics to make his first telephone call, either. What she neglected to tell you is, that they were recombining these viruses from 1965 through 1975 and we have meticulous documentation on all of that.

**Martin:** Now, it just so happens that the research seemed to have accelerated suddenly when funding came on the scene. Is that true?

**Dr. Horowitz:** Yes, that's very, very true. And, of course, that's exactly what I told you and as a result of the Special Virus Cancer Program was a result of the distribution of massive amounts of monkey cancer viruses to humans, through the contaminated polio vaccines during the late '50s

and early '60s. And, unfortunately for humanity, they've never cleaned them up. They're probably making so much money off of humanity's suffering, and because it's the Population Control Council of the City of New York that was connected to the Sloan Foundation, because Laurance Rockefeller sat on both boards, and that these people are intimately connected with the Council on Foreign Relations and the population control people are also the cancer research people, also are the military medical industrial complex directors and profiteers. These are the people, then, that have no motivation for reducing the cancer epidemic, cleaning up the vaccines. They're literally making vast fortunes off of humanity's suffering, and in the process, as people die, that actually is consistent with the population control agenda which, according to the March/April 1996 issue of *Foreign Affairs Magazine*, which is put out by the Council on Foreign Relations, there was a full page plea to Council members in there to recognize the urgent need to reduce the United States' population down to the 1940s—that's about 55 percent of what it is today. So when you see one out of every two people in the United States today, just recognize that one out of two has to go, based on our military/medical/industrialists.

**Martin:** Why is the Human Genome Project so significant with respect to the development and manufacture of retroviruses?

Dr. Horowitz: Because the retroviruses play a part of the role of accomplishing what the Human Genome Project began as, which is called Eugenics, which is the study of racial hygiene and the differences and genetic predisposition to disease between the races. Again, all of this research, starting in the 1920s, was started by the Rockefellers and the Rockefeller Foundation. They've paid—and, again, you have a Nazi connection—they paid for the development of the Kaiser Wilhelm Institute during the 1920s, which gave rise to the center of the Eugenics movement, and the center of the racial hygiene movement. And in the United States, the Rockefeller-funded research supported the racial hygiene laws in the United States wherein a Black man, if he wanted to marry a White woman, would be arrested—and likewise, if a White man wanted to marry a Black woman, he would be arrested. This was based on the bogus science that carried a racial agenda. And if the critical readers and the scientists who read this don't believe that, I urge you to get a book called The Science of Coercion, by Christopher Simpson, wherein he discusses how easy it has been for the powers that be to brainwash even the most prestigious scientists. So, you see that the Rockefellerfunded agenda, they brainwashed health scientists and, of that, laws, political action were developed, legislation was developed, and this gave rise to Hitler's demands for international support. In 1932, in Mein Kampf, he points to the Rockefeller-funded research to support his racial hygiene laws, and then, with the purging of the Jews from the European universities, the researchers who were involved in Eugenics and genetic engineering, they came to the United States, many of them. Many of them went to work for Rockefeller University in New York and/or the University of Chicago, which was also funded by Rockefeller money. They continued that research, and of course, during the Holocaust, people were subjected to the most horrifying experiments. For example, they took large gauge needles and gouged the eyes of the prisoners to get eye-color samples so that they could do genetic testing on eye color. And then, this type of research continued there and continued after the war, as we brought in people like Eric Traub, and perhaps Dr. Duesberg, and we brought in people who went to work in Cold Springs Harbor in New York. And there they recently finished this Human Genome Project. So you have about 75 years of research that's recently being completed wherein they now know the genetic predisposition, specific genes that cause specific diseases in certain races of people. And of course, as Dr. Gallo and Lauri Garrett admit, since 1975, they've had the capacity to develop designer viruses that ONLY trigger specific gene sequences and target genes within a certain genome, within a certain human genome, and that can trigger a certain disease in a certain race. And that's why it is so risky, in my opinion, to not consider this information urgently when we stand on the brink of administering an Anthrax vaccine to 1.4 million military personnel, of which 37 percent are Black and Hispanic, and that one vaccine could literally wipe out all of the able bodied men, Black and Hispanic minority men in the military. So, that's the frightening reality of what we've got today.

Martin: What really happened at Reston?

Dr. Horowitz: What happened at Reston is virtually what happened at Davis in California, Marburg in Germany, Worcestershire in Philadelphia—you had EBOLA-like viruses break out from Litton Bionetics exported monkeys. That's what you had. The Reston virus, which people heard that the Reston facility was only supplying-and they read this in Richard Preston's book The Hot Zone, which I definitely tell people to read. I highly recommend that you read that book so that you know what sophisticated counterintelligence propaganda reads like. So in that book you learn that Reston was supplying monkeys to United States Army Research Institute for Infectious Diseases and that they were-they imported these monkeys from the Philippines, Reston said, and that they originated from unreliable monkey traders in Central Africa who didn't care about whether the monkeys might have been contaminated. And that, all of this is, virtually, hogwash. See, if you're the National Cancer Institute and you're using millions and millions of dollars of monkeys and chimpanzees every year, first of all, are you going to rely on unreliable monkey traders to supply your monkeys? Or, are you going to set up shop, or pay a good-ole'-boy inside player to set up shop? You better believe you're going to set up shop, and that's the shop that Litton Bionetics owned. Their monkey colonies were in southeast Uganda, and their research labs were in northwest Uganda, affiliated with the International Association for Research & Cancer. And so, Bionetics shipped the monkeys. I tracked the first EBOLA outbreak-actually, the mother of EBOLA was Marburg, the mother of Marburg was rhabdovirus simiae. And that was the virus that John Landon at Litton Bionetics Research Labs, in 1965, took-he inoculated 18 monkeys with the rhabdovirus simiaethat's a rabies-type virus that caused hemorrhagic fever in the monkeys, and that 9 of them died, he said; nine were transferred. The ones that were transferred, for those who saw the movie *Outbreak*, you know the valuable monkey who lived in the end that they had to get, held the antibodies, it was rushed off to the vaccine production facility because it was used to make a vaccine. And that's what John Landon did with the monkeys that lived. He shipped them to the vaccine production facilities, and that's exactly where the mother of EBOLA, Marburg broke out in 1967. And so, I show you again in the book Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA, that two of the world's top experts in monkey viruses, who literally held-one of them, Sy Kalter, from Southwest Foundation Research Labs, came right out in a symposium and said this virus was man-made. And that was his job. He held the contract to let people know, to tell the scientists what kinds of viruses were emerging out of the labs. And that's where I got the title of the book, *Emerging Viruses*. I did it kind of as a protest. I got the title because the initial phrase "emerging viruses" was Sy Kalter's. That was associated with the viruses that were recombining in the laboratories and breaking out of the laboratories. Today, of course, the disinformation artists in the media and the spin-doctors have made it seem that these emerging viruses are emerging out of caves in Central Africa-thank you, Richard Preston—or out of the African rain forest—thank you, Lauri Garrett. And that this is absolutely hogwash when you see that what they were doing in these labs was horrifying. For example, Litton Bionetics, I show you their entire list of viruses and monkey viruses that they were recombining. How would you like to have aerosolized leukemia? That's one of the viruses. They took acute lymphocytic leukemia and recombined it with influenza and parainfluenza, and that's one of the viruses that was floating around in their laboratories and in their monkeys.

**Martin:** Do we have permission to reprint that page out of your book?

**Dr. Horowitz:** Oh, yes! I think you should reprint that page. I think that there's two pages there. You should reprint that page, both of them [*see this page and the next 3 forDr. Horowitz's two pages mentioned here*], because you see there—they took all of these hideous viruses like SV40 and recombined them with everything that they had their in their labs. And you better believe, because their biohazard and containment was so abysmal, thank you Dow Chemical—and, interestingly enough, it's a good ole' boy network—guess who did the testing for Dow Chemical's chemical carcinogenesis tests? You know, who made sure that all of Dow Chemical's and Monsanto's chemicals were not causing cancer in humans?

Martin: I give up, who?

Dr. Horowitz: Litton Bionetics.

Martin: Gee, what a surprise.

Dr. Horowitz: Yes, no kidding. Like, you scratch my back and I'll scratch yours.

Martin: Let's go back to Merck.

Dr. Horowitz: Ok. George W. Merck, the president of Merck, Sharp, & Dohme, was America's biological weapons industry director, personally appointed by President Roosevelt after World War II. And so, you see, Merck from the beginning was heavily involved in American intelligence and biowarfare and CIA's top secret MK-NAOMI. Therefore, literally, all it would have taken for the accidental theory to have been unfolded was one contaminated monkey or chimp that was used to make that 1974 experimental Hepatitis-B vaccine that was simultaneously given to 200,000 human subjects by 1974 in New York City and Central Africa; and by the way, they also used, besides gay men in New York City, they used Willow Brook State School mentally retarded children on Staten Island to test that vaccine. But, that's the accidental theory. All it would have taken, likewise, for the intentional theory to have been perpetrated is-or the intentional contamination of that vaccine by the CIA-was one agent with access, be it a scientist, a CIA scientist, or be it just a CIA agent who was just given, you know, only information on a need-to-know basis-maybe, you go take this little sample here, this little vial, and you go drop this into that particular drum, and you don't have to know what's in it. It's none of your business, just do it. And that's literally all it would have taken in Merck's labs. I mean, they were a major biological weapons contractor for the Department of Defense and for the CIA's top secret project MK-NAOMI.

**Martin:** It is obvious, and will be if it hasn't been, to our readers that there is indeed a depopulation agenda. The contaminated vaccines, which, by the way, you could speak more about—are just one means whereby the "useless eaters" will be thinned out. Do you, in reality, see any hope for curtailing the massive onslaught of infectious disease in large metropolitan areas?

**Dr. Horowitz:** There's several things to do to assure that, or at least reduce those risks. One is the important role that you're playing and other journalists are playing in getting the information out. Number one, if you alert people to the fact that urban areas are the target zones and that, currently, as of January '96, the Department of Defense holds the legislative power, they have been given permission to test biological weapons in the public domain without gaining informed consent, and without notifying the public. Literally, what is written, and I have a copy of that, numerous other people have copies of this document, that they—all they have to do is notify one or more public officials from that town or city that they are planning to release biological weapons in. Also, I have access to photographs which show the spraying trucks that they are apparently using for these operations. I've been informed that the spraying is already happening. We suspect that this has happened already, that they have released some of these biologicals for testing—and, it's not just for testing; it's like you say, it's for culling and killing. And it's, basically, urgent that the information gets out to hopefully stop this process, or at least alert people that they should not be in these urban areas, in these major target cities. That's number one.

Number two is, that the FDA and the New World Order directors, they are currently involved in pushing through legislation that will virtually eliminate the public's access to all natural alternatives such as the FDA is currently pushing through and the CDC is currently pushing through legislation to outlaw the public use of, or public access to, these colloidal silver products. Now, I'm not an expert in any of these areas, but I am a concerned citizen and I am appreciative of my vitamins. Also involved now in World Health Codex legislation, where they're pushing through international standards for vitamins so that Americans will not very likely be able to get a vitamin, for example, that contain 400 international units of natural vitamin E. They are only going to limit it to 30 international units. And so, you and I and everyone else out there will no longer be able to get the vitamins that solid research has already shown can help prevent all sorts of things from cancer to heart disease.

Number three, they are quickly pushing through legislation to eliminate the public's access to botanicals, that is, remedies made from plants, so that we will no longer have access to those things. Now, given the fact that it was the FDA, along with the other organizations, such as Merck and the CDC and the National Institute for Allergies and Infectious Diseases that we intimately involved in developing the vaccine that most plausibly brought AIDS to the world—these are the same people that want to take away your inexpensive, over-the-counter remedies. Can you trust these people? I don't think so. And what you're doing by getting this information out there is a major public service, because if people do not wake up and they don't call and write their legislators and demand that they vote against this legislation—and, if they don't demand that there's an investigation of the FDA—then, people deserve to die, in my opinion, and they're going to die. You know, you just can't sit back and let this type of thing happen when your parents and your children are dying. You have to be totally brain-dead to have this evidence, [*and then*] sit back and do nothing. The first thing you should do is critically evaluate the evidence. People who can't afford \$29.95 or are afraid that they are going to make me rich by buying my book, just go to your library. Ask your library to get a copy of it. Read it.

**Martin:** I can certainly say to our readers, of all the books I've seen in recent years, yours is certainly worth the price.

**Dr. Horowitz:** Thank you. I appreciate that very much. And I greatly support all of the people that have said wonderful things about it and all of the people who have taken it upon themselves to help promote it. It's been wonderful.

**Martin:** We're nearing the end here of my prepared questions anyway, let's talk about the upsurge in breast cancer, prostate cancer and Epstein-Barr. Do you see those as a direct result of what you've been talking about?

Dr. Horowitz: Potentially so. There's no doubt, as I was reviewing the literature, I found hideous information in the scientific literature regarding breast cancer viruses that they were-National Cancer Institute investigators—were studying during a special cancer virus program. They were, for example, taking mouse mammary tumor viruses, they were recombining them with other viruses. They were inoculating these viruses into other animals such as cows. Shortly thereafter they were discovering these mouse breast cancer viruses in the cow's milk and then, a couple years later they were finding them in female lactate—mother's breast milk, which infants were now receiving. There were studies specifically published by the National Cancer Institute in a monograph that shows that they were doing similar research with prostate cancer viruses, and the specific virus tumor interaction that really began to be a major focus in the early '60s for the World Health Organization and the National Cancer Institute was the lymphoma and leukemia-like Burkitt's lymphoma and leukemia-and specifically the Burkitt's lymphoma research that was ongoing in central Africa. There was an area there endemic to Burkitt's lymphoma and non-Hodgkin's lymphoma, and there is where they started to take these cancer viruses and study them. Now, what do we have? Twenty, thirty years later we have a huge epidemic of leukemia, lymphoma, breast cancer, prostate cancer-whereas those specific tumors were virtually flatlined, they were not increasing from the beginning of the cancer registries in the early 1900s, up until 1970. All of a sudden, 1970 they are starting to rise a little bit. 1980, they're rising much faster. In the 1990s, they're going through the sky. So, that it totally consistent also with what Dr. Bernice Eddy predicted. Dr. Bernice Eddy was the National Institute of Health's vaccine contamination analyst who informed her colleagues and informed her superiors at the National Institute of Health, in the early 1960s, that they're spreading cancer viruses in their polio vaccines. And it took her 10 years to go to Congress, before she went to Congress in 1972, four days before President Nixon's helicopter touched down on Ft. Detrick, Maryland facilities, which was the biological weapons testing center of the world wherein he says, quote, "We're transforming swords into plowshares," end quote, by making the biological weapons testing facility here the home of the National Cancer Institute. That was in 1972.

And Bernice Eddy, four days before that, goes to Congress and she tells Congressmen, "If you continue to allow these contaminated vaccines to go out, I guarantee you over the next twenty years you will have epidemics of cancer, unlike the world has ever seen."

Martin: Isn't that interesting.

**Dr. Horowitz:** And they didn't listen to her.

Martin: We're just about on track.

**Dr. Horowitz:** Yes, that's exactly right.

**Martin:** Last evening you spoke in Atlanta. Was anyone from the CDC brave enough to attend your lecture, and if so, what were their comments?

**Dr. Horowitz:** No, nobody from the CDC raised their hand last night. We had numerous researchers, numerous physicians, numerous public health nurses. I did some radio out here before the program and they really plugged the program. We had a standing room only audience last night. And I would say, of the several hundred people that showed, I would say 20-30 percent were probably in the health fields because we're in Atlanta, as you said. There are so many folks here who are working outside the CDC, or for the CDC. The specific people that I invited from the CDC did not come, and that is a tragedy. I had definitely shared this information with, at least, two high-up officials at the CDC. And it appears to me that they don't want to rock the boat. They don't want to lose their jobs. They don't want to be like Bernice Eddy, demoted and defunded.

So this is the situation. We're looking at man's inhumanity to man. We're looking at denial and indifference. We're looking at fear. Fear, basically—the reason why people don't do anything is because they're afraid. And then, fear takes the form of denial and indifference. Basically, it's easy to say, "Well, you know, I'll lose my job and therefore I don't want to get involved."

Or, "I'm too busy right now." That's kind of like indifference.

"I have my own troubles."

"I have my own bills to pay."

You know, "I don't want to get shot by the CIA."

So many people have told me that I'm absolutely crazy for doing what I'm doing. You know something, if you had the information that I had, even though you have two magnificent, beautiful children, who you love with your heart and soul, and you have a magnificent wife who is supporting you and just so wonderful—even though you have those things, you have no choice. You have to understand, if you believe in God, you're doing God's service. I mean, where do you think I got this information from? You read my book—how did I find the contracts? It was absolutely extraordinary.

Martin: Yes, we've printed that.

Dr. Horowitz: It's like—I can't—lots of people have read The Celestine Prophecy. Well, that's

what my life is like. And so, if you were me, there's no other choice. You just do it.

Martin: Well, that has been my philosophy here at CONTACT.

**Dr. Horowitz:** No, there's no choice. You just do what is ethical, what is moral, what is right. You trust in the Lord. You trust in all of the people who are praying for you that they're going to continue to pray for you, and you continue. You just move on, and every day you just make whatever progress you can make.

Martin: What are the most commonly expressed concerns among your audiences, generally?

**Dr. Horowitz:** The most commonly expressed concern is: Do I now have these viruses, and if so, what can I do about them?

The answer to that is: Yes, a recent study in Italy shows that 25 percent of a large Italian population carry the SD40, the 40th monkey virus genes in their bodies now. I guarantee you it's the same, if not worse, here in the United States. And today we're still giving our children the oral polio vaccine that is delivering Simian Virus 40 and all of the herpes-type, simian monkey virus contaminants along with it, to our children. So, what can you do once you know that you've been exposed? Well, you virtually do everything that you can do for self-care to boost your immune system naturally. You utilize, for example—Joan Priestly, who's a physician up in Alaska who's been treating, very successfully, over 600 HIV-AIDS-Chronic Fatigue patients-mostly through alternative natural herbs and nutritional recommendations and natural antivirals that exist, that we actually tell people about on our web site. You can download it for free on our web site, [see book ad on page 13 for web site address ] her three pages of recommendations to boost your immune system. So, I recommend to people, (a) if you're not ailing, if you're not sick, don't worry about it; but just use this information as a prompt to go out and develop healthy lifestyles. Go out, improve your nutrition, exercise, take care of your body, take care of your mind, take care of your emotions, develop social relationships that are loving and supportive. Develop environments that are healthier and safer. Go out and, clearly, the question of whether we should be avoiding vaccines, I think at this point is a ridiculous question. There's no question in my mind, before I can recommend vaccines-and, I have to tell you as a scientist, the theory of vaccines is not a bad theory. It says in the Bible you shouldn't be injecting anything into your blood, but the theory of how these things might work is not a bad theory. The problem is, the people who are doing this cannot be trusted; have shown themselves to be completely negligent, unethical, immoral, having alternative agendas rather than human health and happiness, and that until there is a Congressional investigation into all of the published facts, I can no longer in good conscience recommend people get vaccinated. So, what does a parent do? They ask me, "Well, what can I do?" And I tell them, first of all, make yourself aware, read. Read the book, *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA* [see book ad on page 13]. Read Vierra Shriber's books. She has been out there for a long time on this issue. Read Neil Miller's books on vaccine risks. Read Barbara Lo Fisher and Harris Colter's books. Make yourselves informed consumers so that you can make intelligent health care decisions. Read these things, and then make a decision. And if you decide then that you do not want to have your children vaccinated, then state that "For spiritual and religious reasons, I need to be exempt". Go to your pediatrician, or go to your physician, and say, "I would like to have an exemption notice, that based on spiritual

and religious reasons,"—because you cannot argue anything else, unfortunately, in America today—your children will be taken away.

**Martin:** At some later date, our readers would be very interested in knowing the outcome of your lawsuit. And, I know that's a long story. But I, personally, would like to know what happens with that.

Dr. Horowitz: Ok, I will let you know. Just stay in touch.

**Martin:** Around here we like the phrase, "God has a Plan 2000, too." I was very pleased to hear you talk about the spiritual component of good vs. evil, and your belief in God. What are your closing thoughts to our readers, generally, about the subject, and perhaps any spiritual or philosophical thoughts you may care to share?

**Dr. Horowitz:** That's just it; I think that's the most important take-home message of all, on a couple of different levels. One is, the first level is on the immune system-boosting aspect of faith-in-self and faith-in-the-Lord. And the second is—the bottom line is that the Lord is in control and that all of this is, kind of, required to wake people up. And so, let me comment on that first, and then I'll take number two.

The immune system is a magnificent creation. God designed us all with a fabulous internal defense system that, if allowed to work and maintained in its natural state, has the capacity to fight off virtually every virus and every bacteria; and what happens is that, spiritually and from a self-spiritual perspective, there is this issue of self-esteem that plays a major role in immune capacity or immune resistance. And here's the metaphor: If you do not know who you are, if you do not know the magnificent, capable, worthy, loving and loveable creation that God blessed you with—that is, your innate self and your innate connection to the Lord—if you do not know that, then you really do not know who you are. That is, you lack self-knowledge and you lack self-esteem. Therefore, how can you expect your immune system, the cells in which are designed to play the role of distinguishing between self and non-self, identifying cancer from healthy human tissues, bacteria, foreign germs from healthy—how can these cells function to determine the difference between self and non-self, when you you are not?

The premier metaphor for immune dysfunction problems, boosting yourself back to health—if you are ailing or ill—you need to look at your illness as the greatest opportunity that God has ever given you to move yourself back into the direction to reestablish health, back towards health. And how you do that, physically, mentally, emotionally, socially, environmentally, and spiritually: you improve yourself and your surroundings.

The next thing has to do with the spiritual evolution of humanity. The fact of the matter is, research and behavioral science has shown that, when people are down and out, when faced with pain and suffering and unbearable trauma, they consistently turn to the Lord. There were several large studies done, one of which evolved out of the Three Mile Island nuclear disaster, when all of the people in the community there—when no hope was given to them—then they all began to become very spiritual or religious. Now that is a wonderful thing, that we can look at all of this as a great

opportunity for a spiritual revolution, not only in America but throughout the world. Because when you look at the fact that what we are witnessing with our family and friends dying of the current incoming plagues, and you recognize that this is a direct result of human activity and man's inhumanity towards man, and you recognize how painful this is for us and everyone else, I think bringing attention to this is critical in God's Plan to bring about international healing. And I believe that this is, virtually, part, maybe an important part, of the upcoming Messianic Age.

Martin: And just in case our readers are not clear what you mean about the Messianic Age?

**Dr. Horowitz:** As a Messianic Jew, I believe that we are on the verge of witnessing, first of all, Tribulation—this is part and parcel to Tribulation. And I urge people to not only read the book *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*, but when you get done, reread the *Book of Revelation*, particularly Chapter 18. The parallels between Babylon falling and New York City falling are extraordinary. The parallels between those who deceived the King of the most wealthy people of all nations, the people who contaminated the blood—who stole the blood of the prophets and saints, as it says in the *Book of Revelation*—the parallels to that and the Rockefellers, who are the international blood bankers who contaminated the blood. And in the *Book of Revelation*, it talks of how contaminated wine and blood flows out into the rivers and the streams—and they are the people, and that ultimately, all of this is in God's Plan and in the end, before the coming of Christ, the coming of the Messiah, the Messianic Age, we will have all of this cleaned up and cleared out—wherein then we can turn to the crystal clear waters that will once again flow, which are lined by the trees with the leaves that will bring healing to the nations. That is virtually verbatim from the *Book of Revelation*. So, again, I urge people to go back and look at what has been prophesied by many, and see that what we are currently going through is leading to the ultimate Tribulation and the ultimate healing.

#### THE STORY OF OUR MONEY

Editor's note: We couldn't resist sharing with you this great little "fable" which has been published in the CONTACT in the 2/1/94 issue.

The following story was told by Mr. Robert Hemphill, who was credit manager of the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta for eight years.

#### THE STORY OF OUR MONEY

Once upon a time to the temple of the Thirteen Suns came the rich and powerful Chief Oomah the Third who said to the goldsmith of the temple, Hansen El Rashab, "I have much gold and am about to depart for a far country. Wilt thou keep this gold safely for me against my return a year hence? I will pay thee well."

The wiley Hansen coughed loudly and covered his countenance with a cloth lest the rich Oomah the Third observe his joy to have this treasure in his possession. When he was calm and could look serious he said unto Oomah, "It is a very great responsibility and risk, but I will undertake it for a tithe, which shall be one sheckel in every ten."

Then said the Chief Oomah, "It is a deal," and forthwith his slaves delivered many bags containing in all a thousand sheckels of gold for which Hansen El Rashab, the goldsmith, gave the chief a parchment deposit writing payable to whomsoever. And thereupon, Chief Oomah departed happily upon his journey.

As soon as he was well out of the country, the shrewd Hansen called his confidential scribe and bade him thus: "Go thee now to the merchants whom I tell of and secretly say to each that thy master hath a little gold for hire upon good security," and the servant departed swiftly. Soon there came to him a great merchant who said to him, "Hansen, you old crook, I am in a jam for a few sheckels of gold. Wilt thou lend me?"

Hansen replied, "Money is very tight these days, but it might be arranged. What is thy need?"

The merchant answered, "Two hundred sheckels."

Then said Hansen, "It is a sum?"

Then the merchant showed Hansen a writing of his possessions of merchandise to the amount of a thousand sheckels.

Hansen said, "It is not enough. Thou must also pledge thy dwelling and thy slaves and thy raiment," whereupon the merchant, after much protest, pledged all his possessions, even unto his innermost personal raiment.

Then said he to Hansen, "I have no place to store so much gold. Keep it safe for me and give me a writing which I may deliver to whomsoever I will." And Hansen did even so.

The next day came another merchant and another and still another, and to each Hansen loaned a portion of the gold of Chief Oomah the Third, taking from each as security his entire possessions, including his innermost personal raiment, and gave to each a writing upon parchment showing that each had, on deposit, the gold he had borrowed, until upon the tenth day, he had given parchment deposit writings for the whole of the thousand sheckels, but he still had all the gold.

On the next day came another merchant and another and still another, and to each Hansen showed the great store of gold of Oomah the Third and to each he pretended to loan a portion although he had previously loaned it all to the first ones who came. Hansen reflected much upon this curious state of affairs and said to himself, "These birds know not how much gold I possess. They do not want the actual gold itself. What they really want is credit, some deposit writing which they may pass from hand to hand as money. I have one grand idea."

And it came to pass that at the end of another ten days Hansen had pretended to loan to many more merchants and had given writings of deposit for a second thousand sheckels, making two thousand sheckels, and still he had all the gold. Whereupon Hansen reflected to himself, "What a leaden pipe cinch. I wonder why I did not think of this before. I can collect as much usury for phony deposit writings as for genuine. Verily I am a financial wizard."

Thereupon Hansen caused it to be noised about that he possessed a vast store of gold for hire and many merchants came to borrow, and to each Hansen delivered writings of deposit and collected generous usury and demanded pledges from each of all his possessions, even unto his innermost personal raiment—until he had issued writings of deposit for ten thousand sheckels and held mort-gages on substantially the whole city.

Then went Hansen unto the wiseman of the city and said unto him, "Verily I have discovered the greatest racket of all time. I have learned the magic of making gold out of bologna; and if I can keep my formula secret for a few years I will collect a fortune that will make Solomon's treasure look like a second-hand clothing store. Tell me how I may keep secret this bonanza from mine own profit?"

Then said the wiseman, "Look wise and say little, and only upon little-known matters of far off. Obtain the ear of the town cryer and gadge him to spread the impression that money is a mysterious subject which no one understands, save thee alone. Be friendly with the King's councilors, and grant their favors that the King may smile upon thee."

And Hansen did as he was bid, and collected much usury from his phony loan deposits, and built for himself a mansion and collected works of art and clothed his wife and concubines with finest linens and jewels. And when his business had grown to many times its humble beginnings he took over the entire temple. And, by way of a sly joke, called it the "First National Bank", the same being

from an obscure language meaning, "place of imaginary money".

This is the reason all banks have great marble pillars and bronze doors. So that they may resemble outside as well as internally the place of imaginary money which Hansen El Rashab built upon the gold of Oomah the Third in the Temple of the Thirteen Suns.

#### BLM REGULATIONS GIVE MORE POWER

Editor's note: Regrettably, this information will not reach you in time to respond before the "deadline" mentioned in the article. The proposed changes, however, seem right in train with other ominous encroachments on our freedom and we (as usual) gladly pass it along to you. There may yet be some avenues open for action to oppose this tentacle of the Elite trap.

From: (a letter to) The Humboldt Sun, Jan. 15, 1997 Winnemucca, NV, [quoting:]

To the Editor:

On Nov. 7, two days after President Clinton was re-elected, proposed changes in the Bureau of Land Management's regulations were published in the Federal Register that would grant much broader powers to BLM law enforcement officers. According to an article in the *Western Livestock Journal*, some of the changes, among others, would be the following:

BLM law enforcement would expand its policing authority beyond BLM land to "activities on or having a clear potential to affect water bodies on or adjacent to BLM lands." Activities on private land adjacent to or upstream from BLM land would fall under these new regulations.

Enforcement is authorized, according to any federal law or rule of law to: *stop vehicles; search any person, place or vehicle without warrant or process; seize without warrant or process any piece of evidence; and make arrests without warrant or process. (emphasis added)* 

BLM is asking to redefine a highway, road or trail as a "way or trail that is publicly maintained and open to the public for vehicular traffic." This means that the little two-track roads in Nevada would not be considered roads and could be closed by the BLM, which fits right in with their desire to expand the definition of a "primitive area" whereby "the environment could be preserved by management of activities and exclusions of additional roads and commercial developments."

Another change would be to expand BLM authority over motor vehicles, which is typically and traditionally reserved to state and local governments. If state and local laws are less stringent than BLM regulations, their regulations would be the minimum standard and would apply to you and your motor vehicle. BLM regulations would apply to speed limits, DUI, brakes, lights, mufflers, seat belts, parking, etc. No operating a vehicle in a manner causing or likely to be a "disturbance of the soil (there go your four-wheelers), water, wildlife, wildlife habitat, improvements, cultural, paleontological or vegetative resources."

The proposed regulations would expand the BLM authority over use of alcohol, an authority typically reserved by the state.

Furthermore, unless authorized by BLM, no discharges of firearms will be allowed.

No defacing, removing or destroying natural features or resources including plants or their parts, soil, rocks (no more rockhounding) and minerals without BLM permission.

No diverting, transporting or removing any water resource owned by or reserved to the U.S. and administered by BLM without BLM permission. Just what this would mean is unclear but could have tremendous ramifications.

Does all this set in motion the precedent for a possible federal police force? It sure sounds like it to me. These propsed rules will not affect just the livestock people, but everyone in the county or state who uses or recreates on BLM land in any way.

If you'd like more information you can obtain a copy of the rule changes in the Federal Register form Jeff at the Humboldt County Library—pages 57,605 through 57,621 dated Nov. 7, 1996. I urge you to find out all you can about this and make your thoughts known to the BLM. The deadline for commenting is Feb. 5, 1997. Direct your comments to: Bureau of Land Management, Administrative Record Room 402 LS, 1849 C Street NW, Washington D.C. 20240.

Also, let your representative in Washington know how you feel.

Les Stewart

Paradise Valley